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For the year ended 31 December BE+=-B=+—RHLEE 2018 2017
(in HK$'000) (F#&mx) —E-NFE —T—+tF +/(-)
Revenue A 4,415,409 3,591,080 +23.0%
Gross profit EH 1,626,681 1,457,593 +11.6%
Operating profit HE 639,269 428,023 +49.4%
Profit before income tax bR BT 1S B AT & A 632,742 424,540 +49.0%
Profit for the year F A 515,398 336,566 +53.1%
Profit attributable to the owners of RABIEE ARG R

the Company 522,470 407,507 +28.2%
Research and development costs (included in MERL (BEETHREAA)

administrative expenses) (332,016) (287,230) +15.6%
Net impairment losses on financial assets TREEZREFEE (43,290) (43,220) +0.2%
Impairment of assets (one-off in 2017) BERE(ZZ—tF—KMH) - (136,192) N/A i A

2018 2017 +/(-)
At 31 December (in HK$'000) R+t=ZA=+—-B(F#x) =TB-NFE —T—+tF
Total current assets RBEERE 5,343,736 4,839,173 +10.4%
Total assets BE#E 5,775,554 5,232,216 +10.4%
Net current assets mBEEFE 3,802,754 3,521,846 +8.0%
Total equity G 4,212,608 3,897,066 +8.1%
EARNINGS PER SHARE & DIVIDEND
BREAMNREKE
2018 2017 ()

Per Share (in HK$) gR(Ex) —E-NF ZZT—+tF
Earnings per share FR AT

— Basic —EK 0.475 0.367 +29.4%

— Diluted —#E 0.475 0.367 +29.4%
Proposed final dividend per ordinary share BEORE AR RERE 0.04 0.04 -
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Financial Highlights
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FINANCIAL RATIOS

B 7 b R
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
Gross profit margin EF = 36.8% 40.6%
Operating profit margin A = 14.5% 11.9%
Net profit margin FFE 11.7% 9.4%
Current ratio e L = 3.5 3.7
Return on equity’ e EkaY 12.4% 10.5%
Return on assets? & & 0] ¥ 9.0% 7.8%
TURNOVER DAYS
HEBH
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Year B —T-mFE ZT-nF ZE-RF T—+tF ZEB-N\f
Inventory? r& 114 112 142 138 146
Trade and bills receivables* FEUUR T N B R 1 118 121 164 158 155
Trade and bills payables® ERRETREMFEES 105 119 152 138 140
Cash conversion? Re@ige 127 115 154 158 161
Notes B 3
1 Return on equity = Profit attributable to the owners of the Company/ 1 BB = ARAFAEAEGGB,FRER
Equity as at year end
2 Return on assets = Profit attributable to the owners of the Company/Total 2 BERBF=AQRFEAEBEEN, FREE
assets as at year end HE
3 Inventory turnover days = Average Gross inventory balance/(Cost of sales 3 GERAEBRE=-FHEFEEEGEE,/ (FRH
for the year/365 days) ERA, 3658)
4 Trade and bills receivables turnover days = Average Gross trade and bills 4 FEUWRR SR R E W R R B 8 B 8 — T AR
receivables balance/(Turnover for the year/365 days) TN EWEE A AT (FRL%E%E, 365
H)
5 Trade and bills payables turnover days = Average Gross trade and bills 5 FERBRR R EREEBE A& - FHEMERR
payables balance/(Cost of sales for the year/365 days) RERZEBE,/ (FRESEKE, 3658)
6 Cash conversion days = Inventory turnover days + Trade and bills 6 ReEHAYg-—FERE A+ ERRERLE

receivables turnover days — Trade and bills payables turnover days

WREBEEERH - BNEAREREIEEER
2
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Bank Card Transaction Flow of Electronic Payment

IRTTREFRITR AR

The following is a simplified diagram illustrating the transaction flow in
a typical electronic payment transaction

Cardholder
BEA

(e.g. hotels, restaurants and retailers ) #

(PIADESE - RIERFER..)

Card Issuer v ¥ < such as
BRI eg.pa ,~,';* 23
N:e)

fffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffff - E-payment

Terminals Products
B XMARIRER

Card Association
gt

(e.g. Visa/MasterCard/China UnionPay)
(B120Visa/MasterCard/F EIFR )

Source: Analysys International, CSI

"=)" E-payment Terminals solutions provider sells E-payment Terminals
products and provides related services to merchant service provider
and acquirer.

"= Merchant service provider provides transaction processing
solutions to merchants by assisting merchants in setting-up their
operations to accept cards as a form of payment from their
customers.

u»u

1. Cardholder purchases with card at a merchant through an
E-payment Terminals.

2:  The E-payment Terminals sends transaction data to the acquirer.

3&4: The acquirer sends authorisation request and verifies with the card
issuer that the card number and transaction amount are both valid
through the network of card association.

5&6: The card issuer verifies that the cardholder’s credit is sufficient and
grants authorisation.

7:  The acquirer receives the response and relays it to the merchant.

NTEEMRAE—RRTREFXNRHINKR
5z
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DHE

Merchant Service Provider
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Commercial Bank or Thlrd Party
Payment Service Provider
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E-payment Terminals Products
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E-payment Terminals
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Products Highlights (for reference only)

roEm (2H2%)

SMART E-PAYMENT SOLUTION (A-SERIES)
BREETFXIBERA R (ARS])

General features:

—MRAFEL

Powered by Android operating system, PCI PTS 5.x certified, the latest certification in the industry.
Compact, portable, equipped with a large high resolution touch screen and inbuilt dual cameras.
Support various kinds of payment options, including bank card payments, Near Field Communication
("NFC") contactless and QR code payments.

N EVERERGIRE - IS EARFAIPCI PTS SXRAL NN FEFHF - AEFAREEEER
FRREEEGE XHEREINAR BFBRIT R NFCIEBA K B -

ALL-IN-ONE SMART ELECTRONIC CASH REGISTER SOLUTION (E-SERIES)

BRREERXN—

General Features:

—MRAFEL

E800"

'ﬂﬁﬁ*/;{jj_?x (E%EU)

Powered by Android operating system, the all-in-one integrated solution delivers cost efficient and

space saving features to merchants. Certified with PCI PTS 5.x, the latest certification in the industry.

Stylish, large color touch screen, customer-facing display and an inbuilt camera. Support various kinds of

payment options including bank card payments, NFC contactless and QR code payments.

NZEEXZRRIEN —BLRT R EEHF EEE ZMMBCAR  ZEm A ERNKHPCI PTS 5.7

Al o SNEYRS f) - BE AR KR @%ﬁﬁ%)ﬁ HREFENETRE NBEBRGE IFRITRINMN NFC?F%T
R _HEBERAENTR -

* New model launched in 2018

T \FHE R R
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Products Highlights (for reference only)
rolEm (EHf2%)

QR CODE E-PAYMENT SOLUTION

TR IR

General features:
— MR

Support QR code payments.
R MRS e

IM SERIES UNATTENDED SOLUTION
IMZ 31| B B BR 5 7 IR 75 =R

General features:

— AR

Ideal for self-service sales points such as petroleum forecourts, car parks, kiosk. PCI PTS 5.x certified
and has met required standards for anti-vandalism and waterproofing. Various payment methods are
accepted and connectivity options include 3G, 4G, WiFi and Bluetooth.

ERANR 2E5 EEFTELZERASR - WBPCIPTS 5.xRF - & B BUIEMP KELE - AIZE
BHEALA ARG 4G WIFFIE T Z [EiERERE -

* New model launched in 2018

T N TR R



Products Highlights (for reference only)
rolEm (EHf2%)

TRADITIONAL E-PAYMENT SOLUTION
BRESXNBRAR

i) Countertop and Wireless E-payment Terminals
EXRFHBRXET AL

General features: Accept smart card, magnetic stripe card and support credit cards, debit cards and a full range of
prepaid products, including gift cards and loyalty programs. Most of the models support QR code
application.

— AR AENEER HMES UXRHEARN B FREZIENER BREER FRERE X

BRIV ELSRE A S ik — MR o

Q80s

Other models: 5910, S800, S500, S90, S80, S78, 560, S58
HhA 5% 910 - S800 ~ S500 - S90 ~ S80 - S78 ~ S60 * S58

Q80
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Products Highlights (for reference only)
rolEm (EHf2%)

TRADITIONAL E-PAYMENT SOLUTION
BRESXNBRAR

ii) Pin Pad Devices

TSR

General features: Specifically designed for contactless payment, which comply with various industry standards
including MasterCard’s PayPass and Visa's payWave.

— MR EREIIEFEEA A ME  WHE ZEZEANZLE - BIEMasterCardiyPayPass & Visaf payWave °

Other models E fth 8 :
SP20Vv4, SP30, S300

i) Multilane Series

ZHE R

General features: Sleek tablet design with large high resolution color screen, enabling high quality display to
showcase merchants’ advertising and campaigns.

— PR FABANTRES AR AeBRMERCETS NanBENesRB 2R NP et E
EREH

* New model launched in 2018

T N TR R



Products Highlights (for reference only)

roEm (2H2%)

MOBILE E-PAYMENT SOLUTION

BBEFXNHRAR

General features: Lightweight and compact design, focusing on small and micro merchants. Support various kinds of
payment options, including bank card payment and NFC contactless.

— AR R maRET/NTT (B HEM N EPHE R AIXEREX N AR BIERITN A INFCIEB A 2 T -

D180
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Products Highlights (for reference only)
rolEm (EHf2%)

PAXSTORE

Features: A secure cloud-based Software-as-a-Service (“SaaS”) platform that allows you to create and manage
your own independent marketplace for software application distribution. It also provides an integrated
terminal management system platform and smart data analysis.

SR — (AR 2T EBEIRTE([SaasS | ) F & AFEEIRELEREZBEBLNRHEATIS R ©
RE—(ALGRFEEERRSATAME BB ST
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Corporate Information
~IEM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

NIE Guoming (Chairman)

LU Jie (Chief Executive Officer)
LI Wenjin

Independent Non-Executive Directors
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
CHEUNG Shi Yeung

LAU Ling Yun Agnes

CHAN Yiu Kwong

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
LI Wenjin

CHEUNG Shi Yeung

CHAN Yiu Kwong (alternate)

BERMUDA RESIDENT REPRESENTATIVE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong Law
Reed Smith Richards Butler
Woo Kwan Lee & Lo

As to Bermuda Law
Conyers Dill & Pearman
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Corporate Information
~IEM

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 2416, 24th Floor

Sun Hung Kai Centre

30 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR IN BERMUDA
Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Investor Services Ltd
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.paxglobal.com.hk

STOCK CODE
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Simplified Corporate Chart
NEIEN GRS

The following is a simplified corporate chart of the Group’s principal operating subsidiaries up to the date of this report.

PAX Global Technology Limited
(Stock code: 327)
(Bermuda)

Pax Technology Limited
(HK)

100%

Wonder Pax
Technology

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

(PRC)

100%

Pax Computer
Technology

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(PRC)

100%

Pax Pos
Solutions India
Private Limited

(India)

Pax Technology, Inc.

(USA)

87%

Kwang Woo
Pax Japan Information &

Kabushiki Kaisha

Communication
Co., Ltd.
(Korea)

(Japan)

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

70%

Pax ltalia S.r.l.

(Italy)

60%

CSC Italia S.r.l

(Italy)



Simplified Corporate Chart
NEIEN GRS

TERAHEAREANAKETIZLENBARNARRBHR-

HAERAT
27)

100% 100% 70%

Pax Pos
Solutions India
Private Limited

(ENfE)

BERENE

(R4) BRAT Pax Technology, Inc. Pax ltalia S.r.l.

(FE)

(FAH)

60%

100% 87%

Kwang Woo

B RHT Information & CSC Italia S.rl

Communication
Co., Ltd.
(58E)

) BRAF
(HE)

(BAF)

BERMAMZARRR  ZE-NFEH
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Directors and Senior Mlanagement

ESEkSHhREER

As at 6 March 2019, the date of the Report of the Directors, the
biographical details of the directors (the "Director(s)”) and senior
management of PAX Global Technology Limited (the “Company”) are as
follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

NIE Guoming Chairman

Mr. Nie, aged 56, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company and the general manager of Pax Computer Technology
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (“Pax Technology (Shenzhen)”). He is responsible
for the overall management and strategic development of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). Mr. Nie has over 23 years
of experience in the card payment industry. He joined Pax Technology
Limited (“Pax Technology”) at its founding in March 2000 as the vice
president until January 2001 and subsequently as the president prior
to his appointment as the chairman in June 2010. Mr. Nie previously
worked as an engineer in the Information Technology Department of
the Headquarters of China Merchants Bank in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") from 1996 to 1999. Mr. Nie graduated from
Tsinghua University in 1984 with a bachelor’s degree in Radio Electronics
and obtained a master’s degree in Radio Electronics Engineering from
Southeast University in 1991. He was appointed as the Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company in December 2010.

LU Jie Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lu, aged 54, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director
of the Company and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. He joined the Group in August 2001 and is responsible for
managing the business development, sales and marketing functions
of the Group. Mr. Lu has over 18 years of experience in sales and
marketing in the electronic payment industry and served a number of
management positions and executive role at Beijing Order Computer
Company (“Beijing Order”), a system integration company, from
1998 to 2001, including general manager of insurance department,
general manager of marketing department and vice president. He had
also worked as an engineer of the Ministry of Geology and Mineral
Resources of the PRC and the Chinese Academy of Geological Sciences
from 1986 to 1994 and from 1994 to 1995 respectively. Mr. Lu holds
a bachelor’s degree from Chengdu Geology Institute. He obtained an
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from the Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business in 2010. He was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the Company in
May 2013.

4® PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Directors and Senior Mlanagement

ESEkSHhREER

LI Wenjin

Mr. Li, aged 55, is an Executive Director of the Company. He is
responsible for the Company’s risk management and treasury
management and overseeing operations of Pax Technology, of which he
has been serving a director since April 2000. Mr. Li has over 27 years
of experience in investment and administrative affairs. Mr. Li was the
director of Hi Sun Information Technology Services Limited (“HSITSL")
from August 1997 to May 2005, a Hong Kong company engaging in
general trading and provision of consultancy services. HSITSL provided
consultancy services to Pax Technology from 2002 to 2003. Mr. Li is
also the managing director of Hi Sun Limited since August 1999 and an
executive director of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (“Hi Sun”), a
controlling shareholder of the Company, since June 2001. He has also
been appointed as an executive director of both Hi Sun Limited and Hi
Sun and certain of their subsidiaries. Prior to joining Hi Sun Limited in
1999, he worked for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong,
including Beijing Order from 1994 to 1995 where he was responsible for
investment and administrative affairs. Mr. Li obtained a master’s degree
in laws from the Peking University in 1989. He was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in February 2010.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

YIP Wai Ming

Mr. Yip, aged 53, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2010. Mr. Yip is currently an
independent non-executive director of Ju Teng International Holdings
Limited (EREBIFRIERR B R A 7)), Far East Horizon Limited (iE2E 7=
{Z8PBRAF]), Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited ({7 (b £ &
B nEBRAR]), Yida China Holdings Limited (fEZE R BT AR A
&)) and Pantronics Holdings Limited ( #fA% 1% BARRD ) , all of which
are companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Yip graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a bachelor’s degree in social sciences in 1987. He also holds
a bachelor’s degree in laws from the University of London. Mr. Yip is
a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

WU Min

Dr. Wu, aged 47, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2010. Previously, Dr. Wu was an
assistant professor at The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology
Business School and The University of Hong Kong School of Business. Dr.
Wu has been teaching International Accounting Standards, US Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles and Chinese Accounting Standards.
Her academic research achievements in identifying US accounting
restatements and frauds were reported by various media, including the
Wall Street Journal, New York Times, Business Week, Fortune, CNN, etc.
Dr. Wu used to cooperate with major accounting firms and the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (US) in conducting research in the
areas of accounting manipulation and frauds by US listed companies.
She also provides professional interpretation and analysis services for
investment funds on accounting standards and on listed companies’
financial statements. Dr. Wu graduated from Peking University with a
bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1994 and obtained a master’s degree
in Economics from Tufts University in 1996 and a Ph.D. in Accounting
from Stern School of Business, New York University in 2003.
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Directors and Senior Mlanagement

ESEkSHhREER

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Mr. Man, aged 60, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2010. Mr. Man graduated from
The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in laws in 1981.
Mr. Man was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1984 and has
practised as a solicitor at Joseph S. C. Chan & Co. (formerly known as
Chan and Lo) in Hong Kong since then. He is currently a partner of
Joseph S.C. Chan & Co.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LUO Shaowen

Mr. Luo, aged 50, is the executive vice president and chairman of
Pax Technology (Shenzhen). He is responsible for the research and
development management of the Company’s smart electronic payment
point-of-sale terminals (“E-payment Terminals”) products and supply
chain business (procurement production, quality management and
information technology) and oversees the finance of the operations in
Shenzhen. Mr. Luo graduated from Wuhan University with a bachelor’s
degree in economic management. Mr. Luo has over 21 years of
experience in the card payment industry and over 16 years of experience
in financial administration and supply chain management. He joined
Pax Technology (Shenzhen) in December 2004 as the chief financial
officer. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luo served various management
positions in the Beijing Order and Beijing Hi Sun Electric Power
Information Technology Limited.

CHEUNG Shi Yeung

Mr. Cheung, aged 35, is the Chief Financial Officer and one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company (the “Company Secretary(ies)”).
He joined the Group in October 2016 and is responsible for overseeing
the business development, finance, compliance, merger and acquisition,
and investor relations of the Group. Mr. Cheung graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration and has over 11 years of financial and accounting related
experience. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung worked for
an international public accountancy firm and was involved in a number
of audit and assurance, capital market transaction and advisory projects
advising corporate clients including listed companies and conglomerates
worldwide.
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Chairman’s Statement

FRHRSE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of PAX Global
Technology Limited (“PAX" or “the Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual report of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year under review, the Group’s turnover amounted to
HK$4,415.4 million, representing an increase of 23.0% compared
to HK$3,591.1 million in 2017. The incline was mainly contributed
by the huge increase of 43.4% in overseas markets. All regional
overseas business recorded growth, especially in the Latin America
and the Commonwealth of Independent States (“LACIS"). Moreover,
the proportion of the total revenue of the overseas markets over the
Group's total was 84.5%, as compared to 72.5% in the corresponding
period last year. Shipments of E-payment Terminals reached a record
high of over 10 million units, out of which approximately 6 million units
were shipped overseas.

In 2018, profit for the year was HK$515.4 million, representing an
increase of 53.1% compared to HK$336.6 million in 2017. Profit for the
year attributable to the owners of the Company was HK$522.5 million,
representing an increase of 28.2% as compared to HK$407.5 million in
2017. Basic earnings per share for the year was 47.5 HK cents (2017:
36.7 HK cents).

The Board has recommended to declare a final dividend of HK$0.04
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$0.04 per ordinary share, amounting to a total of approximately
HK$44,008,000 (2017: HK$44,008,000).
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Chairman’s Statement

FRHRSE

OUTLOOK

The Group is dedicated to the pursuit of excellence in providing secure
electronic payment terminal solutions for customers worldwide. Fostered
by impressive research and development (“R&D") capabilities, superior
levels of technical support resources, as well as innovative solutions
portfolio, PAX continues to achieve remarkable milestones in sales,
market share and innovative product launches, thereby solidifying
our position in the global E-payment Terminals industry. Being one of
the world’s leading E-payment Terminals providers, PAX has deployed
in more than 100 countries globally. In 2018, revenue from overseas
markets increased even further to approximately 84.5% of the Group’s
total revenue. Shipments of E-payment Terminals reached a record high
of over 10 million units, out of which approximately 6 million units
were shipped overseas, demonstrating strong performance in overseas
markets.

As financial technology continues to innovate and flourish, many new
forms of payment option are being introduced in markets worldwide.
The ongoing enhancements of payment security and transactional
convenience have boosted the rapid growth of cashless transactions,
enabling the Group to achieve excellent results in numerous overseas
markets. In LACIS, the steady growth of third-party payment acquiring
businesses in Brazil is driving demand for PAX solutions. In Europe, the
Middle East and Africa ("EMEA") region, PAX continues to strengthen
its partnership with acquiring banks and payment service providers,
obtaining more and more nation-specific product certifications, thus
laying ever stronger foundations for the Group’s business expansion
in the EMEA region. In the United States, merchants are not only
committed to Europay, MasterCard and Visa ("EMV") payment
standards migration, but are also devoting more resources to customer
relationship management and data analysis, where our innovative
multilane retail and Android based terminal solutions are delivering
these value-added features to the merchants. Across the Asia Pacific
region, the electronic payment is booming in various markets. Apart
from accelerating the integration process of the Group’s newly acquired
Korean E-payment Terminals supplier, Kwang Woo Information &
Communication Co. Ltd., PAX has also increased its commitment
and investment in exploring new markets through setting up local
subsidiaries in Japan and India.
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Chairman’s Statement

FRHRSE

In China, electronic payment continues to boom rapidly while alternative
payment methods via smartphone and NFC overwhelm the country
and have greatly reshaped the Chinese payment landscape. Further
intensified market competition, unpredictable and complex international
trade relations continue to pose challenges for the Group. During the
year, PAX established a “China Business Unit”, an independent team to
conduct product planning and deployment specifically for the Chinese
market, thereby addressing responsiveness to the market and flexibility
in response to ever-changing market conditions.

Amid the rapidly evolving environment of the global payment market,
PAX will keep close track of the pace of technological development
and market changes, and continue to invest in R&D so as to maintain
a leading position in the industry. Payment service providers and their
merchant customers have growing demand for diversified and more
personalised payment solutions to meet the specific needs of different
retail segments and business scenarios. Therefore, in terms of R&D,
the Group is focusing on the innovation of all-in-one Android-based
E-payment Terminals solutions, strengthening on product development
and portfolio enhancement so as to cater to global customer
requirements. In January 2019, the Group established a joint venture
with CCV Group B.V. ("CCV"), one of the leading European payment
service and solution providers, focusing on the development of new
unattended payment solutions.

Looking ahead, PAX will continue to carry forward the spirit of
excellence for which our Group is renowned, devoting more resources
toward R&D of multi-functional all-in-one E-payment Terminals
solutions. The Group will also actively pursue merger and acquisition
("M&A") opportunities and strategic partnerships, creating greater value
for customers and shareholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my utmost gratitude to our customers, bankers, suppliers, business
associates and most valued shareholders for their continuing trust and
support for the Group, and to our directors, management and staff for
their commitment and valuable contribution in 2018.

Nie Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 March 2019
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FINANCIAL REVIEW B %% B B8

The key financial figures are extracted as follows: FTEUBHERBEAT

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—-HLFE
2018 2017

—E-NF ZT—+tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FAT +/(-)
Revenue WA 4,415,409 3,591,080 +23.0%
Gross profit EH 1,626,681 1,457,593 +11.6%
Other income Hu A 76,929 72,838 +5.6%
Selling expenses HERY (437,809) (426,432) +2.7%
Administrative expenses THEH (590,819)  (498,780) +18.5%
Net impairment losses on financial assets cREEZRBEFER (43,290) (43,220) +0.2%
Impairment of assets (one-off in 2017) BERME(ZZ—+4%F
— IR - (136,192) N/A TiE A
Profit before income tax B AT 1S R AT & 632,742 424,540 +49.0%
Income tax expense FTiS i = (117,344) (87,974) +33.4%
Profit for the year F 5 A 515,398 336,566 +53.1%
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company &R &4 HE A FEAG % 7 522,470 407,507 +28.2%
Research and development costs (included in MERAX (BEETH
administrative expenses) EAHA) (332,016)  (287,230) +15.6%
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H

2018 2017

ZE-NF —ZT—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT +/(-)
Total current assets MEEELRE 5,343,736 4,839,173 +10.4%
Total non-current assets ERBEEREAE 431,818 393,043 +9.9%
Total assets AEME 5,775,554 5,232,216 +10.4%
Total current liabilities mENBERRE 1,540,982 1,317,327 +17.0%
Total non-current liabilities FEnBBEERRE 21,964 17,823 +23.2%
Total liabilities BEAR 1,562,946 1,335,150 +17.1%
Net current assets MEEEFE 3,802,754 3,521,846 +8.0%
Total equity R BEE 4,212,608 3,897,066 +8.1%
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and Analysis

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-ZA=+—BLEE

2018 2017
—E-NF ZZT—+F +/(-)
PER SHARE (IN HK$) BsrR (Brx)
Earnings per share for the profit attributable ZAY/NCIES PN
to the owners of the Company i ) 8 B AR 2 A
- Basic —ER 0.475 0.367 +29.4%
~ Diluted —#5E 0.475 0.367 +29.4%
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEFE
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+F
FINANCIAL RATIOS Mgt %
Gross profit margin FEFH = 36.8% 40.6%
Net profit margin FFE 11.7% 9.4%

Revenue

Turnover increased by 23.0% or HK$824.3 million to HK$4,415.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 from HK$3,591.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017. Turnover from overseas markets
grew by HK$1,129.8 million to HK$3,732.3 million, representing a
growth of 43.4%. Turnover from the China Market decreased by
30.9% year-on-year or HK$305.5 million to HK$683.1 million.

i)  Sales by Geographical Region
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2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET

2,408,613 683,117 1,479,993

988,603

262,302 L] LACIS
o EMEA
85 @
Total 4851 380,990 Total #85T APAC
4,415,409 3,591,080 e | usca
254,723 o China Market
FETS

680,387

\ 258,477

609,284

For the year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=+—HLEE
2018 2017

—E-NFE —T—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET +(-)
Overseas markets BN S
— Latin America and the Commonwealth —#$7 T =N EE 2 E =X
of Independent States ("LACIS") ([LACIS 1) 2,408,613 1,479,993 +62.7%
— Europe, Middle East and Africa —BUM - AR R IEM
("EMEA") (TEMEA 1) 680,387 609,284 +11.7%
— Asia Pacific Region — G KE (BrA B AR RESN)
(Except for Mainland China) (TAPAC )
("APAC") 380,990 258,477 +47.4%
— United States of America and —EHEmZEKE
Canada Region ("USCA") (Tusca ) 262,302 254,723 +3.0%
3,732,292 2,602,477 +43.4%
China Market R T 5 683,117 988,603 -30.9%
Total @R 4,415,409 3,591,080 +23.0%
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ii)

Turnover generated from overseas markets increased by 43.4%
to HK$3,732.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
from HK$2,602.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.
Turnover generated from overseas markets accounted for 84.5%
of total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018, growing
from 72.5% for the year ended 31 December 2017. All overseas
business units recorded growth, especially the LACIS region.

Turnover generated from the China Market decreased by 30.9%
to HK$683.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018,
from HK$988.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.
The decrease was mainly due to the influence of the product mix
shifting and the continuously keen price competition.

Sales by Product Category
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For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—EBE-N\FE —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET +/(-)
E-payment Terminals BFETEIS 4,331,207 3,429,679 +26.3%
Services Rk 75 84,202 161,401 -47 8%
Total HARE 4,415,409 3,591,080 +23.0%
E-payment Terminals products EFXfIRIRER

E-payment Terminals products include smart E-payment Terminals, all-
in-one smart electronic cash register solution, traditional E-payment
Terminals, mobile E-payment Terminals, QR code E-payment Terminals
and other accessory items.

Turnover from the sales of E-payment Terminals products increased by
26.3% to HK$4,331.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
from HK$3,429.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
growth is attributed to the increase in sales in the overseas markets
during the year.
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Services
Services income consists of income generated from the provision of
maintenance and installation services and payment solutions services.

Turnover from services decreased by 47.8% to HK$84.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 from HK$161.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The decrease was mainly attributable to
the termination of the operation of the Group’s non-wholly owned
subsidiaries, Shanghai New Kashuo Information Technology Limited
(“Shanghai Kashuo”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Kashuo
Group”) in 2017.

Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2018 was 36.8%,
representing a decrease in 380 basis points as compared to 40.6% for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The decrease was mainly due to the
incentives given to long-term customers in overseas markets and the
keen price competition in China Market.

Other Income

Other income comprises primarily value-added tax refund, interest
income from time deposit and subsidy income. It increased slightly by
5.6% to HK$76.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 from
HK$72.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017, due to the
increase of interest income.

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses increased by 2.7% to HK$437.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018, from HK$426.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2017. Excluding Kashuo Group's selling expenses incurred
in prior period, the selling expenses grew generally in line with the
turnover growth.
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 18.5% to HK$590.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 from HK$498.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The increase was mainly due to the increase
in certification expenses and research and development (“R&D")
investment in the United States of America (the “US").

Net Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

The Group has recognised a provision for net impairment of receivables
of HK$43.3 million during the year, mainly in relation to the trade
receivables of certain customers in China. Detail is set out in Note 21 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Profit for the Year and Profit Attributable to the Owners of
the Company

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year was HK$515.4 million,
representing an increase of 53.1% compared to HK$336.6 million in
2017.

In 2018, profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
was HK$522.5 million, representing an increase of 28.2% as compared
to HK$407.5 million in 2017.

Other Event

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 16
November 2017, the disclosure in the Company’s 2017 annual report
and 2018 interim report concerning Kashuo Group.

In July 2018, a court of competent jurisdiction in Shanghai rendered
a civil ruling in acceptance of Shanghai Kashuo's application for
bankruptcy liquidation in accordance with the Enterprise Bankruptcy
Law of the People’s Republic of China. Should Shanghai Kashuo
liquidate, the Group is expected to recognise a potential gain of up to
approximately HK$60 million in reversal of its existing liabilities. As at 31
December 2018, the liquidation process was still underway.
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OVERVIEW

The Group is one of the global leading suppliers of E-payment Terminals
solutions, engaging in the R&D and sales of point-of-sale hardware
and related software applications, as well as a series of services such as
terminal deployments, repair and maintenance (collectively referred to as
the "E-payment Terminals solutions business”). The Group is renowned
for its cutting edge R&D capabilities, best-in-class product quality and
the industry’s widest and most innovative product portfolio.

The PAX brand image has been further enhanced since the launch of
the new generation innovative A-series family of Android terminals and
the E-series family of all-in-one smart electronic cash register. In addition
to basic payment and marketing functions, markets are pursuing more
valuable customer relationship management and data analysis tools. The
Group's smart terminals empower acquiring banks and payment service
providers to enhance their marketing capabilities, allow their merchants
to analyse consumer behavior data, enhance customer loyalty and
conduct target customer campaigns through the marketplace platform.
All of the A-series and E-series models have been PCl 5.x certified,
the highest specification security standard in the payment industry,
supporting a variety of alternative payment methods, including QR code
payments such as WeChat pay, Alipay, and NFC contactless payment.

The Group has established a strong global presence and continues to
take lead in the global market, delivering products and services to a
large customer base in over 100 countries, serving through an extensive
network of local sales offices, channel partners and reputable payment
system integrators.

Overseas markets

LACIS

In Latin America & CIS (the latter includes Russia and the
Commonwealth of Independent States), the Group recorded remarkable
revenue growth of over 50% in two consecutive years. Impressive sales
were achieved in Brazil, the largest economy in Latin America, where
smartphone penetration is undergoing significant growth, together with
mature card usage habits of Brazilians and the government’s initiatives
on payment, are fueling strong demand for PAX terminals from local
merchant acquiring organisations. PAX and our distributor have worked
closely with prestigious banks and payment service providers in Brazil,
some of which successfully launched IPOs in the United States during
2018, further strengthening the PAX brand image in the region. In
addition to having solid leading position in Brazilian mobile payment
terminals market, PAX's mobile traditional terminals are also highly
recognised by the market. In 2018, PAX has begun deploying new
generation Android smart terminals in Brazil, Mexico, Argentina and
other markets in LACIS.
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In Russia, the rollout of the national “Mir” payment system and the
2018 FIFA World Cup contributed to significant growth of the electronic
payment sector. According to the Central Bank of Russian Federation,
the number of E-payment Terminals nationwide reached 2,465,898 as
of October 2018, representing an increase of 12.6% when compared
with 2,189,060 units in 2017. PAX terminals played an important role in
payment during the 2018 FIFA World Cup, providing fans in and around
stadium locations with convenient cashless payments.

EMEA

Across Europe, the Middle East and Africa, the Group has further
strengthened its working relationship with acquiring banks and payment
service providers. In recent years, some payment terminal companies
operating in Europe have shifted their businesses focus towards the
merchant acquiring and transaction processing segments, which has
opened up opportunities for PAX to capture the terminal market share.
In 2018, PAX recorded steady sales growth in many European markets
including Italy, Belgium, Germany and Poland. Meanwhile, the Group
also obtained important certifications in France, Spain, Denmark, Italy
and the United Kingdom. Among these, the French Carte Bancaire 5.5
certification, the Italian PagoBANCOMAT certification and Common.
SECC approval in the United Kingdom, have contributed to an
important strategic breakthrough for the Group’s European business
expansion. Driven by ongoing technology upgrade of E-payment
Terminals, major acquiring banks are replacing older generation with the
more recent PCl 4.x and PCl 5.x versions, PAX has been experiencing
growing demand for its products in Europe. In the Middle East and
North Africa, PAX maintained its market leading position. In Egypt, PAX
has recorded large volume sales for the second consecutive year. The
Group continues to explore more opportunities in Western Africa, where
E-payment Terminals solutions are still relatively underdeveloped.

APAC

The Asia Pacific region provided steady growth for PAX, with further
expansion through the Group’s newly established subsidiaries in Japan
and India. Although cash payment is still the mainstream transaction
method in Japan, the 2019 Rugby World Cup, the 2020 Tokyo
Olympics, as well as the promotion of EMV migration and cashless
society by the local government, will drive the significant growth of the
Japanese payment market in the coming years.

Driven by Indian government’s “Digital India” initiative, PAX has
further partnered with numbers of the mainstream acquiring banks and
payment service companies and recorded a strong sales growth during
the year.
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Since the acquisition of Kwang Woo Information & Communication Co.,
Ltd., a Korean E-payment Terminals provider in 2017, the Group has
successfully expanded its global footprint to Korea and aims to further
scale up its business in the coming years.

USCA

According to the Nilson Report, an industry report, it is expected that
the total consumer payment in the United States will increase from
approximately US$10 trillion in 2017 to approximately US$13 trillion
in 2022. The proportion of card payments will increase from 62.3% to
70.4%.

PAX's comprehensive product line and reputation of high product
quality continue to be well received by merchants in North America.
In view of the growing emphasis by chain store retailers on customer
relationship management and data analytics, the Group increases
investment in R&D, continues to innovate and launch more diversified
E-payment solutions and management platform. In the past two years,
PAX launched the new generation E-Series which has proven to be very
popular with merchants across the region.

With increasing PAX brand recognition in the United States, the Group
has successfully partnered with many new clients. Meanwhile, PAX
has further strengthened the partnership with leading global merchant
acquirers which have begun rolling out PAX's Android smart terminals.

China Market

In 2018, the People’s Bank of China established NetsUnion Clearing
Corporation to monitor third-party online payment transactions,
and mandated that payment institutions should realise 100%
centralised deposit of clients’ pending payments by mid-January 2019.
Implementation of various reform policies would facilitate stable and
healthy development of Chinese payment industry. Since 2018, in
particular in the second half of the year, the escalating international
trade disputes have created uncertainty in the Chinese economy,
domestic companies have been facing unprecedented challenges.
The Group will continue to closely monitor and evaluate the rapidly
changing market environment, as well as credit risk status of customers.
In 2018, PAX established a dedicated China Business Unit, with its
own independent R&D, sales and marketing resources to strategically
respond to the rapidly evolving Chinese market.
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MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

The Group adheres to a corporate culture of continuous innovation and
excellence, adopting a customer-centric approach to deliver remarkable
payment experience for customers worldwide. Amid rapid payment
industry development, the Group continues to prioritise R&D as the
main focus of enterprise development, introducing more advanced
secure E-payment Terminals to meet different market needs.

PAX has further increased investment in payment software and
platforms to facilitate customers with sales and marketplace
management, strengthening their loyalty to PAX's brand. PAXSTORE, the
Group's payment service solution, has been launched in many countries
worldwide.

Looking forward, PAX will continue to adopt an open and innovative
approach to working with global customers and partners, exploring
further strategic cooperation and synergies. PAX will also continue to
invest in its product roadmap, with particular focus on the highly flexible
all-in-one Android smart terminals, enabling customisation of payment
solutions to meet the specific needs of different business scenarios.
Meanwhile, the Group will work closely with merchant acquirers and
distributors, to continue to develop more innovative software and
solutions for merchants globally.

Mergers & Acquisitions

With the aim of enhancing corporate value, the Group continues to
proactively pursue a variety of mergers and acquisitions investment
opportunities. PAX will expand its diversified solutions, explore payment-
related innovations, as well as further develop sales channels and
new markets to strengthen its international business footprint. In
January 2019, the Group established a joint venture with CCV Group
B.V. (“CCV"), one of Europe's largest payment service and solution
providers, focusing on the development of new payment technologies,
specifically on the development of unattended self-service terminals
for public transportation, petroleum forecourts, parking and vending
machines. The cooperation will achieve synergies by collaborating
with CCV's expertise in hardware specifications and development, and
software integration with third party solutions while leveraging PAX's
global sales network.

China is now at the forefront of the world’s financial technology. The
Group has further increased its investment in a Beijing based fund to
Renminbi (“RMB") 85 million. Through this fund, PAX invests in high-
quality emerging technology projects and start-ups to strengthen the
Group’s competitive advantages in financial technology to capture the
huge business opportunities in China’s payment industry.

EEE R

7 52 B B2 45 T T 837 K25 SRR 10 2 2 S AL 4
% AR ROABREATL  ARREPRMS
WS AER - SHTSERAFAR ALE
BEELTERANACEERER BEE
SERNEEETLHEE WER TS TR
DEE

AEfE— S NAREINEENTEHEA
U EFHETHEREAEE Nt MY
AENNE ASEHEOINRBEE RS R
PAXSTORE ' B RIE R 2 ERZ AR K& AR ©

REAR BERBETERZEREPLAERH
UFRRAEIF NS RREZBBEAENTHR
HE-BETREERNERCEERFAE B
AESEBREEMEN BRI EERE /T
FAEMSSHEENATBROASHRTE-
R AEESEBKRERER D EEEZAE
BESEHNBAFPAZREZ AN INRIELR
FRORTTER

BHRESEE
AREBRBEHESRKITAFRANHENIEEKS
WRACEEE BE=EBRBEZ TICME R
R FRRIMBEBEMNBIF T WRAHEERE
LHEEFTE KRN MEEBREEKRE - —F
—h&F— A AEEEFN&Z KN ARE &
iR =M fER 2 —CCV Group B.V. ([CCV])
BRMYAERE BERMAEIOIAEN &
SHEREANAERE AL EESENAEH
EEHMNERBERFE - BICCVERH
R - BHRABRNEE=RRTENEFE
REMOEENG A= BHEHNES
P EHHNAEBERBRRE-

TEESRBMRESEEE RS NEE IR
MARER —HURIERNES BRIRER
HRSHBARB -OEERLESRERE
FELEMIEE RMAIDLE B AKEESR
R @S - AEER BT RRARNEH -

EERRREERAT  —®-\EEH @7



g

Management Discussion and Analysis

SR8 2 51 5m 5 73 ifr

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the years of 2018 and 2017, the main source of funding to the
Group was the proceeds generated from operating activities in the usual
course of business of the Company. Certain financial data is summarised
as follows:

RZE-N\RZT—tFE AEENTEER
ERBRARB —REEEDTEERMELDN
WA B THBHEESGANT :

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—EBE-N\E —T—+F
Current ratio (times) MENLE R (F) 3.5 3.7
Quick ratio (times) RENEE (F) 2.7 3.0

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents and
short-term bank deposits of HK$2,162.7 million (2017: HK$2,165.2
million) and borrowings of HK$8.2 million (2017: HK$14.4 million).
As at 31 December 2018, the Group reported net current assets of
HK$3,802.8 million, as compared with HK$3,521.8 million as at 31
December 2017. For the year ended 31 December 2018, net cash
generated from operating activities was HK$198.3 million, as compared
with HK$214.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
gearing ratio (defined as total debt divided by total capital) was 0.2%
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 0.4%). The gearing ratio is considered
healthy and suitable for the continuous growth of the Group's business.

Capital Structure and Details of Charges

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had borrowings of HK$8.2 million
(2017: HK$14.4 million) and banking facilities of approximately HK$11.9
million (2017: HK$18.0 million). The borrowings were used in the
operation in Korea and denominated in Korean Won (“WON"). The
borrowings of HK$8.2 million (2017: HK$10.7 million) were secured by
the land and buildings of a Korean subsidiary of the Company.

Approximately HK$1,385.2 million, HK$169.6 million, HK$537.4 million,
HK$57.8 million and HK$10.2 million (2017: HK$1,202.7 million,
HK$516.0 million, HK$396.7 million, HK$42.3 million and HK$7.6
million) of the Group's cash balances were denominated in RMB, Hong
Kong dollar ("HK$"), US dollar (“US$"), European dollar (“EUR") and
other currencies respectively as at 31 December 2018.
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Significant Investment
The Group had no significant investment as at 31 December 2018
(2017: Nil).

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries, Associates
and Joint Ventures

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil).

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets
There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as
at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

Exchange Rates Exposure

The Group derives its turnover, makes purchases and incurs expenses
denominated mainly in RMB, HK$, US$ and EUR. The majority of assets
and liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$, US$ and EUR and there
are no significant assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies.
Currently, the Group has not entered into agreements or purchased
instruments to hedge the Group's exchange rate risks. Any material
fluctuation in the exchange rates of HK$ or RMB may have an impact on
the operating results of the Group.

The management considers that the foreign exchange risk with respect
to US$ is not significant as HK$ is pegged to US$ and transactions
denominated in US$ are mainly carried out by entities with the same
functional currency. The exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group manages foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil).
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Human Resources and Remuneration Policies ANERRFHBE
The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+_A=+—H AEEEER
was 1,723. The following table shows a breakdown of employees of #&1,723 A TEX#HIIAR ZZT—N\F+=H
the Group by functions as at 31 December 2018: T —HREBEI S NZEEERE
Management ERE 13
Sales and after-sales services and marketing HERSERBARTSHEE 482
Research and development fiff s 827
Quality assurance = 39
Administration and human resources TERREADEIR 46
Accounting &5t 33
Production, procurement and inventory control AE KB RIFEES 283
1,723

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages are comprehensive
and competitive from time to time. Employees are remunerated with
fixed monthly income plus annual performance related bonuses. Share
options are granted to certain employees of the Group to reward their
contributions under share option schemes, details of which are set
out in the Report of the Directors. The Group also sponsors selected
employees to attend external training courses that suit the needs of the
Group's business.

Disclaimer:
Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles) measures are
used for assessing the Group's performance. These non-GAAP measures are
not expressly permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies. Accordingly, such
non-GAAP measures should not be considered as an alternative to operating
income as an indicator of the operating performance of the Group or as an
alternative to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of liquidity.
The use of non-GAAP measures is provided solely to enhance the overall
understanding of the Group current financial performance. Additionally because
the Group has historically reported certain non-GAAP results to investors, the
Group considers the inclusion of non-GAAP measures provides consistency in our
financial reporting.
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Corporate Governance Report

EXREBHRS

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of the Board in
ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company, transparency
and accountability of all aspects of operations and that its business is
conducted in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company also recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the Group’s needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”)
in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

In formulating its corporate governance practices, the Company has
applied the Principles and complied with all applicable Code Provisions
for the year.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance or compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and employees’ compliance manual to ensure
that the Group’s operations are conducted in accordance with the
standards of the CG Code and applicable disclosure requirements.
Directors and senior management are provided with appropriate
ongoing training, continuing professional development for regular
updates of the legal and regulatory requirements relevant to their
duties.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted a code regulating the securities transaction of
Directors and executive officers named in this annual report, on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all Directors and they have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year and
up to the date of this report.
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The Company has also established written guidelines regulating the
transactions of securities of the Company by senior management and
employees who are likely to be in possession of any inside information
of the Company.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors make
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board reserves its powers over decision of all major matters which
include, inter alia, the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those which may involve
conflict of interests of substantial shareholder(s) or Director(s)), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial
and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board papers
and relevant information, as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary(ies), with a view to ensuring that Board procedures
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

Upon request to the Board, each Director may seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances to assist with the
discharge of his/her duties as a director at the Company’s expense.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. Clear directions as
to the powers, scope of delegation and relevant arrangements were
given to the senior management and subject to periodic review to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.

Reporting to the Board and prior approval of the Board are necessary
before the senior management entering into any material transactions
and assuming significant commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to discharge
its responsibilities.
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Composition
The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspective
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Group.

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
members upholds the effective exercise of independent judgement of
the Board.

The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

NIE Guoming (Chairman)

LU Jie (Chief Executive Officer)
LI Wenijin

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

An updated list of Directors (by category) identifying their role and
function is maintained on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s
websites.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship
between the members of the Board, in particular, between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive, if any, are provided in the “Directors
and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for the
appointment and succession planning of Directors.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and subject to re-election at the
annual general meeting.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years, commencing from 23 May 2016
for Mr. Lu Jie and 1 December 2016 for Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Li
Wenijin, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms of
the respective service contracts.
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Training for Directors

Newly appointed Directors receive induction on the occasion of his/her
appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of
the business and operations of the Company and is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities under applicable laws, rules and regulations and the
Group's various governance and internal control policies. The Company
also, at its expense, arranges and provides suitable training, placing
an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged and funded in-house trainings for Directors
in the form of physical seminar and provision of training materials. A
summary of training received by the Directors during the year ended 31
December 2018 according to the records as provided by the Directors is
as follows:

Name of Directors

B2
MZEEFNEZERESHBNE BRI
RE THRARAERMEF h2E TEER
ERER RESERARAEBREER
NEPEIEBR THOBE - N KRB TRAEH
P RREENAE NEABENEENR
PER B A EAOIE -

ARREBEREF2EFEZRER AT
REEHBERENTILEE - ARBDBEBE
TEEMHN @ RERBIENRESLHRE
YRR El - RIBEFRENTES EFREE
—E - N\FT A=+t BLEFERZNEI
MEOT

Training on
regulatory updates,
corporate governance,
inside information or
other relevant topics

EREH EER-
REEER

BEEHS H b A BE = EHE I
Executive Directors HITESE
Nie Guoming 7 B B v/
Lu Jie B A v
Li Wenijin Eg 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHTES
Yip Wai Ming ESIoAiE 4
Wu Min 2 ® 4
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles B v
Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities EERGHABENEE

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against the Directors and officers against losses
or liabilities sustained or incurred arising from or incidental to execution
of their duties. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis or
any intervals as deemed appropriate by the Board.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year, four regular Board meetings were held at approximately
quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving the financial and
operating performance, the final results for the year ended 31
December 2017, quarterly results for the three months ended 31 March
2018, interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2018 and results
for the nine months ended 30 September 2018, and considering,
reviewing or approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the four regular
quarterly Board meetings (not including other ad hoc Board meetings
held from time to time and any other meeting(s) of members of
the Board in compliance with the CG Code), meetings of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and, Remuneration Committee and
general meeting during the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out
below:

ESSERRESHERR
FRANEBFTELRTHAAOR ﬁﬁﬁ%éé%

NEH ML EM R EERR  MBEE-_F—t
F+-A=+— Eii&ﬁﬁiiﬁﬁ BHE—
Z-NF=ZA=t—-HIE=ERNFEXHE "

BHE-_T-N\FARA=TRHIERERNHRHE
Zi&%zi_gf/\ihﬂiﬂLE!thﬂlﬁﬁ’J%

CIARE R FEHRIEAR R B EBRE MK
gﬁo

BEENHE_FT-\F+_A=+—HLHF
EHFEOEEREEEFESH (TEREAM
TREBETHIEMEEEEZAREBELEER
#WWi%AWEmEHﬁm &) BERZE
EeH REREEER FHZESERI MK
%ﬁ?%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁWmT-

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BELE/BTRE

Audit Nomination Remuneration Regular
Committee  Committee ~ Committee Board General
Meetings Meeting Meeting Meetings* Meeting

EVZEE REZEE FMHZEE ERESS
Name of Directors EEps - =6 = g%  REKE
Nie Guoming = EH NARER  NATER  NATER 4/4 11
Lu Jie EAR NARER  NATER  NATER 4/4 1”7
Li Wenjin EXE N/A i 17 n 4/4 7
Yip Wai Ming ZEH 22 1/1 11 4/4 1/1
Wu Min R 212 17 I 4/4 n
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles L 22 NADMER  NATER 4/4 17

* Not all Directors were required to attend the rest of the meetings which ~ * WHEBEEHELRETZREZELILEH

mainly dealt with the consideration and approval of ordinary business
transactions.

During the year, the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors.

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings
Annual meeting schedules and agendas are made available to the
Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings have been served to all Directors at
least fourteen days in advance. Reasonable notice, as permitted by the
Bye-laws of the Company under relevant circumstances or otherwise
agreed, has been given for other Board and committee meetings.
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The Company Secretary(ies), as delegated by the Chairman, are
responsible for preparing the agendas of board meetings, taking into
account any matters the Directors may propose to include, ensuring that
all Directors are given opportunity to include matters in the agendas
and approving the agendas. In order to enable the Directors to make
informed decision, agendas and accompanying board papers, together
with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all
Directors or all committees members at least three days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised
of the latest developments and/or financial position of the Company.
The Board and the individual Directors also have independent access to
the senior management to make further enquires or when they require
further information, in addition to those volunteered by the senior
management.

The Company Secretary(ies) attended all regular Board meetings and,
when necessary, other Board and committee meetings to advise on
statutory compliance, corporate governance matters and to ensure that
the Company’s policies and procedures were properly followed.

The Company Secretary(ies) is responsible for preparing and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. The minutes
recorded sufficient details of matters considered, decisions reached,
concerns raised and dissenting views expressed, if any. Draft and final
versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors for comment and
records within a reasonable time after each meeting. The final version
is kept by the Company Secretary(ies) and open for the Directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction or matter
which involves conflicting interests of a substantial shareholder or a
Director, are dealt with by a duly convened physical Board meeting, at
which independent non-executive Directors having no material interest
in the transaction should be present. Any Directors or any of their close
associates having material interests in the transaction or matter shall
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving such transactions.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles and responsibilities of Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Lu Jie
respectively as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company (the "CEQ") have been clearly divided and defined. The
clear division of the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of business ensures a balanced power and authority such
that no concentration of power should vest in any one individual.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practices and establishes corporate governance procedures. With the
support of the Company Secretary(ies) and the senior management, the
Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive in
a timely manner adequate information, which must be accurate, clear,
complete and reliable, and appropriate briefing on issues arising at
Board meetings, and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by
the Board in a timely manner.

The Chairman also encourages the Directors to fully and actively
participate in the Board’s affairs, taking the lead to assure that the
Board acts in the best interests of the Company. The Chairman also
promotes a culture to facilitate effective contributions and encourages
the Directors to express dissenting views and concerns and allow
sufficient discussion of issues before decisions are made.

The CEO focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s
day-to-day management and operations and is also responsible for
developing strategic plans, formulating and reviewing the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and processes for the
Board's approval.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors possess a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and, through participation
in board meetings, offer independent judgement on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standard of conducts. Through taking the lead where potential conflicts
of interests arise, serving on the Board committees, examining the
Company's performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives
and monitoring performance reporting, the independent non-executive
Directors has become an integral part of the healthy growth of the
Company.

During the year, the independent non-executive Directors also attended
the annual general meeting of the Company, details of which are set
out on page 29, enabling them to develop a balanced understanding of
the views of the shareholders.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yip Wai
Ming, Dr. Wu Min and Mr. Man Kwok Kuen, Charles, was appointed
for a contractual term of one year subject to renewal on a yearly basis
and re-election in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws. Such term
shall be terminated: (i) by either party giving the other not less than
two months’ written notice; or (ii) forthwith without compensation, on
ground of disqualification, gross or willful misconduct or negligence of
such Director, or any failure of passing a resolution by the shareholders
of the Company to be re-elected as a Director, whichever is earlier.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board at all times met
the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors, representing half of the Board and with
at least one of the independent non-executive Directors possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company confirms that it has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director concerning his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing specific aspects of the Company's affairs.
Each Board committee was established with defined written terms
of reference setting out its authorities and duties and requiring the
Board Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations (unless otherwise restricted by applicable legal
or regulatory requirements). To provide transparency, the terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s and
the Stock Exchange’s websites and hard copies of the same are available
to shareholders upon request.

Each Board committee consists of a majority of and is respectively
chaired by an independent non-executive Director. Chairman and
members of each Board committee as at the date of this report are set
out below:

Audit Committee

AYIP Wai Ming (Chairman)
AWU Min

*MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Nomination Committee
WU Min (Chairman)
AYIP Wai Ming

*LI Wenjin

Remuneration Committee
AYIP Wai Ming (Chairman)
AWU Min

*LI Wenjin

s Independent non-executive Director
* Executive Director

The Board committees have been provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 1 December
2010. The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors (including at least one member possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee
is a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include, among others, the
followings:

(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company's staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or external auditor before submission to the
Board;

(b)  to review the Company's relationship with the external auditor
with reference to the work its performed, its fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and, if appropriate, removal of
external auditor;

(©) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, the Group's financial control, internal
control and risk management systems, including but not limited
to adequacy of resources available to its respective functions, staff
qualifications and experience and training programmes; and

(d) to consider and identify risks of the Group and consider
effectiveness of the Group’s decision making processes in crisis
and emergency situations and approve major decisions affecting
the Group's risk profile or exposure.

The written terms of reference describing the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee was prepared and adopted with reference to the
CG Code and “A Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2018 to review half-yearly and annual financial results and
reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal control
and risk management systems, effectiveness of internal audit function,
the auditor’s independence and objectivity. Full minutes of the meetings
are duly kept and draft and final versions of the same have been sent
to all committee members for comment and records, within reasonable
time afterwards in accordance with the relevant Code Provisions. The
Audit Committee also met with the Company’s auditor twice during the
year and recommended the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers
as the Company's external auditor and the Board has taken no
different view in respect of the Audit Committee’s recommended re-
appointment.
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At the end of 2018 and the date of this report, there are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2018
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board on 1
December 2010 and comprises two independent non-executive
Directors (one of whom being the chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and one executive Director. Its terms of reference was
prepared and adopted with reference to the CG Code and its principal
duties include the review of the structure, size and composition of the
Board, developing and formulating relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships based on the balance of
expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of such individuals, business requirements of
the Group and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
External recruitment agency may also be engaged to carry out the
recruitment and selection process when necessary. It has been an
underpinning philosophy of the Company to maintain diversified
selection criteria in its hiring process, taking into account a wide range
of attributes including age, educational background, professional
experience, industry skills and expertise and such policy was reduced
to writing in 2014. Since its establishment, the Nomination Committee
has assumed the roles of reviewing such diverse selection policy at the
nomination level and maintaining a diversified spectrum of Directors
with varying perspectives, educational background and expertise,
ranging from in-depth knowhow in the payment industry, sales
and marketing talents to professional qualifications in the legal and
accounting fields. Each Director has accumulated experience in his
respective field of expertise for at least 10 to 30 years. Regardless of
their background or experience, the Directors commonly share and
acquire the talent and competence to drive the development of the
industry and these are the ultimate attributes that the Nomination
Committee will uphold and carry through in the talent selection process.
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To facilitate sustainable and balanced development of the Company,
the Nomination Committee has adopted a board diversity policy (the
"Diversity Policy”), which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
of the Board. Under the Diversity Policy, the appointment and/or
recommendation for appointment will be based on objective criteria,
having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board, including,
among others, the candidates’ gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. Decisions of the Nomination Committee are made
based on the merits and contribution of the selected candidates.

The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and
procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director. The selection
criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter alia,
his/her academic background and professional qualifications, relevant
experience in the industry, character and integrity and whether he/she
can contribute to the diversity of the Board as detailed in the Diversity
Policy. The procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director is
summarised as follows:—

- nomination and invitation of suitable candidates by any member
of the Nomination Committee or the Board;

- evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on all selection
criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy;

- performing due diligence in respect of each candidate and making
recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval;

- in case of nomination of an independent non-executive Director,
assessing the candidate’s independence under the relevant Code
Provisions and the Listing Rules;

- where nominating an independent non-executive Director for
election at general meetings, having due consideration of matters
under Code Provision A.5.5;

- in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors, reviewing
the candidate’s overall contribution and performance and making
recommendations to the Board and/or the shareholders for
consideration in connection with his/her re-election at general
meetings; and

- convening a meeting of the Board to consider the appointment or
re-appointment of the candidate as a Director.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2018 to, amongst others, (i) review the structure, size,
diversity and composition of the Board; (ii) assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors; (iii) consider and make
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment and re-election
of the retiring Directors and (iv) review and recommend the continuing
adoption of the Diversity Policy.

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Lu lJie, the Chief Executive
Officer and an executive Director, and Mr. Yip Wai Ming, an
independent non-executive Director, shall retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the for the coming 2019
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM").

Upon the annual review of the Board’s composition taking into account
the Diversity Policy and the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, the Nomination Committee formed the view
that the Board has maintained an appropriate mix and balance of
skills, knowledge, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the business requirements of the Company and the
independent non-executive Directors remain independent in the
context of the Listing Rules. Taking into account the aforesaid and
each of the retiring Directors’ confirmation to give sufficient time and
attention to the Company’s affairs subsequent to the re-appointment,
the Nomination Committee made a recommendation to the Board for
consideration the standing for re-election at the AGM of the aforesaid
retiring Directors, namely Mr. Lu Jie and Mr. Yip Wai Ming. The
Board, taking into account the recommendation and other factors as
considered relevant, has decided to further recommend Mr. Lu Jie and
Mr. Yip Wai Ming to stand for re-election at the AGM.

The Company’s circular dated 28 March 2019 contains detailed
information of the retiring Directors standing for re-election.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 1
December 2010. Its terms of reference was prepared and adopted with
reference to the CG Code and its primary objectives and duties include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy,
structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management and compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
is determined with reference to the performance of the individual and
the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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The Remuneration Committee normally meets to review the
remuneration policy and structure and determine the annual
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management
and other related matters. The human resources department is
responsible for collection and administration of the human resources
data and proposing the remuneration structure and remuneration
packages of the individual executive Director and senior management
to the Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consider and consult the Chairman and/or the
Board about these proposals. The Remuneration Committee held
one meeting during the year ended 31 December 2018 to review
and recommend the remuneration packages of the Directors and the
senior management, to establish a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy for the remuneration of the Directors, assess the
performance of the executive Directors and approve the terms of their
respective service contracts.

The remuneration payable to the members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

FTHZEe MU EHFMBRRRERARE
TEFENEREEABFEFMFERA M
MEBRTEZ ANERBMAARLERE
BANERBE YRFMEEEENRNTE
EREREEABZFHGERTHNZESH
s UWHEEZE -FMEZE2BIRTER
EHZBRBAIRER LEES -FMEE
EREBE_FT -/ \FT_A=+T—"RHLFEZ
BIT—R&F UNBEHEERSREEENF
Bt iRfER A EETHFMBEI L
EHMEERAENREFRFBRATEETRRLK
HOEE R B RB A DER -

RBE_Z-\F+_A=+—RHILFEKRA
MBI ZENEREREAEHFMEINT

Number of
individuals
Remuneration bands N A B A8
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 2

Further particulars relating to Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to
the Listing Rules are set out in Note 10 and Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties and determining the relevant policies of the Company, which
includes formulating and reviewing the Group’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of the Directors and the
senior management, reviewing and monitoring the Group's policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
formulating, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct, guidelines
and compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors, and
reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in
this Corporate Governance Report.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board and the Directors

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and complying with other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 61 to 69.

Senior Management

The senior management has provided the Board with sufficient
explanation and necessary information enabling the Board to make an
informed assessment of financial and other information put before the
Board for approval.

Monthly updates have also been provided by the senior management
to all members of the Board to enable proper discharge of duties by the
Board as a whole or each member individually by giving them balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company's performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control, risk assessment
and management systems and has overall responsibility for reviewing
and maintaining an adequate and effective risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders
and the assets of the Group. It evaluates the effectiveness of the systems
at least annually to ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The risk management and internal control systems of the Company
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against all risk issues. We have employed a bottom-
up approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of risk at all
business unit levels and across all functional areas.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks

During the process of risk assessment, the Audit Committee identifies
the risk of the Group and deciding on the risk levels and the Board
shall assess and determine the nature and extent of the risks that are
acceptable to the Group when achieving its strategic objectives. Taking
into consideration the risk response, i.e. the necessary risk mitigating
measures, the relevant departments and business units shall be assigned
to implement the risk management solutions in accordance with their
respective roles and responsibilities. The identified risk together with
the risk response will be recorded at the risk register and subject to the
Board's oversight.

Main features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company include the establishment of a risk register to keep
track of and record identified risks, the assessment and evaluation
of risks, the development and continuous updating of responsive
procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control procedures to
ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk assessment approach is adopted by the Company
for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the
achievement of its objectives. The judgement of the risk is mainly
determined in accordance with the likelihood of occurrence and
consequence of occurrence of the risk, which can be categorised into
3 classes, classifying the degree of risk impact as: Minor (1), Moderate
(2) and Significant (3), and the probability of occurrence of risk as:
Unlikely (1), Possible (2) and Likely (3). The risk degrees reflect the level
of management’s attention and risk treatment effort required.
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Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management & Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations, and in order
to adopt the most cost-effective method of conducting periodic reviews
of the Company’s internal controls, designated internal audit personnels
("IA Personnels”) worked with an independent consulting firm (the
“Internal Control Auditor”) to execute the internal audit function.
During the year, the Internal Control Auditor has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems in accordance with the requirements under Code Provision C.2
of the CG Code, according to the scope of review agreed and approved
by the IA Personnels.

The Internal Control Auditor reported to the IA Department and the IA
Personnels was satisfied that there had been no major deficiency noted
in the areas of the Group's risk management and internal controls
systems being reviewed after implementation of recommendations of
the internal control defects reported by the Internal Control Auditor.
The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures and cooperates with
the IA Personnels to ensure the IA Personnels has access to information
necessary to fulfil their duties and responsibilities with respect to risk
assessment and risk management. Accordingly, the Audit Committee
and the Board considered during the year, the risk management and
internal control systems to be effective and have been implemented
with adequate resources during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board has established a policy for handling and dissemination
of inside information (the “Inside Information Policy”). The Inside
Information Policy stipulates the obligations of the Group, restriction
on sharing non-public information, handling of rumours, unintentional
selective disclosure, exemptions and statutory waiver to the disclosure of
inside information, external communication guidelines and compliance
and reporting procedures. Management of the Company takes all
reasonable measures from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent breach of any disclosure obligations. Employees are
required to promptly bring any possible leakage or divulgence of
inside information to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer, or his
delegates, who will notify the Board timely and accordingly, in which
case and in the event that there is evidence of material violation of the
Inside Information Policy, the Board will decide, or designate appropriate
persons to decide the course of actions for rectifying the problem and
avoiding recurrence.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company in
respect of the Group’s annual audit services, audit services for the
subsidiaries of the Company and non-audit services for the year
ended 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$1,720,000,
HK$333,000 and HK$780,000 respectively.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

(@) Procedures for Requisitioning a Special General
Meeting
Shareholder(s) holding as at the date of deposit of the requisition
for a special general meeting not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company and the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, require the Directors to call a special general meeting
for the transaction of business specified in the requisition.

(b) Procedures for Putting forward Proposals at General
Meetings
Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders
may together, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put
forward proposals at general meetings.

() Communication with Shareholders and Investors

General Meetings

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of
communication between Shareholders and the Board. The
Company held one general meeting, being the 2018 AGM, during
the year. Notice of the 2018 AGM was duly sent in accordance
with the requirements under the Listing Rules and applicable laws.
All members of the Board attended the 2018 AGM and adequate
measures were taken to provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views are effectively communicated
to the Board as a whole. At the 2018 AGM, the Directors were
made available to answer questions in accordance with the
requirements under the CG Code. The Company’s external auditor
also attended the 2018 AGM to answer any questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies applied and its independence.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

B BTN &

AR E_E—\F+_A=+T—HLF
ENAEBFEZERY ASEHNB QA%
RS K IEZ R MmN EAZ B 8
B & 5 Bl 49 41,720,000 7~ 333,000/ 7T &
780,000 7T °

BRENRREEBE
(@) ERBHRRBIAGZRF

RIEHZFBHBAAIRARABRRAE
FIERAEZ AR BHERAT DR+
DZ— 2R AIREARTZ AR
EARE-NN—FRAVE RAEFGX
NAMERIERECENZF  BRE
FZAMBRFRIREG  AREZEFEMI
2R

(b) RBRRERAELRZEZZER

BEAIRARRBEAS EITHERFIEZ
ARBBABRAT LR Z+ 59— ZBRE
TLRI00EREEREE  IREER
E—AN—FRaE AATMERHE
SEZEMER URBERS LREEE
FERARERE-

(0 ERREREENER

BEAE
ARAHBERAESRREEFTERM
ERABENTE ARANAFELET
—RBRREg AT \FRRAEFAKX
T \FRREFASREERE
ERRARBEREEME LR L - 28
EEENEHER-_T-N\FREAFK
g BARBERBMED it RBIREMH
BREBRRENERCRE L RERS
BREB - BEECRBLEE ATAHE
T2 N\ERFEFAGUEERE -
ARBIIBZBETEET —F— \FRK
RBFARG NOEEMERER ZH
AR ENRENAR BRANEFTBEREK
B M e o

1))
o



Corporate Governance Report

EXREBHRS

Other Communications
Shareholders may also contact the Company Secretary(ies) to
direct their written enquires.

The Company is committed to enhancing communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Board regularly reviews the Company’s shareholders
communication policy (which has been made available at the
Company'’s website) to ensure that the Shareholders and potential
investors at large are provided with ready, equal and timely access
to balanced and understandable information about the Company,
including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments, corporate governance and risk profile,
in order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and to allow active Shareholders’ engagement
with the Company.

The Company also maintains a website at www.paxglobal.com.hk,

where updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information and news can always be found.

Constitutional Documents
There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year and up to the date of this report.

On behalf of the Board

NIE Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 March 2019
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Report of the Directors
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in the development and sales of E-payment
Terminals products and the provision of payment solutions services and
maintenance and installation services.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical
segments is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading Asian E-payment Terminals solutions provider and
one of the most active global players. The Group was founded in 2000
and the Company went listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in December 2010. The strategy of PAX
is to focus on two key particular customer groups (financial institutions
and third-party merchant acquirers) by offering various integrated
payment solutions services.

Further details of the business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018, details of proposed dividends and discussion on the
Group's future business development are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement section on pages 9 to 11 and Management Discussion and
Analysis section on pages 12 to 24. Particulars of any important event
affecting the Group can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis section on pages 12 to 24 and the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

The aforementioned references under this sub-section to other parts of
this annual report form part of the Report of the Directors.

POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Exchange Rates
Exposure” in Management Discussion and Analysis, the Group faces
possible risks and uncertainties in relation to the constantly advancing
technology, the international trade dispute and the possible change in
government policies in the payment industry in the PRC, which could
lead to pricing pressure, reduced operating margins, loss of market
share and increased capital expenditures. The Group will closely monitor
any changes in connection with these possible risks and uncertainties
and adjust its strategies accordingly. Meanwhile, the Group continues
to invest resources in R&D to develop new products and offer advanced
payment solutions to customers in order to remain competitive.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group values the importance of protecting the environment in
the process of operation. As the Group’s business does not involve
production lines, major wastes comprise terminal machines and tools
to be disposed of post customer consumption. To mitigate the adverse
impact on the environment, waste machines and tools are transferred to
government-recognised recycling companies for undergoing electronic
waste recycling and decomposition. In recent years, we have also
strengthened the green office concept by promoting paperless office,
use of energy-saving electrical appliances such as LED light pipes and
inductive faucets, wastes classification and recycling, and encouraging
video conferencing in place of physical business trips to reduce energy
consumption and carbon footprint.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group seeks to uphold high standard of integrity in all aspects
of business and is committed to ensure that its affairs are conducted
in accordance with applicable laws and regulatory requirements
and has formulated and adopted various internal control measures,
approval procedures and training within all business units at all levels
of the Group. During the year, there has been no violation or breach
of relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the
Company.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group emphasises on maintaining good relationship with its
stakeholders and considers it a key element to sustainable business
growth.

Employees

The Group has always been people-oriented and has attached great
importance to human resource management. We attract excellent
talents through fair recruitment policy and provide employees with
training opportunities, good career development prospect and growth
opportunities. From time to time, we offer our employees remuneration
packages that are comprehensive and attractive. Some employees
are granted options under the Company’'s share option scheme in
recognition of their contribution. We also value our employee’s physical
and mental development. Diverse events and activities are organised for
the employees for fostering work-life balance and personal growth.
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Customers

The Group is committed to offering our customers products and services
to the best of our ability. We highly value comments and suggestions of
our customers and have always maintained effective communications
with the customers. We will continue to reach out for current and
prospective customers through, inter-alia, on-site visits and major
customers satisfaction surveys. We believe that customers’ feedback
would help us to identify areas of improvement and advance us to
achieve excellence.

Suppliers

Maintaining good relationship with suppliers is essential to the Group's
business performance and growth because suppliers can have direct
influence over the quality of the products and services and customer
satisfaction. We adopt a “Management Measures for Suppliers” in
respect of the supplier selection procedures, quality testing methods and
comprehensive appraisal and evaluation system on potential and existing
suppliers and their products and performance. We are committed
to establishing a close and long-term cooperation relationship with
business partners.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 70.

DIVIDEND

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group's future development to
be an objective. Under the policy on payment of dividends adopted
by the Company, dividends may be recommended, declared and paid
to shareholders from time to time. In summary, The declaration of
dividends and the dividend amount shall be determined at the sole
and absolute discretion of the Board taking into account the following
factors:—

o Group’s financial results and general financial condition;

. the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio and return on equity;
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° liquidity position and capital requirement of the Group;
° the Group's current and future operations;

° the Group's business development strategies and future expansion
plans;

. the general market conditions;

° any relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company; and

o any other factors that the Board considers relevant.

During the year, a final dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary share for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and an interim dividend of HK$0.04 per
ordinary share for the six months ended 30 June 2018, each amounting
to approximately HK$44.0 million, were paid to the shareholders of the
Company.

The Board has recommended a payment of final dividend of HK$0.04
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2018 (year ended
31 December 2017: HK$0.04 per ordinary share) to shareholders of
the Company whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company at the close of business on Tuesday, 14 May 2019, subject to
the approval of shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company which will be held on Thursday, 2 May
2019, and if passed, the final dividend will be paid to the shareholders
of the Company on Wednesday, 29 May 2019. For determining the
entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Friday, 10 May 2019 to Tuesday,
14 May 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 9 May 2019. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.04
per ordinary share (six months ended 30 June 2017: HK$0.04 per
ordinary share), the total dividend per ordinary share for the year was
HK$0.08 (2017: HK$0.08).
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RECORD DATE FOR DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM

Record date (being the last date for registration of any share transfer
given there will be no book closure) for determining the entitlement of
the shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the AGM will
be Thursday, 25 April 2019. All transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 25 April
2019.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations of HK$1,005,000 were made by the Group during
the year (2017: HK$868,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme adopted by a resolution
of the Board on 1 December 2010 (the “Scheme”) for the issuance
of in aggregate of no more than 100,000,000 shares (representing
10% in the nominal amount of the aggregate of shares in issue on 20
December 2010 (the Listing Date of the Company) (subject to the terms
of the Scheme and the relevant provisions under the Listing Rules).

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

BEARLERRBFAGERE LR
E:oERE 3=

ABREEAQNFBRRIERRAFAGITRE L
REMBEMNNLER S (ER BT E e
@i s EETEABRMDBRERLN
HIEBE) AT —NAFNA_-_+HH(EH
M) e ARFIREMBER-_ZT—NENA-+H
H(Z28HM) TTEE=1+28 BMERHSB
)E'X#@Hﬁﬁkmk NN meﬁ}f

ar‘gﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%pa*ﬁﬁﬁﬁi(imijti%%i,az
sz ER183FMA T L2218 ) #EITER

il
FAREBERARBNRHBESFBANGA
R EBRNEEMBRERME27

B

NE B R FANEDZEEHE A IE1,005,000% T
—+ 4 : 868,000/ 7T ) °

M- BE KRR

REBYE BB MR
M mERMEE14 -

DRSNS

BRARBERE

RABBRANZEFIBHNERE
26 °

BB WK

BB ERTE
ARABEE—BBBESEEN _T—TF+=
A— B8R R EMANBRRE S ([5131])) -
LAZBETTA HT#838100,000,0000 0% 7 (HBE R
AR EMBH-_T—ZTFF+_A_t+HE%
TR BEEEN10% ) « EBBSTFEIM R
M ETARAETRMEBERETE -

1))
o



Report of the Directors
EF8HRS

As at the end of 2018, the entire number of share options have been
granted to the eligible participants of the Scheme and no further shares
is available for issue in respect of which options may be granted under
the Scheme.

Eligible participants of the Scheme would be any person or an entity
belonging to any of Directors (including executive Directors, non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors) and
employees of the Group and any advisers, consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint
venture business partners, promoters or service providers of any member
of the Group who, the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The purpose of the Scheme is to reward participants who have
contributed or will contribute to the Group and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Group for the
benefit of the Group and the shareholders as a whole.

Unless approved by the independent shareholders, the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of share options
granted to each eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1.0% of
the number of the shares of the Company in issue.

The Scheme was effective from 1 December 2010 and unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain valid and effective for a period of 10
years therefrom.

The exercise price for the share options shall be determined by the
Board and must be not lower than the highest of:

(1) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant (which
must be a business day);

(2) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(3) the nominal value of the Shares.

There is no minimum period for which a share option must be held or
performance targets which need to be achieved by the grantee before
the share option can be exercised. However, such restrictions may be
imposed on a case by case basis as terms of the grant of each share
option.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, no share option was
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed. The particulars of the
outstanding share options under the Scheme as at 31 December 2018

are as follows:

BE_ZT-\F+_A=+—HBILFE #HE
EABEERRER R L TE FHARB -BE=
E-N\F+-_A=+—BFEBRTHKRITEDN
BRENFBOT:

MOVEMENTS IN THE SHARE OPTIONS OF THE ARABRNERESE
COMPANY
Number of Number of
outstanding outstanding
share options share options
held as at held as at
1January  Granted during  Exercised during Lapsed during ~ Cancelled during 31 December
Name Date of grant Exercise price 2018 the year the year the year the year 2018
RZB-N\F RZB-NF
-A-H TZA=t-H
iz iz
WATE DB
#E RiLAH k@ BREHE EREL ERfTR FREXR FREH BREHE
(HKS)
(B1)
Employees
[}
(In aggregate) 28 May 2014 4860 6,954,000 - - - - 6,954,000
(#3) ZE-MERAZTNAR*
Total for Employees 6,954,000 - - - - 6,954,000
BB &5t
Consultants
&
(In aggregate) 28 May 2014* 4.860 1,580,000 - - - - 1,580,000
(#zh) “E-MERAZTNR*
Total for Consultants 1,580,000 - - - - 1,580,000
ElaERS
Total 8,534,000 - - - - 8,534,000
Et
* 30% of the share options were vested to the grantees on the date of  * B30%EREERFELBREBEEREA  SH

grant, a further 30% were vested on the first anniversary of the date of
grant and the remaining 40% were vested on the second anniversary of
the date of grant. All share options are immediately exercisable after being
vested to the grantees. The validity period of these share options shall be 5

years from the date of grant.

f A total of 8,534,000 shares (representing approximately 0.78% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this Report) are available for issue under

the Scheme.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had reserves available for
distribution as calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) amounting to HK$40,148,000 (2017: HK$37,685,000).
However, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$1,274,530,000 (2017: HK$1,274,530,000) may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws and there was no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 186.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2018.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
NIE Guoming

LU Jie

LI Wenjin

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every
three years at the annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. LU Jie and Mr. YIP Wai Ming will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, each of the executive Directors has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing, from 23 May 2016 for Mr. Lu Jie and 1 December 2016
for Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Li Wenjin, unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the service contract.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
are set out on pages 6 to 8.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Changes in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules subsequent to the
publication of the 2018 Interim Report of the Company are set out
below:

Name of Director

EEpS

Details of change

BEHE

EENRBEL

RAREA ATEFEREERARRFL
RBEXK ENEENEHE _T—XRFLA
“t=RR - MBEEAEEMFTEXELENE
HE-Z-—RE+-A—Bk RBE=F Kk
Hp = RBERTE & KRR T AR LE -

MERNAIBET I RRAFAGLEENE

FHRAKETLEMAKENAR —FREE
OEERERIN K IENRBEL -

EEREREEEBEHE
EEREREBENEEABHN F6EsH -
EEERZEE

BARR =T \FhHREAHARE . B

BETRAUEIBSIBRATRECEETENE
FEHMT

Nie Guoming

&5 [ B

Lu Jie

Li Wenjin
FXE

Yip Wai Ming

Annual Director’s fee revised to HK$1,620,000 with effect from 1 January 2019.
FEESWSETE1,6200008T BZE—NF—HA—BRBEK-

Annual Director’s fee revised to HK$1,680,000 with effect from 1 January 2019.
FEEFHSEEE1,680,0008L BEZE—NF—A—BHRBER-

Annual Director’s fee revised to HK$1,620,000 with effect from 1 January 2019.
FREEFRREEFE1,62000087T B E—NF—A—BRENK-

Annual Director's fee revised to HK$220,000 with effect from 1 January 2019 and

appointed as a non-executive director of Pantronics Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1611)

on 11 October 2018.
A

FEEZEREHER2200008TT B-T—NF—HA—BEEY MAZZE-N\F+

AT —BEZER/MKERARABD B ILIFNITES (BRI 1611)

Wu Min
3

Man Kwok Kuen, Charles
B
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Annual Director’s fee revised to HK$220,000 with effect from 1 January 2019.
FEEFHSEEE220,0008T B =—F—NF—A—BEREH-

Annual Director’s fee revised to HK$220,000 with effect from 1 January 2019.
FEEFREEFE2200008T BT NF-A—RBBER-
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
and officers of the Group is currently in force and remained in force
throughout the financial year.

Throughout the year, the Company has maintained appropriate directors
and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity against liability,
including but not limited to liability in respect of legal action against
the Directors and officers thereby sustained or incurred arising from or
incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of each
Director and the chief executive of the Company (the “Chief Executive”)
in the Company’s shares (the “Shares”), underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

BEFFNRERX

AEBEERSREEAB 2B EFNREK
XEBEENBEFE-—BEER-

REAFE ARAFERBEENEELREARE
BEABEERBRIABERET EFREETR
REENEREEZABRBITHEHBREMELN
i EE M RRFRATE

EERITRARRKRG  HERGKRES
RS MR A

WR-EB-NE+-_A=+—HB KEFFERAAQ
BIITE AR ([T R AR R & E
FE(EERFAFLBER ([EFHMBEK
Bl]) EXVED) AR RARRRG ([BRH])  AAF]
RO RESFP BEEELARARREE
HFRHEGAFEI2EFENECMIBIE L
MR B ERI0FTHE LM BETAZEFTETESFR
SHVRESTR| ([REFR ) EANEARARE
BERALZHARARE ([BAT]) RS K%
R U INE

AAFEREE0I0ETHEER

Approximate

Interest Total percentage of

Name of Director Capacity in Shares interests® shareholding*
R Z A

EENHA ¥R 5% % 17 FE 22 e EED Btk
Nie Guoming (Chairman) Beneficial owner 4,200,000 4,200,000 (L) 0.38%
R (EXfE) EnEBA
Lu Jie (Chief Executive Officer) Beneficial owner 8,870,000 8,870,000 (L) 0.81%
B (ITHAR) EnEBA
Li Wenjin Beneficial owner 2,890,000 2,890,000 (L) 0.26%
E EnEBA
Notes: (T

(i) The letter “L" denotes a long position in Shares.

* The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2018 which was 1,100,194,000 ordinary
shares.

i TLIERFREOWEE-

* BOoTIREBEARIIR-_ZE—NE+ A
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND FERRAR D N AHBE R DR ROR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING &
SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of substantial & ARG IRIEES M HEIEHIE3361EFEN
shareholders (not being a Director or the Chief Executive) in the shares, & mffi@ER R_ZE—N\F+_A=+—8"
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated ETEMRE (MIFEFRITHAESR) RAQ A ME
corporations as recorded in the register maintained by the Company HEEHEEMRD - HAKNO REEFFRERN
under Section 336 of the SFO are as follows: BEmEARBEWT

Approximate
Class Total number percentage of

Name of shareholder Capacity of securities of Shares  shareholding

(Note 1) (Note 2)

BEEHE 54 BEs B4 B BAt

GED) (F3E2)

Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited Beneficial owner Ordinary 364,000,000(L) 33.09%
("Hi Sun”) EnEBA Bk

e (FE)BARRAR ([&&5])

Kopernik Global Investors LLC Investment manager Ordinary 76,936,000(L) 6.99%
wEKIE Tk
Notes: B 5 -
1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in Shares. 1. FEILIXRTARRMHDETE -
2. The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued sharesof 2. B L DIREBEARXTIR_ZFT—NF+=A
the Company as at 31 December 2018 which was 1,100,194,000 ordinary =t+—BEBTRHEE (E1,100,194,000
shares. REBKR)ETE -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered
into certain continuing connected transactions and details of these
continuing connected transactions are set out below:

Framework agreements with Hi Sun

Hi Sun is a substantial shareholder interested in 33.09% of the
Company'’s issued share capital and therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, transactions between the
Company and Hi Sun constitute connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

i Supply of E-payment Terminals Products

On 31 December 2015, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “2016 Framework Agreement”) with Hi Sun,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell and Hi Sun (together
with its subsidiaries the “Hi Sun Group”) agreed to purchase the
E-payment Terminals Products for the mobile and other payment
solutions, services and/or platforms of the Hi Sun Group. The term
of the 2016 Framework Agreement commenced on 22 January
2016, the date on which relevant approval of the independent
shareholders was obtained at the Company’s special general
meeting, and expired on 31 December 2018. The annual caps of
the total contract value for the sale and purchase of E-payment
Terminals products under the 2016 Framework Agreement
for the three years ending 31 December 2016, 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2018 were set at HK$300,000,000,
HK$350,000,000 and HK$400,000,000 respectively and the
actual aggregate contract value for the sale and purchase of
E-Payment Terminals Products for the three years ended 31
December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018
were HK$134,889,000, HK$135,774,000 and HK$194,221,000
respectively.

As the sale and purchase of the E-payment Terminals Products
could potentially secure market share and maintain the Group’s
market position in the PRC, the Company entered into another
framework agreement (the “2019 Framework Agreement”)
with Hi Sun on 5 December 2018, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to sell and Hi Sun agreed to purchase the E-payment
Terminals Products. The term of the 2019 Framework Agreement
commenced on 1 January 2019 and will expire on 31 December
2021. The annual caps of the total contract value for the sale
and purchase of E-payment Terminals Products under the 2019
Framework Agreement for each of the three years ending 31
December 2019, 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 were
set at HK$170,000,000
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During the year, the Group has followed the internal control
measures and policies in determining the prices and terms of
the sale of E-payment Terminals Products to Hi Sun Group and
all sales to Hi Sun Group under the 2016 Framework Agreement
were on terms no less favourable to the Group than those offered
to independent third parties for products of comparable quality,
guantity and specifications. The Company has complied with
applicable reporting, announcement, independent shareholders’
approval and annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Purchase of Chips

On 30 December 2016, the Group entered into a framework
agreement (the “2017 Chips Framework Agreement”) with Hi
Sun, pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase and the
Hi Sun Group agreed to sell the mag-stripe card security decoder
chips (the “Security Decoder Chips”), the security micro controller
unit chips (the “Security Micro Controller Unit Chips”) and
the contactless reader chips (the “Contactless Reader Chips”,
collectively with the Security Decoder Chips and Security Micro
Controller Unit Chips, the “Chips”). The 2017 Chips Framework
Agreement commenced on 1 January 2017 and will expire on 31
December 2019.

The Board considered that the entering into of the 2017 Chips
Framework Agreement would ensure continuous and stable supply
of the Chips for production of the Group’s E-Payment Terminals
related products and reduce the production cost by saving the
operational cost in sourcing suitable market suppliers, as the Chips
supplied by the Hi Sun Group were fit for the production needs of
the Group and with specifications not commonly supplied by other
market suppliers.

The annual caps of the total contract value for the sale and
purchase of Chips contemplated under the 2017 Chips
Framework Agreement for the three years ending 31 December
2017, 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 were set
at HK$65,000,000, HK$70,000,000 and HK$75,000,000
respectively, and the actual aggregate contract value for the sale
and purchase of Chips for the two years ended 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2018 were HK$59,966,000 and
HK$67,587,000 respectively.
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During the year, the prices payable for the purchase of the Chips
under the 2017 Chips Framework Agreement were determined
by making reference to the prices of other products sold by
Hi Sun Group and the prices of similar products sold by third
party suppliers in the industry. The Company has also complied
with applicable reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements and is exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Please also refer to Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Board including the independent non-executive Directors has
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that these transactions entered into by the Company:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2018 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Board confirms
that the auditor has issued an unqualified letter confirming the matters
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
Group’s continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2018 as being in order. Copy of this letter has been provided
to the Stock Exchange.

A summary of significant related party transactions made during the
year was disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements.
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The Group has complied with the requirements, including the disclosure
requirements, in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the aforesaid transactions.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION AND CONFLICTS OF
INTERESTS

A deed of non-competition was entered into between the Company and
Hi Sun on 1 December 2010 (“Deed of Non-Competition”), pursuant
to which Hi Sun shall not compete either directly or indirectly with the
Group's principal business activities in such geographic territories in
which the Group operates.

Hi Sun has signed an annual declaration (“Declaration”) of compliance
with the Deed of Non-competition confirming its compliance with the
non-competition undertakings in the Deed of Non-Competition during
the year. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned undertakings and consider that Hi Sun has complied
with the Deed of Non-Competition during the financial year ended 31
December 2018.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. Li Wenjin (“Mr. Li"), an executive Director of the Company, is
interested in Hi Sun Group as its executive director and a director of
certain of its subsidiaries and hence required to abstain from voting on
any resolution of the Board in respect of any particular transaction or
business involving any actual or potential conflict of interest between
the Group and the Hi Sun Group.

Notwithstanding Mr. Li's aforesaid interests in the Hi Sun Group, the
Board considers that Mr. Li is not interested in a business competing
or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly with the Group’s
business, taking into account the Deed of Non-Competition, the
Declaration, any implications thereunder and the independent non-
executive Directors’ subsequent review thereof.

Apart from the above, none of the Directors or any of their respective
associates is interested in any business competing or likely to compete
with the Group's business that is discloseable under Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above, there was no other transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance in which any Director or any entity connected
with a Director is or was materially interested directly or indirectly
subsisting at any time during or at the end of the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2018 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are respectively as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 21.6%
— five largest suppliers combined 43.4%
Sales

— the largest customer 45.9%
— five largest customers combined 60.7%

A subsidiary of Hi Sun was one of the Group’s five largest customers
for the year. As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Li Wenjin, concurrently
serving as an executive Director of both the Company and Hi Sun, held
approximately 0.23% of the issued share capital of Hi Sun, which is a
controlling shareholder holding approximately 33.09% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s equity interest) had an interest in the major
customers or suppliers noted above.
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PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to participate in
a defined contribution retirement scheme (“MPF Scheme”) set up in
accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, under which employers and employees are each required
to make regular mandatory contributions calculated at 5% of the
employee’s relevant income (“Mandatory Contributions”) to the MPF
Scheme, subject to the minimum and maximum relevant income levels
as prescribed by law. Employees may also make voluntary contributions
additional to Mandatory Contributions.

Any Mandatory Contributions paid for and in respect of an employee
are fully and immediately vested in the employee once paid to the
trustee of the MPF Scheme and any investment return derived from the
investment of the Mandatory Contributions is also fully and immediately
vested in the employee. The employees are entitled to all of the accrued
benefits derived from the employer's Mandatory Contributions upon
retirement at the age of 65 years old, death or total incapacity, subject
to other applicable provisions of law.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC, the
Group is required to contribute in favour of the employees in the PRC
an amount of approximately 7% to 20% of their basic wages to certain
retirement benefit schemes. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of those workers of the
Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Directors confirm that the Company has maintained at all times during
the year sufficient public float as prescribed by the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who has remained as the Company’s auditor for each of the preceding
three years and will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Nie Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 March 2019
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AN INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of PAX Global Technology Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 70
to 185, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Impairment of receivables

. Provision for inventories
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Key Audit Matter
ARETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN BT NAEERRETSSBR

Impairment of receivables

FE W 5k I 7Y 66 16

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii) (financial risk factors), Note 4(c)
(critical accounting estimates and judgements) and Note
21 (trade and bills receivables and other financial assets at
amortised cost) to the consolidated financial statements for
related disclosures

H 1A FIE 6 7 57 - fa 2 B4R & BT & BT 53, 1(b)(ii)
(BHBREBEZE)  Ititdc) (B e 1Z5 RAE) R
;g@%%ﬁ&@%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁ
JE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had gross trade
receivables of HK$1,982.7 million and provision for
impairment of trade receivables of HK$84.2 million.
Provision is made for lifetime expected credit losses on
trade receivables.

RZFE-NF+ZA=+—H' EBEEEHNERERE
RA1,982. 78 & B BIERFORERGNR/L2AEE
e BEBEMEUVEFNZHEBEEERRES-

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected
credit losses. Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection
of receivables are assessed individually for provision for
impairment allowance. Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery, taking into account the nature
of the customer, its geographical location and its ageing
category, and applying expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables.
The expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced from the past 3 years
and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
EREERAE T EEBEEERR - HRENFEMBR
BEMEPImEFEEREBNEKFIAG M RME
BEREL ARG -EATRREEERER  HRaE
WHIBTSRERTFPIEE IR & A RREARZRE
DEEERBIFEHEITH IR - AR E AT Ot - 3
J& P TR EA(E B B 18 R A8 B B W R IR i BR T 48 58 - TR HR(E
EEEEDRBBE="FLHRNELEEFERET UK
AR AR R BTRE LB R - I BT BT PERNE
WHRIBRE N B BERE -

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the trade
receivables and the estimation and judgement involved in
determining the expected credit losses allowance of the
trade receivables.

BT SIS S EN RKRERNEAREE  UAREETE
W BR SR TE HA{E B B 1R M B % I (k& A0 1 e -

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment
on provision for impairment losses of trade receivables
included:

ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬁ%%%%%ﬁ@%ﬁ%%Z%ﬁﬁﬁ@

- Understood and validated the credit control procedures
performed by management, including its procedures on
periodic review of aged receivables and assessment on
expected credit losses allowance of receivables;

- EmNRBEEEERTHNEREREREF SRALHTEH
?E@%%%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁﬁm
27

- Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile
of trade receivables by checking to the underlying sales
invoices;

—  FRRESHEBEEEESR UM U8 E E KR SRR
ZIETENE

- Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement of
trade receivables against bank receipts; and

— A XERBRITBE S ERETNEEBZNE
HER: &

- Obtained management’s assessment on the expected
credit losses allowance of receivables. We corroborated
and validated management’s assessment based on the
historical settlement pattern from the past 3 years,
correspondence with the customers, evidence from
external sources including the relevant public search
results relating to the financial circumstances of the
relevant customers and market research regarding
the relevant forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors used in management’s
assessment.

—  HUSEEEY RKIATEEEEEEER T o FAM
ERBE=FEMEN  EBEF 8@ &K IR
WER (BREAEFPNMBIRNERARERER)
UERB@AEEEROMIZHE FELREEEED
A P EREN PN RERBERRSES -

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation and
judgement made by management in respect of the expected
credit losses allowance and the collectability of receivables
were supportable by the available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
ARETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMHEFTNAEERRETSR

Provision for inventories

FEEE

Refer to Note 4(b) (critical accounting estimates and
Jjudgements) and Note 20 (inventories) to the consolidated
financial statements for the related disclosures

BRI FIEA 7 7E  F 2 e BRI i240) (B
REI I RALE) RNiH20(F7E) °

The Group held inventories of HK$1,182.0 million as at 31
December 2018. Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value (“NRV"”). The cost of inventories
may not be recoverable if those inventories are aged and
damaged, if they have become obsolete, or if their selling
prices have declined. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group has made provision for inventories of
HK$43.1 million.

EEER T \FT_A=+—BHEEFELN1,182.0
BEBIL -FEDRKAEEEFE ([FI2RRE]) 2
REREIR - MEEEKRE B BENEE T A
AREEENBFER A HE_S—\F+_A=+—H
IHFE BEEBEFRFEBEFHENSBIBEET

Management determines the lower of cost and NRV of
inventories by considering the ageing profile, inventory
obsolescence and estimated selling price of individual
inventory items.
EREETFENARNAZRFEREER  §ZE(E
AFENER FTERSARMNENFTENTEAEE-

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment
on NRV and obsolescence of inventories included:

MO EEERENATEZ IR FERARTIBRRT
BERF B

- Understood and validated the control procedures
performed by management, including its procedures in
estimating the NRV of the inventories and conducting
periodic review of inventory obsolescence;

- HEmMNMRIEETEERTHNEERRER BREEMGFEFESR
SBHRFENTHERTFEBRNIIEF:

- Observed client’s inventory counts to identify whether
there is any damaged or obsolete inventory;

- HEEETER USHHELAEMBRENBETE:

- Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing
profile of individual inventory items by checking to the
underlying procurement correspondence and invoices;

— BBREEBARBENEER UM VEERF
SR A B2 ERE
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Key Audit Matter
ARETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN BT NAEERRETSSBR

Management calculates the NRV at each period end based
on the estimated selling price less selling expenses, which
requires significant judgements and assumptions to be
made to determine the estimated selling price of individual
product, including historical experience of selling products
of similar nature and expectation of future sales based on
current market conditions.
EEENEBEREERELEM R ESHROATZR
HHE - EEE AR E M < RS ERAEL EAHE LR
FBREEBATHERUMEERNERARIZERT
SUE R R E A 2 TR -

Management consistently applies a provisioning
methodology for slow moving inventories based on
inventory ageing and makes specific provision for long
aged inventories. Management also conducted periodic
review on inventory obsolescence, including performance
of periodic inventory counts and review of holding period
for individual inventory items.
ERERTETHUBETEERMERREE A3t
RYPREFRELEEREBE - ERETERTERTBF
ETEHES PECHETFERREHNENFE
BHEEH-

We focused on this area due to the estimation of provision
for inventories involves significant judgement and various
uncertainties as a result of changing technology, customer
demand and competitors actions.

BRI BEER HFENRE TS REXHE -
URBEMAFAR BERPFRMBRRFEZTRERZED
BRI & -

- Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent usage of
significant inventory items, obtained through the usage
report subsequent to the year end as a basis to identify
inventory obsolescence. Where there are no subsequent
usage of the respective items after the year end, we
discussed with management its assessment on estimated
future utilisation, corroborating explanations with the
inventory ageing, sales orders and marketability of the
relevant finished goods by using our industry knowledge
and external market analysis, as appropriate; and

- UHESTANAZEREFERFREZERBR BB
SFERENEARSE BHLBRFE -WEBTFER
FREVEAS HMGEEEENmAHMGATFER
XE%TWﬁZ%ﬁ'ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ%mmﬁﬂ%%m

SoM (WER)  EREBEFEER HETERIEH
XML TEE: &

- Tested on a sample basis, the NRV of selected inventory
items, by comparing the selling price subsequent to the
year end, against the carrying values of these individual
finished goods. Where there are no subsequent sales
of the respective finished goods after the year end,
we discussed with management as to the realisable
value of the products, corroborating explanations with
the inventory ageing, sales orders, historical margins,
and current market conditions by using our industry
knowledge and external market analysis, as appropriate.

— REBESNBREEFERE 2R HE ERAHF
R ERIEK MmN FRENEBEAREEF L8
RERBITELENEBAEK R RACEEREN®
ZEMNTERE WEBRMETRORBEMIINELT
Sotr (WER) EERRFEFH HETE BE
EMEFIBITHRAGE -

Based on the procedures described, we found the estimations
of management in relation to the provision for inventories
were supportable by available evidence.

REMMEF RMEREREARFEREBZMAEAE
B RE P S H

EERRREERAT  —®-\EEH
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BREMHME RS Y BHRRABNER

BAWER EHRAVBRREBEL AR
FE AR BXRF S8R AR T 8 B0 B K88 R BB BUAS
BEFAR YHABRERRMERNZEE RS -
wrER BT (FRER) BRRERE— NN\~
FARBE) BRI E  Br itk 2 SM AN 5 Rl
BEHMBN - RMATERARSOATRAEM
HtW AT B LA BEERAEFT - A ERERS
KPR ETEERBRR (BAEEFER])D
ETHER AR - BERERRAF R AR
I - SRR T A BRGF R EARR S B2 - IR A
BERTEMERERERAETESANE
WRERERBEE M IEHERPEHDOZER
E - RI B B R R B AT AR AEE X -

ERE (BABRTER) ETEFNBET R
PERTEXHE RIS T EXEEEE - RN
DI

o BRI EBNKFFRBRMEBERA Y
BHRREFESAHERRAWRR - &5 K%
MITERTEFARE LR - JA KA
RRMEENETRE FREMEED
it X MEFAIBE S R BRR E B R
BIR - ERER - SO BR Bz 2 £
BRIk R BE 3 30 R BRRF M B B A #R AR IR
AMERERAEEREABRMERNE
K $8 3R BR AL 69 LB o

o THEFREBMRNIES AREE
MEEF BENXFY BEXERE
EHONBREBERER -

o HEEEFRASABENKREEREL
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Tak Wai, Daniel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 6 March 2019

HEEZZERBANFET  HAIHETE WL
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Consolidated Income Statement

& O\ EWX
FolnE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—BLtEE

2018 2017
—EBE-NE —ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET

Revenue
Cost of sales

L'ON
HERA

4,415,409 3,591,080
(2,788,728) (2,133,487)

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Net impairment losses on financial assets
Impairment of assets

E7

H W A

H o zm

HERX

THEH
SREEREFER
BERE

1,626,681 1,457,593
76,929 72,838
7,577 2,216
(437,809) (426,432
(590,819) (498,780
(43,290) (43,220

)
)
)
- (136,192)

)))
o

Operating profit K& RF 639,269 428,023
Finance costs B 75 & A (4,768) (3,801)
Share of result of an investment accounted for 1Z#EZEAR 2
using the equity method WERE 19 (1,759) 318
Profit before income tax BRETB B AR F 632,742 424,540
Income tax expense Fri5#i 5 2 M (117,344) (87,974)
Profit for the year FERA 515,398 336,566
Profit/(loss) attributable to: BAEERN (BE) -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NIEE TN 522,470 407,507
Non-controlling interests JEIE A s (7,072) (70,941)
515,398 336,566
HK$ HK$
per share per share
BRBT FAET
Earnings per share for the profit ERATRFEA
attributable to the owners of EhERzE8RAER:
the Company:
— Basic —HK 12(a) 0.475 0.367
— Diluted — s 12(b) 0.475 0.367

The notes on pages 77 to 185 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 577Z= 1858 #) M 5 Jh 45 & B #5 R & &9 H AR &6

LN o

financial statements. 7
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
AT RWAR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-ZHA=+—BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —Z=T—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
{hg=d FERT FHET
Profit for the year FRIEF 515,398 336,566
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, Ht2m (FE) ki
net of tax HIBRBLE
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to ~ A ZR[ptEF P EZ 8 2 IHH
profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on translation of & /G 4NI B R A BF IS ¥R
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries ~ E4HIE X =58 (104,674) 168,423
Change in values of available-for-sale AtHEEmEE BENE
financial assets 17(c) - (6,145)
Items that will not be reclassified to TEET D HERm 2 HA
profit or loss
Change in value of a financial asset at fair value —IEIZAF{EH AH 2@z
through other comprehensive income ZERMEEZNE 17(b) (7.269) -
Remeasurement of post-employment BEBERNESER
benefit obligation 103 (141)
Total comprehensive income for the year, HEZENFEALE  HIKRBIE
net of tax 403,558 498,703
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EBiEzmEkE S (FE)8EHE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIESF SN 405,952 572,058
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR R = (2,394) (73,355)

403,558 498,703

The notes on pages 77 to 185 are an integral part of these consolidated Z77E185E MM s G A M HERNE P I

IN o

financial statements. 7
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mMOEERBER

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-NE —ZT—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FHBT FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BE K 14 72,368 51,558
Land use rights T AR 15 76,023 84,473
Intangible assets mILAE 16 81,647 90,259
Financial asset at fair value through RATFEFABRZ
profit or loss SEEE 17 94,058 -
Financial asset at fair value through BEAFEFAEMEERE 2
other comprehensive income SEEE 17 11,870 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESMEE 17 - 74,517
Investment accounted for using the BEREARZEE
equity method 19 17,974 20,720
Other non-current assets HMIERmBEE 22 46,174 52,785
Deferred income tax assets RIEFMEHEE 30 31,704 18,731
Total non-current assets IREBEELE 431,818 393,043
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 1,182,015 918,452
Other current assets HEfns&EE 22 24,938 22,991
Other financial assets at amortised cost R ERAS R Bt e RMEE 21 5,847 16,602
Trade and bills receivables JE UK BR 2 % B Uk 22 3 21 1,919,408 1,703,414
Restricted cash PR HIIE & 23 48,816 12,490
Short-term bank deposits FRHERITIE R 24 2,520 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeEMReEEY 25 2,160,192 2,165,224
Total current assets RBEEAE 5,343,736 4,839,173
Total assets EEHE 5,775,554 5,232,216
EQUITY &
Equity attributable to the owners of ERRFEAEGER
the Company
Share capital A A 26 110,019 110,019
Reserves % 27 4,132,034 3,812,757
4,242,053 3,922,776
Non-controlling interests IR ER (29,445) (25,710)
Total equity A 4,212,608 3,897,066

The notes on pages 77 to 185 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

7 e
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
OEEBER

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-NE —ZT—+HF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

B 5k FET FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEMSHEE 30 8,641 10,123
Other non-current liabilities EMIERBAEEG 13,323 7,700
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEHEE 21,964 17,823
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables EN R R ENRE 28 1,190,447 953,084
Other payables and accruals L FE AT BR R R FEFT RUAR 28 259,120 281,585
Current tax liabilities EHHIEAE 83,171 68,291
Borrowings BE 29 8,244 14,367
Total current liabilities REEERE 1,540,982 1,317,327
Total liabilities BEAE 1,562,946 1,335,150
Total equity and liabilities kA ELE 5,775,554 5,232,216

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 6 A BEHRER T —NF=ZANBEEZEELi

March 2019 and were signed on its behalf. A TIESRERESE -
NIE GUOMING LI WENJIN
2= B ¥ EXE
Director Director
= EFE

The notes on pages 77 to 185 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 5577Z 1858 H) If 5t Jh 45 & B # 3 % &9 E A &6
financial statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ROEREME

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ADARAARE

Financial asset
at fair value
Available- ~ through other
Share  Employment for-sale - comprehensive Non-

Share Share Capital option benefit  revaluation income Other  Exchange Retained Total  controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve eanings reserves interests equity
BROYE
HARBRE

BEL [§:72
Ba  RGEE  AABR  BRERR AREAER  (EER SREERE  ABBR  JNEER  RERF  RREE  FEREE  RE4E
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Fikn TEn TEn TEn TR TR TR Fhn Fin Fikn TEn TEn TEn

For the year ended HEZR-N\%

31 December 2018 tZA=+-ALEE
Balance at 31 December 2017, RoE-tE

as originally presented tZA=t+-8

RE%2IINER 10019 1274530 (#14978) 81173 (] (6.145) - - 8298 2869951 3812757 (25710) 3,897,066

Change in accounting policy (Note 2.1.1) &3 EURHE (Hf2.11) - - - - - 6,145 (553) B - (5.59) - - -
Total equity at 1 January 2018 R=8-NF-A-H

as restated BNl EREE 110,019 1,274,530 (414,978) 811713 (72) - (553) - 8,298 2,864,359 3,812,757 (25,710) 3,897,066
Comprehensive income/(loss) 2EhE/ (F8)
Profitloss) for the year R/ (F8) - - - - - - - - - 522470 522470 (1.012) 515,398
Other comprehensive Rh2EkE/ (58)

income/(loss)
Exchange differences arising BERIHBAR

on translation of the BBRRELL

financial statements of EiZR

foreign subsidiaries - - - - - - - - (109,302) - (109,302) 4628 (104,674)
Change in value of a financial ~BEATEIA

asset at fai value through 2 EREL

other comprehensive income cHEEINE - - - - - - (7.269) - - - (7.269) - (7.269)
Remeasurement of post-employment BRRENERE

benefit obligation - - - - 5 - - - - - 53 50 103
Total comprehensive incomel(loss) ER2ERS/ (BB)2E

for the year - - - - 53 - (7,269) - (109,302) 522,410 405,952 (2,394) 403,558
Transactions with owners HREAZRS
Dividends paid Bfiks - - - - - - - - - (83,016) (83,016) - (88,016)
Increase in shareholding in a subsidiary ~ EAI—EME LT 2fRiE

(Note 18) (Hit18) - - - - - - - 1341 - - 1341 (1.341) -
Total transactions with owners BEEAIRFEE - - - - - - - 134 - (88,016) (86,675) (1.341) (88,016)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZ8-N%

TZRZt-RNEH 110,019 1,274,530 (414,978) 81173 (19) - (7.822) 1341 (101,004) 3,298,813 4,132,034 (29,445) 4,212,608

The notes on pages 77 to 185 are an integral part of these consolidated 27721858 MM X T4 & M M= th H 2P
financial statements. 7 e
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Statement of Changes in

Attributable to the owners of the Company

Equity

RRTREARE
Available-
Share  Employment for-sale Non-
Share Share Capital option benefit  revaluation Bxchange Retained Total controlling Total
capital premium Tesenve Tesenve Teserve reserve reserve eamings feserves interests equity
[:3 S0
BE RHEE ARG BRERE  BNRE  BESE  MNEBE  RERF REUE  RERER BhEE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn TEx T#n FEr FEn FEn FEn FEn FEn FEn i
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BECR-tEAZt-BLER
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZE-tE-A-AHER 110,787 1,299,524 (414,978) 81,173 - - (162,470) 2,551,499 3,354,748 35,748 3,501,283
Comprehensive income/(loss) 2EhE/ (K8)
Profitloss) for the year EREH/ (BR) - - - - - - - 407,507 407,507 (70,941) 336,566
Other comprehensive (loss)/income L6228 (58) /i
Exchange differences arising on translation of BEEIHELANBRREL,
the finandil statements of foreign subsidiaries EXZE - - - - - - 170,768 - 170,768 (2,34 168423
Changes in value of avallable-for-sale A ESRAE BENE
financial assets - - - - - (6,145) - - (6,145) - (6,145)
Remeasurements of post-employment BRRENERET
benefit obligations - - - - 1) - - - mn) (69) (141)
Total comprehensive (loss)income FRRE(FE)/ RRLE
for the year - - - - 1) (6,145) 170,768 407,507 572,058 (73,359 498,703
Transactions with owners RERANRE
Repurchase of the Company's shares BEARANHRG (1,300 (50,317) - - - - - - (50,317) - (51,617)
Share option scheme g E
- share options exercised -BAEERE 532 25313 - - - - - 2533 - 25,855
Dividends paid BRRE - - - - - - - (89,055) (89,055) - (89,055)
Non-controling interests arising on SHakELN
business combinations FEkRER - - - - - - - - - 11,897 11,897
Totaltransactions with owners BEEANRALE (768) (24.99) - - - - - (89,055 (114,049) 11,897 (102,920
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZB-tEtZR=t-ANER 110,019 1,274,530 (#14,978) 81,1713 ) (6,145) 8,298 2,869,951 3812,757 (25710) 3,897,066

The notes on pages 77 to 185 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BIERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-ZHA=+—BLEE

2018 2017
—EBE-N\E —T—+F
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
hE=2 FHET T
Cash flows from operating activities REEBNEERE
Cash generated from operations LEFTSIR S 31(a) 322,460 277,529
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERBEERSGH (109,761) (48,821)
China corporate income tax paid BB EMSEHR (9,651) (10,437)
Interest paid B 5B (4,768) (3,801)
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEBEHR ST 198,280 214,470
Cash flows from investing activities REZHNESRE
Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired WHEMHE R A KRB AR S - (41,417)
Acquisition of an investment accounted W R A ARNIRE
for using the equity method - (19,406)
Prepayment for an investment accounted — IR A ANRNIREBNK
for using the equity method (114) -
Investment in a financial asset at fair value RE-—BEERAFEFABREZ
through profit or loss TREE 17(a) (40,782) -
Increase in short-term bank deposit N2 HASR 1717 5% (2,581) -
Investment in available-for-sale financial assets & & At HE S REE - (75,345)
Prepayment for purchase of land use rights BB T AR TER K - (83,333)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME WEREE (37.214) (17,520)
Interest received B B 22,321 20,847
Net cash used in investing activities KREFHMARSFE (58,370)  (216,174)
Cash flows from financing activities RETBNRERE
Proceeds from issuance of shares in connection i 77 {3 B8 A% 2 35 17 AL 1)
with exercise of share options FriSscsa - 25,855
Repayment of borrowings BEEE 31(0) (5.612) (16,096)
Payment for repurchase of the 5] & 7K1 RO AR 19 B9 1~ 3K
Company's shares - (51,617)
Dividends paid KB AT (88,016) (89,055)
Net cash used in financing activities BB EEFTAR )55 (93,628)  (130,913)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash BERBELEEYW
equivalents #/in/ CRD)F8 46,282 (132,617)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHEeMRSEFEYD
of the year 2,165,224 2,207,205
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and cash BEMELEZEEYHELR
equivalents (E18) s (51,314) 90,636
Cash and cash equivalents at end FREZRBESEEY
of the year 25 2,160,192 2,165,224

The notes on pages 77 to 185 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 577Z= 1858 #) M 5 Jh 45 & B #5 R & &9 H AR &6
financial statements. e
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GENERAL INFORMATION

PAX Global Technology Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company and together with its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "“Group”) are principally engaged in the
development and sales of electronic funds transfer point-of-sale
("E-payment Terminals”) products, provision of payment solutions
services and maintenance and installation services (collectively, the
“E-payment Terminals solutions business”).

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 20
December 2010.

These financial statements are presented in thousands of units of
Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for the available-for-
sale financial assets (“AFS”), financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), financial
asset at fair value through profit of loss (“FVPL"), contingent
consideration payable and post-employment benefit
obligation which are measured at fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

A number of new or amended standards became
applicable for the current reporting period. Of
these, the following are relevant to the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, and

. HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The other standards did not have material impact
on the Group’s accounting policies and did not
require any adjustments.

The below explains the impact of adoption
of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS
9”) and HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (“HKFRS 15”) on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 15 did not have any
material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39
that relate to the recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018
resulted in changes in accounting policies and
adjustments to the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as described
below. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in HKFRS 9, HKFRS 9 was generally
adopted without restating comparative
information. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new impairment
rules are therefore not reflected in the restated
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2017, but are recognised in the opening
consolidated balance sheet on 1 January 2018.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEER#SEm®@
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mBEE (&)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 BT BRREEEFRLE
(continued) (#)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) FEBENBIFET RS
Group (continued) TR ()
Impact of adoption Rinz &
Classification and measurement of financial THTRZ FIERE

instruments

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9), the Group’s management has
assessed which business models apply to the

RZE—NF—H—H
(BB FHRELERNZEIR
ZHMBERAE) K&

S

)))
o

financial assets held by the Group and has EEBEDTEASER
classified its financial instruments into the HEMEEER XK
appropriate HKFRS 9 categories. EXTEKESRTAS
HASHENEBMBNE
AEBIZEOSREE R -
Reclassify from
available-for-  Reclassify from
sale financial available-for-
asset to financial sale financial
asset at asset to financial
fair value asset at
through other fair value
31 December 2017,  comprehensive through
as originally income profit or loss 1 January 2018,
presented (note (a)) (note (b)) as restated
feAftteE femftiE
tREE CREE
BN EAR ENDER
BROFHEGA BRATE
RZB-t% Hitt2EUWEZ HABHEZ  RZE-NE
TZA=t-H LREE SREE -B-H
BREEZ23 (M) ED) B 27
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR ThEL TFign
Available-for-sale financial assets ALECHER
~ Unlisted investment fund ~REITREES 55,378 - (55,378) -
- Unlisted equity investment —RETREERE 19,139 (19,139) - -
74,517 (19,139) (55,378) -
Financial asset at fair value through BRAYEHABEZ
profit or loss SHEE
~ Unlisted investment fund ~REITREES - - 55,378 55,378
Financial asset at fair value through RATEFAEMZE
other comprehensive income WEzeREE
~ Unlisted equity investment -RETERRE - 19,139 - 19,139
PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBREME @)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mBEE ()
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 BT BRREEEFRLE

(continued) (#)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) FEBENBIFET RS

Group (continued) ETER (&)

Impact of adoption (continued) Kz 22 (58)
Classification and measurement of financial THTRZ FIERE
instruments (continued) (&)

Financial asset

Available- at fair value
for-sale  through other
revaluation  comprehensive Retained
reserve  income reserve earnings
RATLEFA
AfHE Htt2EKEZ
EftifkE SREERE REER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT FAT
Balance at 31 December 2017, RZZB—tE+ZA=1—-H
as originally presented BERE2I2 &8 (6,145) - 2,869,951
Unlisted equity investment AEmERRE
— Reclassify from AFS to —RARHESREEENHE
financial asset at FVOC| ERAFEGFAELMZER
(note (a)) w2 emEE (M@) 553 (553) -
Unlisted investment fund AEMBREES
— Reclassify from AFS to ~RAUBEECREAEENHE
financial asset at FVPL FRATFEHABRZ
(note (b)) SREE (MH0) 5,592 - (5,592)
Balance at 1 January 2018, RZZ-N\¥-A-H
as restated FERT A - (553) 2,864,359

EERRRHARAT - NEEH



g

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#n © B 55 R = Bl 51

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)
Impact of adoption (continued)
Classification and measurement of financial

instruments (continued)
Notes:

(@) Reclassification of available-for-sale
financial asset to financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income -
unlisted equity investment

The Group elected to present change in the
fair value of its equity investment (previously
classified as AFS) in other comprehensive income
as it is a long-term and strategic investment
that is not expected to be sold in the short to
medium term. As a result, the AFS with fair
value of HK$19,139,000 as at 1 January 2018
was reclassified to financial asset at FVOCI
and the related cumulative fair value loss of
HK$553,000 was reclassified from available-
for-sale revaluation reserve to financial asset at
FVOCI reserve on 1 January 2018.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)
Impact of adoption (continued)
Classification and measurement of financial

instruments (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b) Reclassification of available-for-sale
financial asset to financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss — unlisted investment
fund

The unlisted investment fund of the Group with
fair value of HK$55,378,000 as at 1 January
2018 was reclassified from AFS to financial asset
at FVPL. It does not meet the HKFRS 9 criteria
for classification at amortised cost and FVOC], as
its cash flows do not represent solely payments
of principal and interest and the unlisted
investment fund has a definite life.

Related cumulative fair value loss of
HK$5,592,000 were transferred from the
available-for-sale revaluation reserve to retained
earnings on 1 January 2018. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, fair value gain
of HK$2,888,000 relating to the investment
was recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

There is no impact on the Group’s accounting for
financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that
are designated at FVPL and the Group does not
have any such liabilities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

Impact of adoption (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that
are subject to HKFRS 9's new expected credit loss
model:

. trade and bills receivables

. other financial assets carried at amortised
cost

The Group was required to revise its impairment
methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of these
classes of assets.

While restricted cash, short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

Impact of adoption (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected losses for all trade and bills receivables.
To measure the expected credit losses,
receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance.

Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category,
and applying expected credit loss rates to
the respective gross carrying amounts of the
receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are determined
based on historical credit losses experienced
from the past 3 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

Management has closely monitored the credit
qualities and the collectability of the trade and
bills receivables. The adoption of the simplified
expected credit loss approach under HKFRS 9 has
not resulted in any additional impairment loss for
trade and bills receivables as at 1 January 2018.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

Impact of adoption (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Other financial assets carried at amortised cost

For other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the expected credit loss is based on the
12-month expected credit loss. It is the portion
of lifetime expected credit loss that results from
default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime expected
credit loss. Management has closely monitored
the credit qualities and the collectability of
the other financial assets at amortised cost
and considers that the expected credit loss is
immaterial.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

Impact of standards issued but not yet
applied by the Group
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
result in almost all leases being recognised on
the consolidated balance sheet by lessees, as the
distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group's operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$35,986,000, see Note
33. However, the Group has not yet determined
to what extent these commitments will result
in the recognition of an asset and a liability for
future payments and how this will affect the
Group's profit and classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered
by the exception for short-term and low value
leases and some commitments may relate to
arrangements that will not qualify as leases
under HKFRS 16.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Impact of standards issued but not yet
applied by the Group (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The Group will apply the standard from its
mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019. The
Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first adoption.
Right-of-use assets for property leases will be
measured on transition as if the new rules had
always been applied. All other right-of-use assets
will be measured at the amount of the lease
liability on adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or
accrued lease expenses).

There are no other standards and interpretations
that are not yet effective that would be expected
to have a material impact on the entity’s
consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(@)

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associated companies are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting (see (iii) below),
after initially being recognised at cost.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEERHEE®)
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 FERARERETE (5

(continued)

(i) RBZEFE
BEERGSE REVSIE
PR R - BE 1% T DA T8 B DA
REAEBEHEREFFEE K
FHFTE U 18R T S B 18
R IR E 5 HAth 2 W E AT
HEMEE WSS Bk
JEWEEE R RIRE TR BIR
BREERRD -

(iii) Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
the consolidated income statement, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividend
received or receivable from associated companies are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

BEAREE DG AR EARRK
BENERENNEBRENER
Mg (B FE L) B A S 3K R
RERYGRIR) K- NREETH
BRE—FEE RIELAKHE
REREMBERAERH XN

HIE

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

AEEREBERRRR S
EERSHRWENEH AR
RAEERZEERBNENGE
o REBRBEMSHHE RIE
SR DBERBRTMEBREE
2R R Al AF Bl o A R 250K
ABRHBERETNEAEERE
REREE URFREAEE

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associated company are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in this entity. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

1))
o

Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investment
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy

described in Note 2.10.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(continued)

(iv) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change
in carrying amount recognised in the consolidated
income statement. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associated
company, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEERHEE®)
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Business combinations 2.3 EBEEHf

1))
o

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

° equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
o consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

2.5

Business combinations (continued)

Contingent consideration payable is classified either as
equity or financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of an
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investment
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Executive Directors that make strategic decisions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

()

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates or the currency in which funds from
financing activities are generated (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the
Company’s functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated income
statement, within “finance costs”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement on a net basis within
“administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at FVPL are recognised in profit or loss as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as financial assets at FVOCI are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEERHEE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 27 ME -BERRE

Except for the freehold land with indefinite useful life, all
other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Freehold land
with indefinite life is stated at historical cost less impairment
loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 5% - 10%

20% or over lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements

Office furniture and equipment  18% — 25%

Plant and equipment 9% — 33%
Motor vehicles 18% — 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction or pending installation, and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises direct
costs of construction including borrowing costs attributable
to the construction during the period of construction.
No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for intended use.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

(b) Brand names, contractual customer

relationships and others

Brand names, contractual customer relationships
and others acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair values at the acquisition date.
These intangible assets have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over their expected lives from 5 to 10 years to
allocate the cost of them.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents upfront
prepayments made for the rights to use the land for periods
varying from 10 to 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is charged to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease or when there
is impairment, the impairment is charged to the consolidated
income statement.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill not subject to amortisation is tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEETBREE@
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Investments and other financial assets 211 RERHMWEREE
2.11.1Classification 2111 78
From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial E-ZZE-N\F-—HA—HB®E K
assets in the following measurement categories: SERESREESFEA T
FTEEA:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value e BEEREREATETFEZENS
(either through other comprehensive income, or MEE(ERAEMEEK
through profit or loss), and = RBBRERZEY) &

e those to be measured at amortised cost. o REHEKAENESHA

o

The classification depends on the entity’s business SEBRAREREESHEE

model for managing the financial assets and the ZEBEARBRERE DK

contractual terms of the cash flows. Ke

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses MERATVEFEZEEMS -

will either be recorded in profit or loss or other Ham REEBREREM

comprehensive income. For investments in equity ZHEKEINE - RRFEEE
instruments that are not held for trading, this MEZTAEKEMS LR

will depend on whether the Group has made an R NG B 2 B AU b i

irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to BRVGFEREIER A FE

account for the equity investment at FVOCI. FFAEMEE RG22 MR
®E-

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only rEEEEEEERZEEE

when its business model for managing those assets CEBRAEGREFHEAE

changes. HIRE -
2112 Recognition and derecognition 2112 BRARKILER

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets LBEEAFREENEREE

are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the RXH5BER - RHBAELE

Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial EsaEEElEEECH

assets are derecognised when the rights to receive ECHMEEWRBR S REMNE

cash flows from the financial assets have expired or MEmSCEEEAEECDE
have been transferred and the group has transferred BATHERR XFTEED®R
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. B RIEREmEE-
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.11.3 Measurement
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial asset carried at FVPL are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.

e Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’'s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

(1) Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.11.3 Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

@)

Fair value through other comprehensive

income

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in the consolidated
income statement. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated income statement.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which it arises.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.11.3 Measurement (continued)
o Equity instruments
The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair values. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in the consolidated
income statement as “other gains” when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial asset at
FVPL are recognised in “other gains” in the
consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

2.114 Impairment
From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses associated with
its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2

FESHEERE (&)

211 REREMEMEE (&)
2113 512 (#)

1))
o

e R#IA
REBRERNTEFE
FrEEGEIE - WARE
EEEEENEMEEE
BRI BERREZRF
Bl s & 18 - AR L FE
RIRER BEREEN
DEAFEREREES
BRR -B2AKEARER
B ENRE  ZFRE
ZBRBEENFA AR
WEER S [ Hfd e | -

BRAFEFARZZS
BlmKRERS [ HU
@] RAFEFAEM
cHbBmcBRREZ
R RS 1R ( BR (B I8 18 7
B rEeREAFEES
DRI -

2114 g

BE-F-/\F—A—HEE XK
& BIR AR 1 B E ST B iR
HKAZER TARH 2 A
EEEE-ERZEET AR
RNEERBRZS RREE M-

SRR R R EED S
AEBERERAEEY B RELER
FOTHEZ LT HRE
Y146 HE 3R FE M SR IR B T LA RE R
ZEFHERFHERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#n © B 55 R = Bl 51

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)
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2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
2.115 Accounting policies applied until 31

December 2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has
elected not to restate comparative information. As a
result, the comparative information provided continues
to be accounted for in accordance with the Group’s
previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017, the Group classifies its
financial assets in loans and receivables, and AFS.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

o Reclassification
Reclassifications were made at fair value as of
the reclassification date. Fair value became the
new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded
before reclassification date were subsequently
made.

. Subsequent measurement

The measurement at initial recognition did not
change on adoption of HKFRS 9, see description
above. AFS is subsequently carried at fair values.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Changes in the fair values of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as AFS are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as AFS are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.115 Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses at each of the balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered an indicator that the assets are
impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.115 Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (continued)

Impairment (continued)

Assets classified as available-for-sale

If there is objective evidence of impairment for
AFS, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in the
consolidated income statement — is removed
from equity and recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments that were recognised in consolidated
income statement are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement in a subsequent
period.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour cost and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity).
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.14 Trade and bills receivables

Trade and bills receivables including retention money
receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and bills receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less provision for impairment.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against “net impairment losses on financial assets”
in the consolidated income statement.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand and deposits held at call
with banks, with original maturities of three months or less.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17

Trade, bills and other payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially at fair
values and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the
fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as “other income” or “finance costs”.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company's subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in foreign operations
where the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has
a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

()

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision, where
appropriate, is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Post employment pension obligations

The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including both defined benefit and defined
contribution pension plans.

The liability or asset recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
In countries where there is no deep market in such
bonds, the market rates on government bonds are
used.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Post employment pension obligations

(continued)

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This
cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
consolidated income statement.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which
they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in “employment benefit reserve” in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
“reserves” in the consolidated balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement as past service costs.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
(the “Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated income
statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The assets of
the Pension Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administrated
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed to the Pension
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to vesting fully
in the contributions, in accordance with the rules of
the Pension Scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Post employment pension obligations

(c)

(continued)

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as an employee benefit expense
when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"),
the Group is required to contribute an amount
to certain retirement benefit schemes based on
approximately 7% to 20% of the wages for the year
of those employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those employees of the Group.
Contributions to these retirement benefits schemes
are charged to the consolidated income statement as
incurred.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEETBREE@
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Share-based payments 221 RGO ARER
(a) Equity-settled share based payment (@) ERIGEURGBEERZH
transactions x5
The Group operates an equity-settled share-based REBET-BHERAGEE
compensation plan, under which the entity receives LARR 10 & B8 2 9 B & &0 5T
services from employees as consideration for equity B ERBUEAEBES
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of RGERBLEASEERZT A
the employee services received in exchange for the (BRE)NKE - RRIEE
grant of the options is recognised as an expense. BREMESEERBNAT
The total amount to be expensed is determined by BNERAERAZ -PIEREZH
reference to the fair value of the options granted: BT\ DH2RERDHER
BRATFEETE:

BREEATSRBABR:

*  including any market performance conditions;

e excduding the impact of any service and non- o IEEEMARSEMIETS
market performance vesting conditions (for REBBRME (flnE R
example, remaining an employee of the entity ATR—BRETEHREANZE
over a specified time period); and ENARZEENES)

P53

e including the impact of any non-vesting e PREEMFEHEKRENT
conditions. &o

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period BHINGBHANER EA

which is the period over which all of the specified % 2 EB R TE B B AR R 2 &Y

vesting conditions are to be satisfied. HARE -

At the end of each reporting period, the Group REREHEELEER ~AEH

revises its estimates of the number of options that SETEYREBEIFMEREAR

are expected to vest based on the non-marketing RR 75 16 14 T8 2R 1% 55 BB 1O B AR A

performance and service conditions. It recognises HFEHMMEF HERNGE =X

the impact of the revision to original estimates, if R R ARG FTEL BT
any, in the consolidated income statement, with a Z(mE) TE#ERIELER

corresponding adjustment to equity. PR o

When the options are exercised, the Company issues RERERETHER  AQ R %

new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly TTH D - B AT 1S SRIE R R

attributable transaction costs are credited to share EMBEERER KA EE

capital (nominal value) and share premium. AREA (EE) RGO EE -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Share-based payments(continued)
(b) Share-based payment transactions among

group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiaries
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity
accounts.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2

FESHEERE (&)

221 AR ABERIS (&)

(b) FEEEREURGSE#ESN
x5
ARB A AAREETIENKE
REEEARHEBRAT AR
BREREREALE MK
BERERBHAFEDNZER
HEHNAFEAE REB
HIARERR I I MY B R B ey
KRE WHEFASARER
BRE RS-

2.22 #15

EAKERNBESHAERALZ
HEEEE MEREEREATEE
HERRL BB ETES
BRT EERERBE-

fAEE TRUSE REEREE
TREERERRLR  HUEEER
FEANRER - EREAEETEE
A—REHERALATEMEER I
SRR

BERARANEZRENFEEE
BEREENXHBREFE ZFER
RERHEHEEREEMERE
EEA R R - BEESEBEM
BB ERR SN EMX -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition

(@)

(i)

Sales of goods

The Group develops and sells E-payment Terminals
products. Sales are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the customers, the customer has accepted
the products and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group
recognised its contract liabilities under other payables
and accruals as receipt in advance from customers in
the consolidated balance sheet.

Provision of services

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.
Revenue from maintenance and installation services is
recognised based on the actual service provided.

2.24 Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

2.26 Value-added tax refund
Value-added tax refund are recognised in “other income”
in the consolidated income statement when there is a
reasonable assurance that the refund will be received which
generally occurs upon the receipt of the approval of tax
refund from the local tax bureau.

2.27 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised in “other
income” in the consolidated income statement at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all the
attached conditions.

2.28 Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development projects (relating to the design and testing
of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible
assets when it is probable that the project will be a success
considering its commercial and technological feasibility,
and costs can be measured reliably. Other development
expenditures are expensed as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.

2.29 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi ("RMB"), HK$,
United States dollar (“US$") and European dollar
("EUR"). The majority of assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, HK$, US$ and EUR
and there are no significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. The Group is
subject to foreign exchange rate risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities denominating in a currency
other than HK$, RMB, US$ or EUR, which are
the functional currencies of the major operating
companies within the Group. The Group
currently does not hedge its foreign currency
exposure.

The management considers the foreign exchange
risk with respect to US$ is not significant
as HK$ is pegged to US$ and transactions
denominated in US$ are mainly carried out
by entities with the same functional currency.
The exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.
The Group manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For the companies with HK$ as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2018, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year and equity of the Group would
have been approximately HK$6,453,000 (2017:
HK$6,798,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of RMB denominated cash and cash
equivalents and the current account with related
parties.

As at 31 December 2018, if EUR had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$2,402,000 (2017:
HK$1,308,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of EUR denominated cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and the current
account with related parties.

For the companies with RMB as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2018, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year and equity of the Group would
have been approximately HK$1,320,000 (2017:
HK$2,168,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference
on translation of HK$ denominated cash and
cash equivalents and the current account with a
related party.
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3.1
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(@)

(i)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For the companies with EUR as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2018, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against EUR with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$1,165,000 (2017:
HK$381,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of US$ denominated current account
with a related party.

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to commodify price
risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The income and operating cash flows of the
Group and the Company are both substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. Both the Group and the Company have
no significant interest-bearing assets, except for
deposits placed with banks.

As at 31 December 2018, if interest rates on
all interest-bearing bank and cash deposits
had been 50 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, profit for the
year and equity of the Group would have been
HK$8,643,000 (2017: HK$7,864,000) higher/
lower respectively, due to higher/lower interest
income earned on the deposits.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

(continued)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group's
borrowings are all issued at fixed rates which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
Management considers the fair value exposure of
the fixed rate borrowings is insignificant to the
Group.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from trade and bills receivables, other
financial assets at amortised cost, financial asset at
FVPL, restricted cash, short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents.

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables
(Note 21), other financial assets at amortised cost
(Note 21), financial asset at FVPL (Note 17), restricted
cash (Note 23), short-term bank deposits (Note 24)
and cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

(i)  Risk management

To manage this risk, deposits of the Group
are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
reputable and creditworthy customers with an
appropriate financial strength, credit history and
an appropriate percentage of down payments. It
also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(@)

(ii)

Risk management (continued)

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
authorisation of credit limits to individual
customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales
of goods and services to the top five customers
constituted 60.7% (2017: 53.5%) of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018.
They accounted for approximately 52.7%
(2017: 43.6%) of the gross trade receivable
balances as at 31 December 2018. Collections
of outstanding receivable balances are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis to minimise such
credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade and bills receivables for sales of goods of
the Group and from the provision of services are
subject to the expected credit loss model. While
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, short-
term bank deposits and other financial assets at
amortised cost are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and bills receivables. The Group
measures the expected credit losses on a
combination of both individual and collective
basis.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade and bills receivables (continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss on
individual basis

Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. As at 31
December 2018, the balance of loss allowance in
respect of these individually assessed receivables
was HK$82,330,000 (2017: HK$49,163,000).

The following table presents the balances of
gross carrying amount and the loss allowance in
respect of the individually assessed receivables as
at 31 December 2018 and 2017:

3 B¥ERERE)

3.1

MEEREE (48)

b) EEREE &)
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As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—8
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHETT
Gross carrying amount IRMEAE 82,330 49,163
Loss allowance B (82,330) (49,163)
Net carrying amount BREFE - -

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category,
and applying the expected credit loss rates to
the respective gross carrying amounts of the
receivables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade and bills receivables (continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis (continued)

The expected credit loss rates are determined
based on historical credit losses experienced
from the past 3 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of
loss allowance in respect of these collectively
assessed trade receivable balances was
HK$1,839,000 based on expected loss rates up
to 0.35% applied on different groupings (2017:
up to 0.13%, which does not have a material
impact to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements).

Impairment losses on receivables are presented
as “net impairment losses on financial assets”
in the consolidated income statement. When
a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line
item.

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, short-
term bank deposits and other financial assets at
amortised cost

There is no loss allowance for cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, short-term bank
deposits and other financial assets at amortised
cost as at 31 December 2018 (2017: same).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(c)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade
and bills receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade
and bills receivables was assessed based on
the incurred loss model. An allowance for
impairment of receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation and default or
delinquency in payments are considered
indication that the receivable is impaired.

When a trade and bills receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account
for trade and bills receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against “administrative expenses” in the
consolidated income statement

The impact on transition to HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018 (date of adoption of HKFRS 9) as a
result of applying the expected credit risk model
was immaterial.

Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and ensure the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available financing, including
short-term bank borrowings. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group’s
finance department maintains flexibility in funding
by maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash
equivalents and flexibility in funding through having
available sources of financing.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HRRBRER®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 B¥ERBEZE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) © REBELEEZ)
Surplus cash held by the operating entities over e f’f BAEENERSBG

EESEEMMENGEE
-ir @?&ﬁé)\ﬂﬁﬂgﬁﬁ@

and above the balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest-bearing bank

deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its B 5 B R 1T 17 A E %UE i
overall liquidity position. As at 31 December 2018, mBEERRL-RZF—N
the Group maintained cash and cash equivalents +=-—A=+—8" $ % =
of approximately HK$2,160,192,000 (2017: BERa2AE2SFEDD

HK$2,165,224,000), that are expected to be readily
available and sufficient to meet the cash outflows of its
financial liabilities, hence, management considers that
Group's exposure to liquidity risk is not significant.

2,160,192,0008 T (—=ZF—+t
f£:2,165,224,000/8 L) * f&
HARE RS R B) AR N0 2 44 m 2 & Al
ﬁ{éﬁﬁqfﬁimﬂj (A it - E.EEF
RE REEMAINRTHE

SRBILTERK-
As at 31 December 2018, the Group's total available B/‘: - NF+_A=+—
banking facilities, amounted to approximately CAEECZARRITHES

HK$11,900,000 (2017: HK$18,031,000), of which %E %] /411,900,000 7T (=&
approximately HK$8,244,000 (2017: HK$14,367,000) —+4:18,031,000/& 70 ) * &

)))
o

has been utilised.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted

B B #98,244,0005 T ( —
T —+ 414,367,000 7T ) °

TERREEEARTTHEE

KB E A DA fHZlKE@E’J
FTEEREBES RE B
,HJ%EI%\HEIJ TRABEENS R

2R}

*Eﬁfﬁiﬁi;/\hg =R

ﬁfﬁﬁﬁwETK B+ — A
ARZIHNEHRESNERE

cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying values as the impact of discounting is not

significant. (ER
Less than Between
1year 1and5 years Total
PR-F —-Z1E #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT TET
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\+-A=+-H
Trade and bills payables ERRETREFRE 1,190,447 - 1,190,447
Other payables and accruals Hio IR R BT HUR 141,082 9,250 150,332
Borrowings BE 8,484 - 8,484
Total st 1,340,013 9,250 1,349,263
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+-A=+—H
Trade and bills payables ERERRENER 953,084 - 953,084
Other payables and accruals HitE R RA R ERTFUR 115,075 2,991 118,066
Borrowings & 15,838 - 15,838
Total @it 1,083,997 2,991 1,086,988
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Capital management

The Group regards its shareholders’ equity as capital. The
Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes borrowings of the Group. Total capital is
calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet plus total debt.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the gearing ratio was as
follows:

3

BERRERE (&)

3.2

EXxER
AEEBEBRREDRSELR - KAE
EEIREARNE N RRE AN EE &
BUARERE T ABKRREHRE R
AR mE MR SRR E & KA - I
BEBREERAEBARDETK
o

REFRABERER  AEEAH
ERERIXMRENEHE BELR
BTERR BTHBROIEEEEN
A B IR o

AEBMENEAA B REEEAN -
AR BERE R AE N B
B -BRABESHEAKEEE-EX
BERIINEAEEABRN [
@ EEEAREAE

RZE-NFRZZE—+F+ZA
=t—B -BXBEHER/WMT:

As at 31 December

R+=—RAR=+—8H
2018 2017
—B-N\E —B—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Borrowings (Note 29) &E (Fffzk29) 8,244 14,367
Total debt BIR4EEE 8,244 14,367
Total equity L 4,212,608 3,897,066
Total capital BR4EEE 4,220,852 3,911,433
Gearing ratio BEXBEEE 0.2% 0.4%

EERRRHARAT - NEEH @7
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBEBREEG@
3.3 Fair value estimation 33 AFEMET
(i)  Fair value hierarchy () RFEER
The table below analyses the Group's financial TERAOMAEERR T —\F
instruments carried at fair values as at 31 December E—ZFE—+tF+A=+—H
2018 and 2017 by level of valuation techniques used ErE R FEBAEER
to measure fair values. Such inputs are categorised into EREDWILZRAFEARER
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows: TE-FHEBASESERR

FEBRAN=FEZERET :

*  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for e JEREBEELAEMNERT

identical assets or liabilities (level 1). HmE(REAE) (F
— ) .

* Inputs other than quoted prices included e BRBENRE-—RHOWE
within level 1 that are observable for the asset SN BENBERTE
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or REEZ(ANER)HE
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). (BMREEBERE)RAZE

B(BEZF) -

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based o  WIHREBAERERMSER
on observable market data (that is, unobservable METHEENBENE
inputs) (level 3). AER (BT B r

AER) (B=8H) -
The following table presents the Group's financial THREINWAEBR T —\F
assets and financial liability that are measured at fair +ZA=+—RZAFEFE
values as at 31 December 2018. LeBMEERTHBAG-
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
E1E E2E %38 Fok )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT THET FTART THET
Financial assets TREE
Financial asset at fair value BAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss CREE
— Unlisted investment fund —JEEMREES - - 94,058 94,058
Financial asset at fair value BATEFAEMEE
through other Wz e mEE
comprehensive income
— Unlisted equity investment —JELETRAKRE - - 11,870 11,870
Financial liability cRAE
Financial liability at fair value BAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss TREE

- Contingent consideration payable ~—EfF el AR B - - - -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued)
The following table presents the Group's financial
assets and financial liability that were measured at fair
values at 31 December 2017.

3 B¥ERERE)

3.3 DVEMF )

() RFEER
TREINAEER T —L£F
TZA=+—BRATVENE
ZeRMEERETRAE

Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
BB F2[E £3E k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale financial assets A EEREE
— Unlisted investment fund —FLTREES - - 55,378 55,378
— Unlisted equity investment —EETRAEKE - - 19,139 19,139
- - 74,517 74,517
Financial liability cHMas
Financial liability at fair value BATEFABRZ
through profit or loss TRAE
- Contingent consideration payable ~ —JEfT sk A (E - - 4,689 4,689

There were no transfers of financial assets
and liabilities between the fair value hierarchy
classifications during the year (2017: same).

SREAERABERATESR
HEZERERNLEEE (=
ZT—tFALE)-

HEERMRARAT —E—NEEH @7
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

()

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(a) Financial instruments in Level 1
The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and trading and equity securities) is
based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

(b) Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

(c) Financial instruments in Level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case
for the unlisted equity investment and unlisted
investment fund.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair

values

The Group's finance department includes a team that
performs the valuations of financial assets required
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair
values. As part of the valuation process, this team
reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO) and
external valuers will be engaged, if necessary.

In applying the discounted cash flow technique,
management has taken into account the estimated
amount that the Group would receive to sell the
instrument at the balance sheet date, taking into
account current interest rates and the current credit
worthiness of the counterparties. Where discounted
cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash
flows are based on management’s best estimates and
the discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UHEREE@
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AFEMEE)
(i) Fair value measurements using significant (i) EAEXT TEEEAEER
unobservable inputs (level 3) 2 F1E 57‘ 5 (E3E)
Specific valuation techniques used to value level 3 FRAUBEIES /T AGENS
financial instruments include techniques such as EhE &TTT@% AR 2R E
discounted cash flow analysis and net asset value DT REEFEENXF R
model. There are no changes in valuation techniques RAEAFE HERNEEED
during the year (2017: same). (ZE—+F - RAL)-
The following table presents the changes in level 3 THRENEZ-ZZTE-NF+=
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December A=tT—HILFAFIEmMT
2018: AW#EY:
Financial asset Financial
Financial asset at fair value liability
at fair value  through other at fair value
through  comprehensive through
profit or loss income profit or loss
BDFETA
BOFAETA Ht2E  RATLEHA
BEv 6374 B
tREE tREE tRAE
Unlisted Unlisted Contingent
investment equity  consideration
fund investment payable
KT KL
REES BRARE EARIARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THERT TR
Balance at 31 December R-B—tF
2017, as originally +=ZA=+-~H
presented BRERD &84 - - (4,689)
Change in accounting policy SRR E
(Note 2.1.1) (MiEF2.1.1)
~ Reclassify from AFS “RARLEERERE
ELpi 55,378 19,139 -
Balance at 1 January 2018, R=B-N\E—-A—H
as restated @Eﬁﬂi%ﬁ% 55,378 19,139 (4,689)
Addition NE 40,782 - -
Fair value loss on revaluation REM 2R RERE
recognised in other comprehensive ~ B AT EEE
income (Note 17(b)) (FMtzE17(b)) - (7,269) -
Fair value gains on RER R
revaluation recognised in BHATERE
profit or loss (Note 17(a)) (HisE17(a)) 2,888 - 4,689
Exchange realignment I 5, 3% (4,990) - -
Balance at 31 December RZB-NF
2018 TZRA=t-Bez&&H 94,058 11,870 -
Unrealised gains recognised in RAH AR AL R
the consolidated income statement 4R A WEE
attributable to balances at i Zﬂi ENE
the balance sheet date 2,888 - 4,689
HEER AR AT

s N\EEH
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 B¥ERERE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEMGE (@)

(i) E/HEXT T BIECIA BIF Y
AP ENE (FF) (&)
TRENBE-Z—+F+=
A=ZT—RLFEFIELHRT

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December
2017:

Financial
liability at fair
value through

profit or loss

Available-for-sale
financial assets

1))
o

BATE
FABHEZ
HHESHEE SHEE
Unlisted Unlisted Contingent
investment equity consideration
fund investment payable
AETMREES ALTRAKRE ERIARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THEL TET
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZE—tF-A—-HB2H&H - - -
Addition NE 58,219 17,126 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—FENB AT - - (6,116)
Fair value loss on revaluation REMZEREERL
recognised in other comprehensive ~ Ef&AFEERE
income (5,592) (553) -
Fair value gains on revaluation RiEa WE RN ERH
recognised in consolidated BEATERE
income statement - - 2,216
Exchange realignment [ 5, 20 2,751 2,566 (789)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+ZHA=1—H
2R 55,378 19,139 (4,689)
Unrealised gain recognised in REEAERZERR
the consolidated income statement SR A U R NHERZ
attributable to balances at the RERWH
balance sheet date - - 2,216
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 B¥EREE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEMGE (@)

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued)
Quantitative information about fair value measurements
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

(a) Financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income/available-for-sale
financial asset — unlisted equity investment
The key unobservable assumptions used in the
valuation of the unlisted equity investment as at
31 December 2018 and 2017 are:

(iii) E/HEAT BT A B
RFEEE (F3F) (#)
BREREAT THEHALE

MAFEHE (FIE) HERA

(@) EAFEGARMEE K
ZEFEE AR ESH
BE-FLTRIKE
RZZE-NEFR-_T—+t
Fr-A=1+—R LW
RAREBERANETE
TABRBRS:

At 31 December At 31 December

Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2018 2017
R-ZE-N\%F RZE—+F
fHER FTHEERAYE t=ZA=+—-B +ZA=+—H
Discounted cash flow analysis Pre-tax discount rate 18.8% 19.6%
FRBSREDN T AT BE IR &
Terminal growth rate 2.0% 2.0%
K RE
Compound annual growth rate 37.8% 27.4%
BAFERE

As at 31 December 2018, the pre-tax
discount rate used to compute the fair value
is 18.8% (2017: 19.6%). If the discount rate
shifted upward by 1%, the impact on other
comprehensive income would be HK$1,129,000
(2017: HK$1,972,000) lower. The higher the pre-
tax discount rate, the lower the fair value.

RZZE—-—NF+ A
=+t—B8 BRHEAF
B/ B ATAL R & 518.8%
(ZZT—+%F:19.6%) i
FZAIRE FH1% HHEAM
PEBENTEE B TR
1,129,000 L (=& —+
4:1,972,000/8 7T ) ° B Al
IR EME  AFEBE-

EERRREERAT  —®-\EEH @7
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(iii) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued)

(b) Financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss/available-for-sale financial asset —
unlisted investment fund
The key unobservable assumption used in the
valuation of the unlisted investment fund as at 31

BERRERE (&)

DN EME (8
(i) 1E/HEAT ] BIEFHA B IF Y

33

AFETE (F3E) (#)
(b) BRAFEFARBZZEZHE

EAHRHETHEE—H
LT REEE

R-E-N\FER=-T—+
FTZA=1+—H kLM

December 2018 and 2017 are: HEESHERANEE
A ERBHRE:
At 31 December At 31 December
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2018 2017
R=ZE-NF RZE—+tF
fhE B M AEERABE +=ZA=+-8 +=ZA=+—8H
Net asset value (note) N/A N/A N/A
BEFE () T TER TE A
Note: P &
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has determined RZF-—NE+-_A=+
that the audited net asset value approximates fair BAEBE®BTERERK
value of the unlisted investment fund after applying a EHEATEIONEK KE
portfolio discount of 10% (2017: 10%). TZEEFERERIELD
HEEEHNAFE(ZE
—tF:10%) e
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 34 REHEBRAIEZEHEERSH
measured at amortised cost BBz AFE
The fair value of the following financial assets and liabilities THeRmEEREMABZATE
approximate their carrying values: HHBEEEMRS
e Other financial assets at amortised cost o  REEMAIECHMEHE
e Trade and bills receivables o RBUWERREEWERE
e Restricted cash e XREHRE
e Short-term bank deposits e  FEHIRITHER
e Cash and cash equivalents e HERHASEEW
e Trade and bills payables o  ERNBRZREEMNZEE
e Other payables and accrual o EHiENERRKEFHIE
° Borrowings °
3.5 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 3.5 EEHEREENEREE

No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar arrangements as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

4@ PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal to the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Income taxes and deferred taxation

Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
difference will impact the current tax and deferred tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

(b) Provision for inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inventories is written down to net
realisable value when there is an objective evidence that
the cost of inventories may not be recoverable. The cost of
inventories may not be recoverable if those inventories are
aged and damaged, if they have become wholly or partially
obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined. The cost
of inventories may also not be recoverable if the estimated
costs to be incurred to make the sales have increased.

The amount written off in the consolidated income
statement is the difference between the carrying value
and net realisable value of the inventories. In determining
whether the inventories can be recoverable, significant
judgement is required. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent by
all means to which the amount will be recovered.

(c) Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates (Note 3.1(b)(ii)). The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates at the balance sheet date.

4 EESTHEFRAE

PR R B & WS MR e st R FI T - )
ARNBagRkAtRE  eRBEHAR
EﬁEﬁ'\%ﬁ?ﬁ%@é@ﬁﬁﬁ@%#ﬁﬁf’ﬁ

7N 58 B F th A B R SR A {5t SRR © 3% Ut
ME - FTEM AT E D EEREMNER
BRAR - TXHFIE & ARRSEHA
BT -EMBFEEERABNKRAEER
HEAABOMG RERE-

(@) FEBRIELEB
HESHETHRER FRELER
B FE - SR P R HENREEE
AT - ERRMBERERTY)
RSB IRAE  ARERSTEE
iéﬂfﬁﬂ’v%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁé&

EEEERRBARREAEAER
79 3 M) DA 55 B ey 1 2 B Bk R) (R
MEEER A TEREEZER
B R RAELER RS E T AR -
ERERANGERAETR -

(b) FERE
518 Ty R A R E M E 2

RSN REI ] - B #17 E AR AN
BMERERFE-WEFEERE 25
HEBREREE Tk BT BETRE
WEFERA - METHEN TEL
B A ETRCANIE A0 - I A] BE B BT REIR
CIEEA =PRI

REaRa Xt MENEBEATFED
FREERASRFERNEE N
EERARENFERANEAELE
KA E - IO 1F A B A B - AN SR
A (Hpa4E) AEM 7 AU E
TR A RIFR -

(0 EWFERE
AEBERNHEORR K EHEE
RZ BREEWRIBRE R RE
(BfsE3.1(b)(i)) - RAEE R AEE
REBEBEBELCENLE MR R
ATBE LM ET - HIET X B RR MR 2SR
BRE 2 B A BUE -
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5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS 5 WA -HttWARHEMKE
The Group is principally engaged in the sales of E-payment AEBFEREHEEFXNRBER
Terminals products, the provision of payment solutions services RRHINBRIRRE REERLTER
and maintenance and installation services. Revenue, other income BN BHEREDEROWA  EflA
and other gains recognised during the year are as follows: REAM WA -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=+—HLEE
2018 2017
—E-NF —ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET

Revenue PN
Sales of E-payment Terminals products HEETIMRIHER 4,331,207 3,429,679
Provision of payment solutions services and REITRAT RS R
maintenance and installation services HEE N TR 84,202 161,401
4,415,409 3,591,080
Other income Hapg A
Interest income B WA 22,321 20,847
Value-added tax refund (note (i)) ERRE () 34,770 35,182
Subsidy income (EE N 8,891 12,286
Others Hth 10,947 4,523
76,929 72,838
Other gains H gz
Fair value gain on a financial liability —IHR AT EFARRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SRMEE s AFEKS 4,689 2,216
Fair value gain on a financial asset —IHR AT EEARRZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREEZ AT EWRR 2,888 -
7,577 2,216
Note (i) The amount represents the Group's entitlement to value-added tax W) ZeBEAEBMNPREEEE EmME
refund in relation to the sales of self-developed software products UHEMNZERAIEETR -
in the PRC.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 6 7oEER
The management reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order EREFEMHAEENNMEATMRIEL
to assess performance and allocate resources. The management AERER - BRERBEHANITESAELN
has determined the operating segments based on the internal MEERAERN NS REMETEEBLD
reports reviewed by the Executive Directors to make strategic B AKREFEREEFIMNR Pm‘ﬁ%?&ﬁ
decisions. The Group is principally engaged in the E-payment REB REBERRTEEKESE — ¥
Terminals solutions business, and the management considers that o HE
the Group operates in one single business segment.
The Group primarily operates in Hong Kong, the PRC (excluding REEBFENEE HE(FE BFRE
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan), the United States of America (the BRI CEBREAFILE - EHREH
“US") and Italy. The management assesses the performance of the HARKELEWRAZWEB R R BTG
Group from a geographic perspective based on the locations of REBERKR -
the subsidiaries in which revenues are generated.
The management assesses the performance of the operating ERERENELE SN (BB
segments based on a measurement of segmental operating profit/ EAKE s EHNRTE -
(loss).
An analysis of the Group’s turnover and results for the year by REBEERERSFE DN AEEEER
segment is as follows: &%Zﬁ Pa g (N
Year ended 31 December 2018
BE_E-\F+-A=+-BLEE
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macau and  Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy  Elimination Total
HE (&S
R R
AERS) BERHEM EY: EAF B ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TET TR TR
Turnover from external customers RENBEPHEERE 1,093,308 2,909,271 261,804 151,026 - 4,415,409
Inter-segment turnover NEREER 2,156,272 281,875 - - (2,438,147) -
Total turnover BuRE 3249580 3,191,146 261,804 151,026 (2438,147) 4,415,409
Segmental (losses)/earnings before interest ~ HAERFI ST BB HER
expense, taxes, depreciation and amortisation % 441 (&518) /&7
("(LBITDA)"/" EBITDA") ([ (LBDA )]/ TEBITDA ) (78,994) 813,512 (23,360) 592 (52,142) 659,608
Depreciation (Note 7) e (M37) (7,384) (1,807) (509) (1,478) - (11,178)
Amortisation (Note 7) #E (H7) (4321) (3.037) - (1,803) - (9.161)
Segmental operating (loss)/profit AEEE (BR) /85 (90,699) 808,668 (23,869) (2,689) (52,142) 639,269
Finance costs HBER (4,768)
Share of result of an investment accounted IR AARNREEE
for using the equity method (1,759)
Profit before income tax FiSH A& 632,742
Income tax expense e Y (117,344)
Profit for the year FERR 515,398
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 IEERM
Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+F+-A=1+-BLEE
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macau and Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy Elimination Total
HE (BB
AR
aERN) BEREM £ BEAA HH fet:
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx THx TR T FET FiEr
Turnover from external customers REIPEERHLESR 1,417,336 1,811,570 254,723 107,451 - 3,591,080
Inter-segment turnover NEEEERE 1,368,869 130,505 - 123 (1,499,497 -
Total turnover BEEE 2,786,205 1,942,075 254,723 107,574 (1,499,497) 3,591,080
Segmental EBITDA, DIEEBITDA (BREERE)
excluding impairment of assets 87,600 494,079 3,659 2,110 7,774 595,222
Depreciation (Note 7) WE (M37) (21,023) (567) (170) (1,066) - (22,826)
Amortisation (Note 7) i (FaL7) (6,227) (500) - (1,454) - (8,181)
Impairment of assets (Note 7) BERE (F:7) (136,192) - - - - (136,192)
Segmental operating (loss)/profit NEEE (FR)/EF (75,842) 493,012 3,489 (410) 7,774 428,023
Finance costs HBER (3,801)
Share of result of an investment accounted KB AZARMHREEE
for using the equity method 318
Profit before income tax PGB A& R 424,540
Income tax expense FEHMY (87,974)
Profit for the year FERF 336,566
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and RZE-—NF+_A=1T—HNHEEE
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December rEBEURBE_ZE - N\F+_A=1+—
2018 are as follows: BIEFEFRBDEENRENT
As at 31 December 2018
RZZB-NE+=ZA=+-H
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macauand  Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy  Elimination Total
hE(BE-
RAR
AR BERHM E: BEAF it ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TET TR TERT TET
Segment assets NEEE 3,935,394 2,263,502 264,424 99,399 (787,165) 5,775,554
Segment liabilities NEEE 1,713,857 291,512 331,233 47,791 (821,447) 1,562,946
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6 IEERM

Year ended 31 December 2018
BE-Z-\E+-A=t+-BHLEE

PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macauand  Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy  Elimination Total
HE(BE-
R R
AR EERHM £y BEAF s | ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TR TR TERT
Additions to non-current assets FRBEENRE 37,360 82 463 3,575 - 41,480

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2017 and
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December
2017 are as follows:

RN—_E—+F+_A=+—BHDEEE
FPEBAREBE-_ZE—+HE+-A=1+—
BILFEFRBEENRABENT

As at 31 December 2017
RZZE—+E+-A=+—H

PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macau and Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy Elimination Total
hE(FE
R R
RERS) BAEREM £ BAF i ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAR TAR THT ThR
Segment assets AEEE 3,728,617 1,877,835 193,693 99,475 (667,404) 5,232,216
Segment liabilities HEBE 1,484,612 319,254 230,166 50,835 (749,717) 1,335,150
Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-T—tF+-A=+—-ALFE
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macau and Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy Elimination Total
HE(FE
B R
aERSN)  FERER xH BAA B it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FERT TEL FHER FER
Additions to non-current assets FRBEENRE 112,19 66,981 608 33,888 - 213,671
ERESHNAERAT SR NFFR
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Additions to non-current assets mainly comprise additions to
property, plant and equipment and other non-current assets
(2017: additions to property, plant and equipment, prepayments
for land use rights, intangible assets and other non-current assets
including additions resulting from acquisitions through business
combinations).

In 2018, revenue of approximately HK$2,026,649,000 (2017:
HK$1,163,702,000) is derived from the largest customer,
representing 45.9% (2017: 32.4%) of the total revenue, which
is attributable to the HK operating segment; HK$195,099,000
(2017: HK$259,617,000) is derived from the second largest
customer, representing 4.4% (2017: 7.2%) of the total revenue,
which is attributable to the PRC operating segment (2017: same).

Information provided to the Executive Directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group is mainly domiciled in Hong Kong, the PRC, the US and
Italy.

The Group's non-current assets by geographical location, which
is determined by the geographical location in which the asset is
located, is as follows:

PEER (®)

FRBEERETZERENE BEER
BOREREMIERBDEE (T —L
FHYE BENREE LHERENTE
NHRBE BEVEEMHEMBIERDEE (B
REBERBAHBEMGHRE) ) -

RZE—N\F ' B##2,026,649,000/ T
(ZZ—+%:1,163,702,0008 7T ) ¥y I¢
ATRBRATF ZESWARBKRAR
459% (ZF—+tF:324% ) TEBRE
BERDE - AE49195,099,00058 7T (=
T — 4+ :259,617,000/8 7T ) YU A Ty 2Kk
BE-ZREFP ZZEWALBKANSL A%
(ZE—CEF:72% ) BEBRPREKD
H(ZZF—tF:RAL)-

MMITERRENTEHALRES PR
KAFE K-
KREBEEUEE HE EBEREAF
ArEfifib o
RRBEEMEE DN ALEEERBEE
ER IR N

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZET—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Non-current assets FREBEE

PRC, excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan R (BEE RFKREERIN 301,909 244,700
Hong Kong and others BERHEAM 81,877 96,718
us EgE 516 562
Italy EWN 47,516 51,063
431,818 393,043
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses, administrative
expenses, net impairment losses on financial assets and

7 BREEIATHREX

FEAHERAR HER THRHAX & #
BEZREFERREERENRA DN

impairment of assets are analysed as follows: PN
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2018 2017
—E-NE —ZT—+HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Remuneration to the Company’s auditor ZAN/NESIE 72 g
— Group's annual audit services —RNEBEFEZERTE 1,720 1,770
— audit services for subsidiaries of the Group —AEEN B AR ZEARS 333 290
— non-audit services — B ER TS 780 1,209
Remuneration to other auditor H Mz EE < 225 435
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BERZETE (H[E14)

(Note 14) 11,178 22,826
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 15) T (s RS (FI5E15) 4,321 3,173
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) mEEEHE (HiE1e) 4,840 5,008
Employee benefit expenses EBERBMNAX (BEEEHS)

(including Directors’ emoluments) (Note 10) (BfzE10) 527,433 482,845
Costs of inventories sold (Note 20) EHFERA (K5E20) 2,709,172 2,098,181
Operating lease rentals in respect of office premises W AEVEM K LHER S 30,655 32,429
Research and development costs IR ID N 332,016 287,230
Sales commission HEMRS 28,196 25,509
Losses on disposals of property, LEE  HWEREZENEE

plant and equipment (Note 31(b)) (BF&E31(b)) 1,786 30
Provision/(reversal of provision) for obsolete PRETFEEME, (BERE)

inventories (Note 20) (Kt7F20) 43,071 (1,824)
Net impairment losses on financial assets DREEZREFERE

(note a, Note 21(c)) (Ff=Ea~ MIzE21(0)) 43,290 43,220
Impairment of assets (note a) BEEME (HTa) - 136,192
Note a: ffiiEa
In 2017, due to the unexpected market competition and increasing REZT—+tF ARPETBPHEUTER 2T
uncertainties in the China market, the Group decided not to further the S R E =L AEERETHE
business of Shanghai New Kashuo Information Technology Company —FETEBFRFEGCERMAERAA ([ £
Limited (“Shanghai Kashuo”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the BRHNDLEMBLAG (B RHFEEE])
“Kashuo Group”) and to scale down the expansion plan of Suzhou leasy ZEBREREMNNITSEERFER QA
Information Technology Co. Ltd (“Suzhou leasy”). As a result, the Group (T &M 7T ZEREE AL BE-T
recognised an impairment of assets relating to the operation of Kashuo —EFA A=+ BUEFE AREERE
Group amounting to HK$118,679,000 and Suzhou leasy amounting to THEELEERBENAERE18,679,000%
HK$17,513,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017. The total amount m&é%dll%u??%m%éméw 513,000/ 7T
of HK$136,192,000 excludes the impairment of trade receivables of 136 192,000 T 2 BFEIL T 6 EOEARE
Kashuo Group of HK$40,279,000 which had been included as part of the —tE+-—A=t+— AL RN REE
net impairment losses on financial assets for the year ended 31 December Zf}aﬂﬁgﬁﬂéﬁ’\]—*ﬁﬁquﬁ%lfgqﬂl RIE R

2017.

NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS/GAIN

The net foreign exchange loss recognised in administrative
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$1,618,000 (2017: net gain of HK$5,141,000).

840,279,000/ Jt °

8 ISMEFEE W

HE-ZT— ) \F+-_A=t+—HIFERTT
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ@%%ﬂ\/$ﬁﬁ /41,618,000
B (T — £ F: FUEE5,141,0008
JL) °
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9 FINANCE COSTS 9 HXKEHR
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—BLEE
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT
Factoring costs RIBEKER 4,143 3,801
Interest expense MEEH 625 -
4,768 3,801
10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 10 EERANBEX (BREEMSE)

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Wages and salaries IENHS 475,397 430,844
Social security and pension costs HERE KRR S AR 50,946 51,792
Employee benefit obligation — defined EEBMNEB - R ERNE

benefit plans 1,090 209

527,433 482,845

Five highest paid individuals EEEEFAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the rEEHE—_ZTE - \F+ZA=+—HL
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 included three FERAEZESHALIBE=-GEE (2
Directors (2017: three) whose emoluments are reflected in the —+F:=ZF)  HMEERWEI79 A
analysis shown in Note 37. The emoluments payable to the R RFERNHBTHE (ZE—EF
remaining two (2017: two) individuals during the year are as MEZ)ATHENSEHTI T -

follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HILLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

Salaries, allowances, share options and e 2 - BEBRENEMER
benefits in kind 5,390 4,256
Pension cost BIRE R AR 981 28

6,371 4,284
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

1"

Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

10 BEEEFRAX (BRESHE)

(&)

AEBREHALT (E)
B T AR R -

Number of individuals

Emolument bands

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000

AE
2018 2017
—E-NFE —ZT—+F
B 48 Bl
2,000,001/ 7T — 2,500,000/ JT - 2
2,500,001/ 7T — 3,000,000/ JT 1 -
3,000,001/ T — 3,500,000/ JT 1 -

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11 FEHEX

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-BLEE

2018 2017
—E-NF ZT—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current income tax on profit for the year FEEMz BT
— China corporate income tax —HEPEMEH 6,466 15,277
- Hong Kong profits tax —BBENEB 136,764 82,228
— Overseas profits tax —BINFIET 1,172 13
Tax incentives for research and development R B A SZ B9 B A Rl st
expenses available for the subsidiaries MEBRNRIBESR
incorporated in the PRC (13,100) (8,364)
Under/(over) provision in prior year, net BAFERETR (BEEE) -
R 1,565 (1,147)
Total current income tax BIERFT1S i 2 458 132,867 88,007
Deferred income tax RIEFTISTH (15,523) (33)
Income tax expense Frisfif = 117,344 87,974

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Taxes on overseas profits have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

HE_Z—\F+_A=1+—HLFE &
BAEHARB A E R RS IR =R 16.5%
(ZZE—+F:165% ) EL&EME-

91 R RO B 2R 052K 4R BAS 2 2 75
i AR EBNRTAD  REREE - 17
RATHEEE

EERRRHARAT - NEEH
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC effective
from 1 January 2008 (the “CIT Law"), companies in the PRC are
subject to income tax of 25% unless preferential rate is applicable.

. Pax Computer Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Pax
Computer Shenzhen”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, is located in the Shenzhen Special Economic Zone.
Pursuant to Caishui [2016] Circular 49 jointly released by the
Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation,
the National Development and Reform Commission and
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of
the PRC, management performed self-assessment on the
eligibility for the tax incentives. Management estimated
that Pax Computer Shenzhen was qualified as a National
Key Software Enterprise and entitled to the preferential
corporate income tax rate of 10% for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: same). The application of the
preferential tax rate is a critical accounting estimate as set
out in Note 4(a) to these consolidated financial statements.

. Wonder Pax Technology (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (“Wonder
Pax”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, obtained
approval from the relevant tax authorities in April 2015
for a preferential tax treatment and is fully exempted from
the PRC corporate tax for two years, starting from 2014,
followed by a 50% tax exemption for the ensuing three
years. As such, the applicable corporate income tax rate of
Wonder Pax is 12.5% for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: same).

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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BRER-_ZZTN\F—A—AERNFTEDE
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f B T ¥ 1= B SR & 24 69 B Y
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities in

the respective jurisdictions as follows:

11 PSRl @

7R % [ Bk P 15 5 A1 M O A TR B R A SE A
REERDERE R A G E 88 )% A # hIE F
O ENIER SR EEN T

Year ended 31 December

BE+-ZHA=+—BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZET—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Profit before income tax B AT 1S B¢ A& A 632,742 424,540
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to 1% A & 1 B0 5% 2= 4 )i ) 79 3
profits in the respective countries BN R ENHIE 109,376 46,540
Income not subject to taxation =R A OB ON (1,023) (5,233)
Tax incentives for research and development AR B T Ak ST HO B B A B mE A A
expenses available for the subsidiaries EBRNHIBESE (M)
incorporated in the PRC (note (i)) (13,100) (8,364)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes BB E A HURAI R 9,469 34,859
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax was KR IELEFTSHEAOEEEIE
recognised 11,155 21,891
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses B 1E KRR 2 B 1B E5 18 (98) (572)
Under/(over) provision in prior year, net F—FEREBEIR (BEREE)
R 1,565 (1,147)
117,344 87,974

Note (i): The Group obtained an incentive from the PRC tax authority
relating to the research and development expenses of the
subsidiaries in the PRC. Under such tax incentive rule, the Group
may claim an additional tax deduction up to 75% (2017: 50%)
of the relevant research and development expenses incurred in a

year approved by the PRC tax authority.

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 17.3% for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 11.0%). The change is carried
by a change in the profitability mix of the Group's subsidiaries in

the respective countries.

B 5 (i) + AN 5 Bz FA AR B A Y B A )k EL A B
BRHESTREBISHAEMN — B
HEBR - BREEBEREERRE K
EEARFEIREFRESBEFA
M REERNTS% (T — L&
50% ) + 3 A B A 755 1 R BE O o

HE—_Z—N\E+-_A=+—HItEE"
I EAR R AE173% (ZF—+F:
11.0%) - BB AR AEER S RN B
NEI BTG NEE HBEE(LRTE -

EERRRHARAT - NEEH
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year attributable to the owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

12

BREFN

(a)

£
SIRERRFIT AL ASH AL
ARG R B BT BB IR A
FHBGHE-

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—BLEE

2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+F
Profit attributable to the owners of RABIFRE ARG (FHET)
the Company (HK$'000) 522,470 407,507
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 277 & % hn#g F19 & (FAL)
in issue (thousand shares) 1,100,194 1,109,277
Basic earnings per share attributable to RRBFBE AR TRERET
the owners of the Company (HK$ per share) (& 7T) 0.475 0.367

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary
shares. The Company has one category of potentially dilutive
ordinary shares: share options. For the share options, a
calculation is done to determine the number of shares that
could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market share price of the Company'’s shares for the
period) based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of
the share options.
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12 BRERN @
(b) Diluted (continued) (b) #8(H)
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the share options BHE_ZE-N\F+A=1T—HILF
issued were not assumed to be exercised as they would E-BRERESHERERZNE
have an antidilutive impact to the basic earnings per EREETE FAREAETHE
share. For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, RELT TR -BE_ZE—\FR
the calculation of diluted earnings per share was based ZE—tHE+A=T—HIEFE"
on the profit attributable to owners of the Company and BREERNDIBBEARQREE AR
the adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares EEMRBRRERMEET®HELE
outstanding assuming the conversion of all potential dilutive A& 2 ST T BB E
ordinary shares, which was calculated as follows: STEAENT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-ZA=+—BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —FE—+F
Profit attributable to the owners of RAREE ARG R
the Company (HK$'000) (F#ET) 522,470 407,507
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EEITERRIMNE T
in issue (thousand shares) (FR%) 1,100,194 1,109,277
Adjustments for share options (thousand shares) 7t B A% # {E H 0 F8 &
(Fi&%) N/A RE A 2,236
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for & % & & 22 7 #) 3 38 A% A1
diluted earnings per share (thousand shares) HEFHe (TR 1,100,194 1,111,513
Diluted earnings per share attributable to ZAN/NCIESPEWNY LTRSS
owners of the Company (HK$ per share) SEREF (FRAT) 0.475 0.367

EERRRHARAT - NEEH
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13 DIVIDENDS 13 KRE
In 2018, an interim dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary share RZE—N\F - ARREZNHEHREER
(2017: HK$0.04 per ordinary share) was paid, amounting to TER0.04B T (ZE—+F : BREARK
approximately HK$44,008,000 (2017: HK$44,528,000). A final 0.04787T) - BE 444,008,000 7T (=&
dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 —+ % :44,528,0008 L) - R T — N1
December 2018 (2017: HK$0.04 per ordinary share), amounting FAAZBZREBFAGERETHEE
to HK$44,008,000 (2017: HK$44,008,000), is to be proposed ZE-NFFTZA=T—HBLEFEZKRH
at the annual general meeting on 2 May 2019. These financial BB EREBAR0.04ETL (ZE—HF:
statements do not reflect this dividend payable. % & 38 A%0.0478 7T) - 7% #144,008,000/% 7T

ZZE— 44 : 44,008,000/ 7T ) ° ANBF R
RPN RBRZEARE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE
2018 2017
—EBE-N\E —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET

Interim dividend paid of HK$0.04 B &I @ A% 0.0478 T HR
(2017: HK$0.04) per ordinary share e (ZZE—+F:0.04%87L) 44,008 44,528
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.04 I 3B AR 0.0478 TU Y 2 3% R A
(2017: HK$0.04) per ordinary share B (ZZE—+F:0.0487T) 44,008 44,008
88,016 88,536
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 YE -BERRZE
Office
Land and  Construction Leasehold furniture and Plant and Motor
buildings in process improvements  equipment equipment vehicles Total
TR nE BAE
B ERIR NELE BERRE HBERRE RE Fob
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHRT FHT FHT FaR FHET FHT
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-E-N\&
+tZA=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount BOREFEE 16,314 2,671 2,187 12,853 13,716 3,817 51,558
Additions AE - 10,915 8,389 7,196 10,714 - 37,214
Disposals HeE - - (1,391) (395) - - (1,786)
Depreciation (Note 7) & (M7) (226) - (973) (4,652) (4,076) (1,251) (11,178)
Exchange realignment EREE (668) (539) (473) (692) (929) (139) (3,440)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 15,420 13,047 7,739 14,310 19,425 2,427 72,368
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F
+ZA=1+-H
Cost A 22,551 13,047 9,813 32,819 29,7 9,434 117,405
Accumulated depreciation and ZHWERRE
impairment (7,131) - (2,074) (18,509) (10,316) (7,007) (45,037)
Net book amount REFE 15,420 13,047 7,739 14,310 19,425 2,427 72,368
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

14 YME -BERRE®

Office
landand  Construction Leasehold  furniture and Plant and Motor
buildings in process  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
TR HE BOE
BF ERIR mEEE  GERRE BERLRRE AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THT FHT FHT FET T
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-E-tF
tTZA=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount HYREFE - - 1,442 8,595 55,796 2,086 67,919
Acquisitions of subsidiaries G-I 16,352 - 228 2,116 3,216 817 22,729
Additions RE - 2,577 2,105 7,071 3,493 2,274 17,520
Disposals e - - - (30) - - (30)
Impairment AE - - (1,204) 2,110 (33,643) (766) (37,723)
Depreciation (Note 7) & (F:t7) (37) - (587) (3,635) (17,808) (759) (22,826)
Exchange realignment [ERESE (1) 94 203 846 2,662 165 3,969
Closing net book amount BREEFE 16,314 2,671 2,187 12,853 13,716 3,817 51,558
At 31 December 2017 RZE—LF
+ZA=+-A
Cost %S 23,590 2,671 3,952 28,168 20,429 9,866 88,676
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERAE
impairment (7,276) - (1,765) (15,315) (6,713) (6,049) (37,118)
Net book amount FHFE 16,314 2,671 2,187 12,853 13,716 3,817 51,558

Depreciation expense of HK$2,591,000 (2017: HK$15,517,000)
has been charged to cost of goods sold and HK$8,587,000 (2017:

HK$7,309,000) has been charged to administrative expenses.

As at 31 December 2018, borrowings of HK$8,244,000 (2017:
HK$10,716,000) were secured by land and buildings in Korea with
net book values of HK$15,420,000 (2017: HK$16,314,000) (Note

29).

PrERM £2,591,0008 T (T —+HF:
15,517,000 L) Est ASEE R AR
8,587,000/ 7t ( =& — £ 4 : 7,309,000
T BEFTAITERAX -

R-ZE—N\FE+-A=+—H" 8,244,000
BT (ZZE—+%:10,716,000/8 7T) B {&
B DABR % (815,420,000 T (—F—+
F 116,314,000/ 7T ) B 8 B L i R I F1E
AR (5E29) ©

HEERMRARAT —E—NEEH
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15 LAND USE RIGHTS 15 TihfEARE
The Group’s interests in land use rights represent upfront REE R T AR IE Tt AT BT
payments for land and their net carrying values are analysed as o BEREFESTAOT:
follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1t—HLEE
2018 2017
—EBE-NE —ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Opening net carrying value BRY)BREDFE 84,473 186
Addition NE - 83,333
Amortisation (Note 7) B aH (P EE7) (4.321) (3,173)
Exchange realignment Rk (4,129) 4,127
Closing net carrying value HiR BREDF(E 76,023 84,473
The Group's land use rights are located in the PRC and is held on REBES TP RECHNFE  HER10E
leases of between 10 to 50 years. Amortisation of the Group's 504F o AR B T F AEMBBIEE R A
land use rights has been charged to administrative expenses. THRX -
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 EBREEE
Contractual
customer
Brand relationships
Goodwill names and others Total
AHNEE
EE e BAEREAM a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAER FER FTAER FTAER
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z2-N\&
tZRA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount HERHEFE 51,008 12,303 26,948 90,259
Amortisation (Note 7) By (MsE7) - (1,231) (3,609) (4,840)
Exchange realignment [ 5 =% (2,207) (491) (1,074) (3,772)
Closing net book amount HIRERE FE 48,801 10,581 22,265 81,647
At 31 December 2018 R-E-NE+=ZA=+—H
Cost 7R 110,032 12,095 50,020 172,147
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Z 5+ 85 & 6 (B (61,231) (1,514) (27,755) (90,500)
Net book amount REFE 48,801 10,581 22,265 81,647
Contractual
customer
Brand  relationships
Goodwill names  and others Total
BHRP
[5ES e BERREM A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHET FAT FHEL
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tfF
+tZRA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount HYIREFE 64,583 - 24,809 89,392
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W BB A A 40,424 12,467 20,910 73,801
Impairment BB (59,077) - (16,137) (75,214)
Amortisation (Note 7) BiE (MsE7) - (301) (4,707) (5,008)
Exchange realignment [ 5 =% 5,078 137 2,073 7,288
Closing net book amount HIRERE FE 51,008 12,303 26,948 90,259
At 31 December 2017 R=ZB—tH+=A=+—-H
Cost DN 112,239 12,621 52,446 177,306
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Z 5+ 8 & 6 (B (61,231) (318) (25,498) (87,047)
Net book amount REFE 51,008 12,303 26,948 90,259

EERRREERAT  —®-\EEH
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Amortisation of HK$4,840,000 (2017: HK$5,008,000) has been
charged to administrative expenses.

The relevant goodwill is allocated to the respective groups of
CGUs, which represent the lowest level within the Group at which
the relevant goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, and not larger than an operating segment.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's goodwill of HK$19,215,000
(2017: HK$20,039,000) and HK$29,586,000 (2017:
HK$30,969,000) is attributable to the acquisition of Kwang Woo
Information & Communication Co., Ltd and its subsidiary (“Kwang
Woo0") and the operation in Italy respectively.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on a
value in use calculation. The calculation uses pre-tax cash flow
projection based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Thereafter, the cash flows are
extrapolated using the terminal growth rates not exceeding the
long-term average growth rate of the countries in which the CGU
operates.

Impairment test for goodwill arising from the
acquisition of Kwang Woo and the operation in Italy
The key assumptions are as follows:

16

—E-N\E

BILEE (&)

B 354,840,000 L (T — &
5,008,000/ 70) E BT E A H0kk

HEmE I EEERRSELEMMER -
ReEEBEMENAEEE B /M EEH
BEETEERNASRESEEL  LATE
KRR —EE LD HB

RZE-NF+ZA=+—H Hx&H
B 219,215,000 T (Z T —+F:
20,039,000/ 7T ) 529,586,000/ 7T (=&
—+ % : 30,969,000/ 7T ) T3 0 Bl 2K B W B
Kwang Woo Information & Communication
Co., Ltd and its subsidiary ([Kwang Woo |)
AR BRI 57 o

Rt B e AR L B A PR (B 0
HEEE  H EREEIT BN T
H81 B B R BB B T A 1T
Ho i RS R EATRA M R
ETEBBRSEL B EEFERRY
RAFIERE -

H U B Kwang Woo K = K Rl #9 2 3% it
EENEHEETRENR
FERFZEINOT

Kwang Woo The operation in Italy

BARMRES
2018
—B2-0\%

2018 2017

—E—+tF

2017
—E—tF

Pre-tax discount rate FAIBRIRE &
Compound annual growth rate BaFERE
Terminal growth rate Bt R R

9.3%
17.1%
2.0%

9.3%
7.6%
2.0%

19.9%
16.2%
2.0%

20.3%
23.2%
2.0%

The recoverable amount calculated based on value in use
exceeded carrying value as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. An
increase in pre-tax discount rate by 1.0% (2017: 1.4%) and 0.8%
(2017: 0.3%) would remove the remaining headroom for Kwang
Woo and the operation in Italy, respectively.
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17 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS AND FINANCIAL ASSET AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

(a) Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s financial asset at FVPL
represents investment in unlisted investment fund outside
Hong Kong with following details:

17 BROAFEFAEBERZERHEERIE
AFEFAHMEZEWEZERE
E/MHHESREE

(@) RAFEFABRBZZERNEE
RZFB-NF+-A=1t—0 K&
BmIR A TEFABRZ SR EER

BRARIFLMBEERS 2REN

T
HK$°000
FET
Balance at 31 December 2017, R-ZE—t&+=-A=+—H
as originally presented RERZES 2 &tk -
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.1.1) FETBR N E (FF5E2.1.1)
— Reclassify from AFS to financial asset at FVPL — R ESREEEN"EAR
BRAFEF ARG EREE 55,378
Balance at 1 January 2018, as restated RZE-NF—F—HAKEI &8 55,378
Addition = 40,782
Fair value gain on revaluation recognised REBRZAERHEGB R FE R
in profit or loss 2,888
Exchange realignment M H S (4,990)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=ZZB-NF+ZA=+—B2Z&&% 94,058

The carrying amount of the financial asset at FVPL is
denominated in RMB.

BRAFEFABRZEREENKRE
BEAARBE

HEERMRARAT —E—NEEH @7
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17 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17
PROFIT OR LOSS AND FINANCIAL ASSET AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

(continued)

(b) Financial asset at fair value through other

comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s financial asset at
FVOCI represents investment in unlisted equity investment
outside Hong Kong which is not held for trading, and
the Group was irrevocably elected at initial recognition in
this category. This is a strategic investment and the Group
considers this classification more relevant.

BRAFETABRZZEeREERIIR
AFEFAEMCEZEKREZEME
E/AHHESREE (&)

(b) BRAFEAHMEZEWZZER
EE
R-E—NFE+-_A=+—0 K&
ERAFEFAEMEZERZEZ S8
BEEBBBIITIEFEEBERLAE
B~ A e b 358 4 A 52 SR B W 20 T AR
RELMERREZIRE-HA—1E
REEREBASERARENEE
AL

HK$°000
FET
Balance at 31 December 2017, R-ZZE—tF+=-HA=+—8H
as originally presented REXES 24t -
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.1.1) BETBURSE (5E2.1.1)
— Reclassify from AFS to financial asset at FVOCI —HAHHESREESNDER
BRATFEFAREMEENEE 2
TREE 19,139
Balance at 1 January 2018, as restated RZZB-NF-—HA—HRKEI 248 19,139
Fair value loss on revaluation recognised REMEEAKZPERNEG R FESE
in other comprehensive income (7,269)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZB-—NF+ZA=+—H2&E8 11,870

The carrying amount of the financial asset at FVOCI is
denominated in EUR.

4@ PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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17 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17 BRAVEFAEZZEMEERIE
PROFIT OR LOSS AND FINANCIAL ASSET AT AFEFAHMEEZEHKEzEHE
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE E/AHHEESREE (&)

INCOME/AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

(continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets (0 AHHEESMEE
As at 31 December 2017, the Group's AFS represents RZE—+FE+_A=+—H K&
investments in unlisted equity investment and unlisted BRI EE S REEEIE - mRE
investment fund with the following details: WERFEMEERGZIRE B
BT
Year ended
31 December
2017
BHZE
—E—+F
+ZA=+—H
LEFE
HK$"000
FHET
At 1 January n—A—H -
Addition NE 75,345
Fair value losses on revaluation recognised O E Ath 2 E Y 2k R R
in other comprehensive income BHAFEEE (6,145)
Exchange realignment ME H S 5,317
At 31 December R+=—B=+—8H 74,517
Unlisted investment fund outside Hong Kong ERBEIINELITRERES 55,378
Unlisted equity investment outside Hong Kong HBEINE E TR E 19,139
74,517
Available-for-sale financial assets are dominated in the AL ESRMEEDU TS BT
following currencies: &:
Year ended
31 December
2017
BHZE
—EF—+F
+ZA=+—H
IEFE
HK$"000
FHT
RMB AR 55,378
EUR BT 19,139
74,517

HEERMRARAT —E—NEEH @7
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18 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2018 and 2017:

Place of incorporation and  Principal activities and

18 KMIBLQE

RZB-NFER_F—tF+-_A=+—
Sl Ixﬁﬁﬁ’“ﬂ%%ﬁﬂ‘-

Particulars of issued and

Name ;¥pe of le ngal entity place of operation aid up/registered capital Interest held
) RORHRRA
A% %Enﬂ!ﬁﬁu TEERREXLH AMERFE PR
2018 2017
—E-NF ZZ—tF
Pax Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Sales of E-payment Terminals products HK$113,125,000 100% 100%
BERRED company and provision of related services 113,125,000/ 7T
R BRR in\HongﬁKong L
EEBHEETINRRERR
REEERS
Pax Computer Technology The PRC, limited liability Development and sales of HK$380,000,000 100% 100%
(jhen;hen) Co. Ltd. (%) company E-payment Terminals products and 380,000,000/ 7T
Az Ei (F) FE-ERD provision of related services in the PRC
ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁj E‘?.ﬂﬁ"‘&%m%%f jlmiﬁFuu&
REEE RS
Wonder Pax Technology The PRC, limited liability Development of software and hardware of HK$20,000,000 100% 100%
__(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (*) company E-payment Terminals products and 20,000,000/ 7T
BEBERR ORI R ﬁ E provision of related services in PRC
BRAT T B E 73 in M Rk
R R rR AR B AR
Pax Technology, Inc. The US, limited liability Sales of E- payment Terminals products US$1,000 100% 100%
company 1,000E 7T
X8 BRA E%@ﬁn E%i BNES =
Pax Italia S.r.l. Ital Inmted liability company  Development and customising software ~ EUR100,000 70% 70%
/X\ RAA systems and sales of E-payment 100,0008% 7T
Terminals roducts in Italyt
E Kﬂ A REAMEERE
HE @?iﬁmlﬁg m
CSC ltalia S.r.l. Italy, limited liability company  Provision of software systems and EUR100,000 60% 60%
EAF BRAR E-payment Terminals maintenance and 100,000t 7T
mstallann serwces in Italy
EEAFRESGHZER
7% ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ’]i’ﬁ ERTERY
Kwang Woo Information & Korea, limited liability company Development, manufacturing and sales of ~ Korean Won (“WON") 4,238,000,000 87% 51%
Eiommunication Co, ltd. BBl BRARF Epayment Terminals products 4,238,000,0002 2]
note a)
EE&IWX EEREEEFXN
R i B
Pax Pos Solutions India India Sales of E-payment Terminals products in  Indian Rupee (“INR") 32,500,000 100% -
Private Ltd. E 32,500,000E0 [ E H,
EEI?J*% ETENRBER
Pax Japan Kabushlkl Kaisha  Japan Sales of E-payment Terminals products in Japanese Yen ("JPY") 100,000 100% -
Pax Japanif 2\ 2 4t AR Japan e 100,000A 7T
ERAHEEFINRER
Shanghai New Kashuo The PRC, limited liability Inactive RMB30,000,000 51% 51%
Information Technology company R 30,000,000 K
Company Limited (*) R ﬁ E
(noteb)
FERFRHELRTERAA
Suzhou leasy Information The PRC, limited liability Inactive RMB7,500,000 60% 60%
Technology Co., Ltd () company TEe 7,500,000 A R
BINATFER HEBRA
MEERL A
*  The English names of Pax Computer Shenzhen, Wonder Pax, * HRBEFERRI SZ8E LEFR

Shanghai Kashuo and Suzhou leasy represent the best effort by the
management of the Group in translating their Chinese names as
they do not have official English names.
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The non-controlling interests in respect of Pax Italia S.r.l., Shanghai
Kashuo, Suzhou leasy, CSC ltalia S.rl. and Kwang Woo are not
material.

Notes:

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group increased
its shareholding in Kwang Woo from 51% to 87%. The
Group recognised the decrease in non-controlling interests of
HK$1,341,000 and an increase in other reserves of the same
amount. There were no transactions with non-controlling interests
in 2017.

In July 2018, a court of competent jurisdiction in Shanghai rendered
a civil ruling in acceptance of Shanghai Kashuo's application for
bankruptcy liquidation in accordance with the Enterprise Bankruptcy
Law of the People's Republic of China. A qualified PRC law firm
has been appointed to follow up with the voluntary winding-up of
Shanghai Kashuo in accordance with the laws of the PRC. As at 31
December 2018, the liquidation process was still underway.

18 KB F (4)
A BPax Italia S.rl.~ /R &M AT
5+ CSC ltalia S.r.l.&zKwang WooH) 3F 12 i
o A N SN

GEE

/

a: REBEEZZ-NF+ZA=+—HLItHF
[ RNEE I INFTH B Kwang Woof iR
TEMH51%E87% o AN & B FE R I 1% i 4
=R A, 341 OOO%EIL/(*HH%%E:E)\
HibhfE - R -t F W E IR
EEEETTE‘EHX%"

b: RZZE—NFLtA LtE—FEEEE
BEENERBRE (PEAREME R
EWEE) L TREEE BEXLHE
FHNBEESERG  —HAEERKPH
EHEBMEEZEREBEFENEZR
HEBFRHENERBER N —N\F
+ZRA=+—H8 BERFLELEHETH-

BERMAMZARRR  ZE-NFEH
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19 INVESTMENT ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19 ERZEARNRE
EQUITY METHOD
Set out below is an associated company of the Group as at 31 UWTHIR - E—N\EFR_E—tF+=
December 2018 and 2017, Shanghai Coshine Software Company A=+—BARKEMNEE AR LERER
Ltd. (“Shanghai Coshine”). Shanghai Coshine has share capital HERAR ([ LERHE]) - EEREHK
consisting solely of registered capital, which is held directly by the TEBEAMER BAEBEERE H
Group; its principal place of business is in the PRC. FEL MBI NP
Shanghai Coshine is an advanced system and services provider in LBRAEBEAZINES  EFREBEHE
payment infrastructure, electronic business software solution and mASNEL B R r A AR 75 7Y o

outsourcing operation.

Particular of

Place of incorporation and registered Nature of Effective Measurement
Name kind of legal entity capital  relationship  Interest held method
A% EMB LR EEREER AMERFE BEME ERAGER stEAE
31 December 2018 and 2017
“E-N\FR-B-tF
+=A=t+-H
Shanghai Coshine The PRC, limited liability company RMB13,326,190 Associated 20%  Equity method
company
LERE hE BRAF 13,326,190 A K% BN 20% BR%
As at 31 December
R+t=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT THET
Carrying amount of individually immaterial & B 22 K= A B/ BRTE B
associated company 17,974 20,720

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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19 INVESTMENT ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

19 BREZZEFARNEBE @)

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+t—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—+F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
The Group's share of result recognised in the REBPRGEERERERD G
consolidated income statement BECEEBEE (1,759) 318

There is no contingent liability relating to the Group's interest in
Shanghai Coshine. The Group’s interest in Shanghai Coshine is not
material.

Shanghai Coshine is a private company and there is no quoted
market price available for its shares.

20 INVENTORIES

BMESHEAKSER LR s m oA
BE-AKERLBFRLHEREY TEK-

EERER—MAARR HBRHILEAH
5 1 -
20 7K

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Raw materials JRM# 306,800 257,297
Work in progress R 170,167 169,080
Finished goods LR m 705,048 492,075
1,182,015 918,452

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the year
amounted to HK$2,709,172,000 (2017: HK$2,098,181,000),
which included provision for inventories of HK$43,071,000 (2017:
reversal of provision of HK$1,824,000).

FR - REEREAAENGTER KLY
£2,709,172,0008 L (=T — £ & :
2,098,181,000/8 L) - B BIEF E#E
43,071,000 L (ZFE—+F - BEHELD
1,824,000 7T ) °

EERRRHARAT - NEEH @7
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21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

21 BURAREWRERZ#BHERAR
JIRMEEMEE

As at 31 December
Rt+t=-—B=+—H
2018 2017

—EBE-N\FE —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T T

Trade receivables (note (a))
Amount due from a related party (note (a),
Note 34(b))
Less: provision for impairment of receivables
(note (c))

FEUBR 3k (i sE(a))

JiE U — P R B 5 BB (B RE(a)
Bt 5E34(b) )

B FRUGRIERE RS (FTRE))

1,892,275 1,695,406

90,389 32,453

(84,169) (49,163)

Trade receivables, net
Bills receivables (note (b))

e AR K — 58
fEdEE (MiEEDb))

1,898,495 1,678,696
20,913 24,718

Trade and bills receivables

JE U AR R B W R A

1,919,408 1,703,414

1,925,255 1,720,016

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and bills receivables
and other financial assets at amortised cost are denominated in

the following currencies:

WHHE

7R 55 5] B W B R % B MR R A e 4 5 A
RIGENEMSRMEENREENLTNIIE

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—EBE-N\E —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

us$
RMB
EUR
HK$
Others

e
AR
BT
BT

Hith

1,123,875 752,661
680,184 879,615

60,612 58,655
23,015 20,267
37,569 8,818

1,925,255 1,720,016

The fair values of trade and bills receivables and other financial
assets at amortised cost approximate their carrying values as at 31

December 2018 and 2017.

RZE—N\Fh_FT—+F+-_A=+—
B - B U BR TR % FE i 22 1 K 3% 4 g Ak AN B

fReEMERMEEN A FEEHERmENR

%o

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

1))
o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#n © B 55 R = Bl 51

21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (continued)

(a)

Trade receivables

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range generally
from 0 to 180 days. However, credit terms of more than 180
days may be granted to customers on a case-by-case basis
upon negotiation. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
ageing analysis of the trade receivables and amount due
from a related party based on invoice date is as follows:

21 BURAREWRERZ#BHERAR
FIRMEMERMEE ()

(a) FEURARSR

AEEGRTEZEBANEERHAO
E180H 5 - AT - LR & P IR (B
B RAEFE T BRBISOBNEE
BH-RZE-—N\FRZZE—tF+=
A=+—8 BRERREK—HH
%7 RIBIRE R A M ERER DT
T

As at 31 December

R+=-—HA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Up to 90 days 90H AW 1,040,516 1,213,758
91 to 180 days 91£180H 614,992 242,795
181 to 365 days 181£365H 84,754 128,667
Over 365 days 365H M F 242,402 142,639
1,982,664 1,727,859

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables included
retention money receivables of HK$69,739,000 (2017:
HK$91,100,000), which represents 2% to 5% (2017: same)
of the relevant contract sum granted to certain number of
the customers in the PRC that has a retention period of
three to five years (2017: same). As at 31 December 2018,
retention money receivables aged over 365 days amounted
to HK$63,018,000 (2017: HK$72,005,000).

The Group's sales are made to several major customers and
there is concentration of credit risks. Sales of goods and
services to the top five customers constituted approximately
60.7% (2017: 53.5%) of the Group's revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2018. They accounted for
approximately 52.7% (2017: 43.6%) of the gross trade
receivable balances as at 31 December 2018.

R-ZE—-NE+-A=+—80 FElk
AR 70 B 15 E ITE 1 € %869,739,000/%8
7T (ZZFE—+4:91,100,0008 7T) -
HETFHRRETELNIEBEABEASE
B2%E5% (ZE—+F R L) m
B A=FRFE (T —+4F:
BLE) RZZFE—N\F+=—A=+—
A EKIEIISFEERARHBIB365A MR
%4 563,018,000 T (Z&E —t4F:
72,005,000/ 7T ) °

AEENHEENAEBAEEETFIES
BEEEEEHRRR -HE-_Z—N\F
+—A=Z+—BLEFE HRARF
HERNE M RIRE A RE(L A E B UK
A4960.7% (ZFE—+4F :53.5%) -
mER—_E—NF+_A=+—H
RN IR N AE R BB AI52.7% (= F
—+ % :43.6%) °
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21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (continued)

(a) Trade receivables (continued)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
amounted to approximately HK$1,768,799,000 as at 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$1,576,716,000).

As of 31 December 2018, trade receivables of
HK$129,696,000 (2017: HK$101,980,000) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no significant financial difficulty
and based on past experience, the overdue amounts can be
recovered. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is

21 BURAREWRERZ#BHERAR
JIRMEERMEE (8)

(@) FEWRRRR (40)

RZZE—NF+_A=+—8"
BE 4 80 HR O A R (E A R G IE A
1,768,799,000 BT (Z T —+HF:
1,576,716,0005% 7T ) °

RZE-NF+ZA=+—80 EK
8K 3£129,696,000/8 70 (—ZE — L& :
101,980,000/ 7T ) £ %81 AR 18 KB (A
BEBZWESAVERENBLE
FAEB ERNBTER @HRER
F UL [E] o 1t 55 FE UER SRR BR R 0 AT 10

as follows: T
As at 31 December
R+=B=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Up to 90 days 90H KA 28,710 9,174
91 to 180 days 91£180H 17,895 14,685
181 to 365 days 181£365H 11,990 51,562
Over 365 days 365H M F 71,101 26,559

129,696 101,980

(b) Bills receivables
The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity
periods of within six months.

The maturity profile of the bills receivables of the Group is as

(b)

W EE
ZAEEERIE R HHARE AN E A AR EYER
TR EE -

AEBERREENZIBMBERLT :

follows:
As at 31 December
R+=ZBA=+—H
2018 2017
—E2-N\FE ZZE—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Up to 90 days 90H AR 20,625 11,703
91 to 180 days 91%180H 288 13,015
20,913 24,718
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21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 21
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (continued)

(c) Provision for impairment of receivables
The movement on the provision for impairment of
receivables is as follows:

FEW R AR I B W SR 48 I R i SR R AR
FIRMEMERMEE ()

(0 EBRERRERE
FENGR IR E R BRI T

As at 31 December
Rt+t=-—B=+—H
2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+fF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

At beginning of the year REA 49,163 4,067
Provision for impairment losses for the year 4 AR B E 1B B 4& (i 3£7)

(Note 7) 44,713 43,220
Reversal of provision (Note 7) BEEE (7)) (1,423) -
Written off &8 (4,479) -
Exchange realignment bE 3 & (3,805) 1,876
At end of the year RER 84,169 49,163

The rising tension in international trade dispute and tighter
lending conditions in China market in the second half of
2018 increased the challenges for the operation of certain
domestic companies. Based on the assessment of the
expected credit losses (refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii)), the Group has
made a provision for impairment of the trade receivables of
HK$44,713,000 during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying values of each class of receivables mentioned above. The
Group did not hold any collateral as security for these receivables
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: same).

EERRRHARAT - NEEH

BERESERFELR_T—N\ET
FFERIEHERGEG A LEAND
Er B Pk e - A%k E R T8 5P
EEEERZ (2B E3.10)i0) « 5t
HE_Z-\FE+-_A=+—HILF
[E 1 I B Wi BR OB (B #E 844,713,000
It

RESEHEENSFAEERR S EAE
BERMFENREE R/ \F+_H
=t—B AEEAERZFRUIARTE
FEERR (T —EF:RAL)-
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22 OTHER ASSETS 22 HiEE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2018 2017
—E-N\NEFE —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Current portion BB 5
Prepayments TERT IR 3,403 7,967
Others Hitb 21,535 15,024
24,938 22,991
Non-current portion BB S
Prepayments TERT IR 45,266 43,077
Others HAth 908 9,708
46,174 52,785
23 RESTRICTED CASH 23 EZRERE
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—8H
2018 2017
—EBE-N\E —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Restricted bank deposits SRR HIEITIER 48,816 12,490
Restricted cash represents bank deposits of the Group which were XRHRSEAEEEARENERIEZS
placed as guarantee deposits for tenders and as securities for sales R E FEPMERMFHRARITTN
of goods to customers.
As at 31 December 2018, the effective interest rate on restricted RZE-—NF+ZA=+—8 ZBRHE
bank deposits was 0.30% (2017: 0.02%) per annum. TEFNERFNERAEEF030% (—ZF—+
F:0.02%) e
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RESTRICTED CASH (continued) 23

The carrying amounts of restricted cash were denominated in the
following currencies:

ZREBRE @)
ZREFCHEESEU T EBEE:

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—EBE-NE —ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

RMB AR #& 42,331 -
EUR BT 6,485 12,490

48,816 12,490
SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS 24 EHSRITER

As at 31 December 2018, the short-term bank deposits of
HK$2,520,000 represented bank deposits of the Group with
original maturities over three months which are denominated in
INR. The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was
7.35% per annum. As at 31 December 2017, there was no short-
term bank deposits held by the Group.

RZEBE-NE+_A=+—H ETHRE
771% 702,520,000 Ju 35 A & B 7 7F £ &5
HilB® =18 AW AE ELL T EMRTT
BR-BHRTERANERF R ATF
735% R_ZBE—+H+_A=+—8H"
AEBIW T HEEIBEITERC

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 RERBAESLEEY
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FABTT
Cash and cash equivalents B NReEEY 2,040,916 2,165,224
Short-term bank deposits RHRITER 119,276 -

2,160,192 2,165,224

As at 31 December 2018, funds of the Group amounting to
HK$1,385,382,000 (2017: HK$1,203,074,000) were deposited
in bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

EERRRHARAT - NEEH

R-Z—-NF+-_A=+—H KA&£H
£ 201,385,382,0008 0 (— T —
1,203,074,000/% 7T ) 17 iU R BUSR N ER 1T
FMHIRITIRE MABE SN ES RIS
B & o
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25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 25 RERAESZEEY (9
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were RekBReEFEVHEREED N TIE
denominated in the following currencies: BEETE -

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—EBE-NE —ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

RMB AR 1,385,160 1,202,699
us$ ET 537,412 396,717
HK$ BT 169,620 515,977
EUR BT 57,788 42,256
Others Hfb 10,212 7,575

2,160,192 2,165,224

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group as RZZE-—N\F+ZA=1+—H AEEHKRKX
at 31 December 2018 were HK$2,159,900,000 (2017: =E R A2,159,900,0008 L (= F—+
HK$2,165,083,000). £ :2,165,083,000/87T) °
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26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION

(a)

26 BRARBERE

Issued and fully paid share capital of the Company (@) ERATCBITRHBERE
Ordinary
Number of  shares of
ordinary HK$0.1
shares each
BREE
0.1 TH
ZERYAE ZER
Thousand
shares HK$'000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid ERTRABZEBR T % FHT
1 January 2017 —F—+%—H—H 1,107,874 110,787
Shares repurchased during the year F R B (13,000) (1,300)
Employee share option scheme: EEREARESE:
— Proceeds from shares issued (Note 26) — BT PRISFRIR (P 5E26) 5,320 532
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 and R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H"
31 December 2018 —E-N\F-HA-BR
—E-N\F+=-A=+—H 1,100,194 110,019

No ordinary share was repurchased on the Stock Exchange
by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: repurchased 13,000,000 ordinary company shares at
an aggregate purchase consideration (including expenses) of
HK$51,617,000).

HE-_Z-—N\E+-_A=+—81t
FECARAWRAEEHZATER
FREER(ZZE—tF: UAEZR
E(BHERX) 51,617,000 T O
13,000,0000% & @ A% ) -

EERRRHARAT - NEEH
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()

(i)

26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued) 26 BRAKIEMREE (50)
(b) Share option of the Company (b) ZATEERFE
Share option scheme () /BERETE
On 1 December 2010, the Board of Directors of RZE—ZF+=-A—H £&2A
the Company approved a share option scheme (the REEgHE —TEERET S
“Scheme") for the issuance of in aggregate no more ([FZFTEIDNETAERTBR
than 10% in nominal amount of the aggregate of AAER EMBHBEETRD
shares in issue on the listing date of the Company, #THE{E/10%  B1100,000,000
representing 100,000,000 shares (subject to the terms IRt (18 ZBIRFEFZ AT &R 15K
of the scheme and the relevant provisions under the NEF EmARROEERE) -
Listing Rules).
The purpose of the Scheme is to reward participants Zit Bl E EREGANEEE
who have contributed or will contribute to the Group REBENERMMNSEE  1E
and to encourage participants to work towards BoEEAA A RERERN
enhancing the value of the Company and its Shares for B SHRAERARIRE
the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a IR EE -
whole.
The Scheme became effective on 1 December 2010 ZER T —ZEFE+=A—
and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will HAED BRIESITREHSERT
remain valid and effective for the period of 10 years L RIGZET 2118 B8 7% B 104 85
from that date. BA—EBW-
Share option movements (i) FERERZE
Number of Number of
Share Share
Options Options
held at Exercised Lapsed held at
Exercise 1 January during during 31 December
Name Date of grant price 2018 the year the year 2018
RZE-NE R-ZB-NE
-B-H +=ZB=+-H
Fi fits
%A REBH T8 BREHE FRTE FREX BREHE
(HK$)
(%)
Employees
=]
(In aggregate) 28 May 2014* 4.860 6,954,000 = = 6,954,000
(#3t) ZE-NERAZ+N\RB*
6,954,000 - - 6,954,000
Consultants
ER
(In aggregate) 28 May 2014* 4.860 1,580,000 = = 1,580,000
(#3) “E-NERAZ+N\RB*
Total 8,534,000 - - 8,534,000
B

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&

#n © B 55 R = Bl 51

26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued) 26 BRARBERE @
(b) Share option of the Company (continued) (b) EATBERE(&E)
(ii) Share option movements (continued) (i) FBRENZE &)
Number of Number of
Share Share
Options Options
held as at Exercised Lapsed held as at
Exercise 1 January during during 31 December
price 2017 the year the year 2017
RZZE—+F RZT—tF
—A—B +ZA=1+—H
Name Date of grant [Ziget: lHiEsE:)
% KB A BREHE FRTHE FRER BREHE
(HKS)
(B7T)
Employees
&S5
(In aggregate) 22 June 2012* 1.230 6,000,000 - (6,000,000) -
(4st) —Z-ZFRAZtZB*
(In aggregate) 28 May 2014* 4.860 12,274,000 (5,320,000) - 6,954,000
(4st) —Z-mERAZFNB*
Total for Employees 18,274,000 (5,320,000) (6,000,000) 6,954,000
&8 @5t
Consultants
R
(In aggregate) 28 May 2014* 4.860 1,580,000 - - 1,580,000
(st) ZZ-EERAZTN\B*
Total for Consultants 1,580,000 - - 1,580,000
ElGECy
Total 19,854,000 (5,320,000) (6,000,000) 8,534,000
EGE
* The share options will be vested to the grantees,

among which 30% of the share options would be
vested on the date of grant, a further 30% of the
share options be vested on the first anniversary of the
date of grant and the remaining 40% of the share
options will be vested on the second anniversary of the
date of grant. The validity period of these share options
shall be 5 years from the date of grant.

* BRERBARA EH
30% R ENIE L B BE
B BIN30% 3 I HE SR

BERMMZARAR]

REBRH-BRFERE &
40% R ES R E LA B
MBFERE - ZFEREDN
BEYHABERE BRI
o

—E-\FER
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26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued)

(b) Share option of the Company (continued)

(ii) Share option movements (continued)

Movements in the number of share options
outstanding and their related weighted average
exercise prices are as follows:

26 BARBERE®

(b) X=RAFEBIRE (@)
(i) FEIRRERIEE ()

AT BRI S E M EAAR
MHEFIETTRERESMT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+t—-HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\f —E—+F

Average Average

exercise exercise

price in HKS price in HK$
per share Options per share Options
option (thousands) option (thousands)

BEREN FRAREDN
BTFY iR AITFH Rk
THEE (F4) T8 (F17)
At 1 January n—H—H 4.860 8,534 3.763 19,854
Exercised [EERESd - - 4.860 (5,320)
Lapsed BARR - - 1.230 (6,000)
At 31 December R+ZRA=+—H 4.860 8,534 4.860 8,534

On 22 June 2012, 80,400,000 share options were
granted to certain directors and employees at an
exercise price of HK$1.23 per share. These options
were expired on 21 June 2017.

On 28 May 2014, 22,254,000 share options were
granted to certain employees and consultants at an
exercise price of HK$4.86 per share. These options will
expire on 27 May 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no
share-based payment expense (2017: same) was
recognised in the consolidated income statement and
was credited in equity. The weighted average share
price immediately before the share options exercised
dates was HK$4.60 per share for the year ended 31
December 2017. As at 31 December 2018, out of the
8,534,000 (2017: 8,534,000) outstanding options,
8,534,000 (2017: 8,534,000) options were exercisable.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

RZE—Z—ZFAZ+=8"
80,400,00017 fE AR #EHL 1T (0 (B
B123B R FETEERE
B -ZEBBREEN T —tF
NAZ+—BEm-

R-_ZE—NWFEFRA-_+N\B"
22,254,00017 FE AR RE AT T (B &
FageE LR TEHETREE M
MeZEBBREBEN = —NF
RA-++HFH-

RBE=_E-—N\F+=_A=+—
BLEFE TERDXHFAX
REEelaxkER(ZTE—+
FRELERBHARE-BHE
—ET—+F+H=+—H1Lt
FE-BREBRETEASA
B N4E S BE B B S %4.6075
Lo RZE-—NF+ZA=1+—
B 8,534,000 (ZZF—t4F:
8,534,00017 ) [# & 17 15 HE I 72
F 0 8,534,00017 (ZZE—+t %
8,534,0001n ) fE AR #E AR 1T1E ©
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27 RESERVES 27 f#fE

Financial asset
Available- at fair value

Share  Employment forsale  through other
Share Capital option benefit  revaluation comprehensive Other Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  income reserve reserves reserve earnings Total
BRATE
SARM
B TtHE 2EKEZ
RitEE B5fE BREGR FARRE fHERE SREERRE L1 AERR RERH @it

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR T T T TR T TR TR TER TER

(note (i)
(H30)
For the year ended B2-%-NF
31 December 2018 TZAZT-BLEE
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-B-tF1f=1-8
as originally presented BRES5I2 G4 1,274,530 (414,978) 81,173 ) (6,145) - - 8,298 2,869,951 3812,757
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.1.1) FRRNE (Hn211) - - - - 6,145 (553) - - (5,592) -
At 1 January 2018, as restated R=Z-N\E-A-RE] 1,274,530 (414,978) 81,173 1) - (553) - 8,298 2,864,359 3812,757
Comprehensive income 2ERE
Proft o the year FRER - - - - - - - - 522410 522410
Other comprehensive income/(loss) £t2ERE/ (58)
Exchange differences arising on REBNHRADRBER
translation of the financia EENMENEE
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - - - - - (109,302) - (109,302)
Change in value of finandial asset at FVOCI BATETAL B2 EAES
SRAELBEYR - - - - - (7,269) - - - (7.269)
Rereasurement of post-employment BRUEENRRET
benefit obligation - - - 53 - - - - - 53

- - - 53 - (7.269) - (109,302) 522470 405,952

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Transactions with owners AEEANRE
Dividends paid BfRE - - - - - - - - (83,016) (88,016)
Increase in shareholding in a subsidiary EN-HHELE RE - - - - - - 1341 - - 1,341
Total transactions with owners HEEANRHEE - - - - - - 1341 - (88,016) 86,675)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\E

TZA=t-BE 1,274,530 (414,978) 81,173 (19) - (7.822) 134 (101,004) 3298813 4,132,034

BERMAMZARRR  ZE-NFEH
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27 RESERVES (continued)

27 REE )

Available-
Share  Employment forsale
Share Capital option benefit  revaluation Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
R A E
RiEE ERGE  BRERE BAIGE hEGEE SMERE REEF @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERL TER TEL TER TET TER TET
(note (i))
(FEE())
For the year ended HE-E-tH+-A=1-H
31 December 2017 LLEE
Balance at1 January 2017 RZZ-tE-R-RMkH 1,299,524 (414,978) 81,173 - - (162,470) 2,551,499 3,354,748
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - 407,507 407,507
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ E 2 E W%/ (F8)
Exchange differences arising on REENHBARRBRE
translation of the financial EEMERZEE
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - - - 170,768 - 170,768
Changes in value of available-forsale  AIEHESREE BRSNS
financial assets - - - - (6,145) - - (6,145)
Remeasurements of post-employment  BEB: {478 7| 5 &t
benefit obligations - - - (72) - - - (72)
Total comprehensive (loss)income FERE (BR)/ MEss
for the year - - - (72) (6,145) 170,768 407,507 572,058
Transactions with owners BEEANRS
Repurchase of the Company's shares  EIEE A B ATBR {7 (50,317) - - - - - - (50,317)
Share option scheme B
~ share options exercised —BfiiRERE 25,323 - - - - - - 25,323
Dividends paid BRRE - - - - - - (89,055) (89,055)
Total transactions with owners HEFANZSER (24,994) - - - - - (89,055) (114,049)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZA=+—ANER 1,274,530 (414,978 81,173 (72) (6,145) 8,298 2,869,951 3,812,757
Notes: k=3
(i) Capital reserve (i) EXREE

(i)

Capital reserve represents the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the consideration for the acquisitions upon the reorganisation
completed on 15 February 2010; and (i) the aggregate of the share
capital and share premium of the directly owned subsidiaries of the
Company.

Statutory reserves

The subsidiary of the Company in the PRC is required to allocate
10% of the company's net profit to the statutory reserves fund
until such fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. The statutory
reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant
authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase its registered
capital, provided that such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25%
of its registered capital. As at 31 December 2018, retained earnings
comprised statutory reserves fund amounting to HK$173,268,000
(2017: HK$173,268,000).
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28 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 28 ENERM EBNEE-  HENIRR

AND ACCRUALS & FESt IR
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—~H
2018 2017
—EBE-N\FE —T—+F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade and bills payables ENERREMNRE
Trade payables FETER X 1,114,598 937,093
Amount due to a related party (Note 34(b)) JE A~ — REI B Bt 5 k8 (B EE34(b)) 11,684 15,991
Trade payables (note (a)) FET AR TR (P 5E(a)) 1,126,282 953,084
Bills payables (note (b)) e 24 (M 5EDb) ) 64,165 -
1,190,447 953,084
Other payables and accruals Hfth 1S BR R % FE ST RRIE
Receipt in advance from customers (note (c)) BARWEREFEZIE (MHiEc) 61,246 70,519
Other tax payables Hh JE LR 56,792 95,991
Other accrued expenses and payables E Mg RERK 141,082 115,075
259,120 281,585
(a) Trade payables (a) ERER
The ageing analysis of trade payables (including amount due ERERFIZE R HEMNRE DT (2
to a related party of trading in nature) based on invoice date REN—2EB IS MEHRIE) N
is as follows: T:
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Up to 90 days 908 LAY 802,365 808,948
91 to 180 days 91H £180H 317,992 137,140
181 to 365 days 181H £365H 1,109 4,175
Over 365 days 365H M £ 4,816 2,821
1,126,282 953,084
The average credit period granted by the Group's suppliers AEBEHRERRTHEFHEESEN
ranges from 0 to 180 days. F0=180H °
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28 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 28 ENERM EBNEE-  HENIRR

AND ACCRUALS (continued) R FEGHRE ()
(b) Bills payables (b) EREE
The balance represents bank acceptance notes: SRR IRIT AL BB

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2018 2017
—EF-N\E —T+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Due within 90 days 90K N B HA 20,494 -
Due within 91 to 180 days 912 180K 2 HA 43,671 -
64,165 -
() Receipt in advance from customers (0 EKREFRE
Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December BE_ZE-N\F+_A=T—HILF
2018 that was included in the contract liability balance at B REVGFAGHNABEBZER
the beginning of the year amounted to HK$36,842,000 ULz 536,842,0008 T (T —+
(2017: HK$84,998,000). The Group expects to deliver the £ : 84,998,000/ 7T ) - AEETEH —
goods to satisfy the remaining performance obligations of FHIAANRBERUBITEREHE
these contract liabilities within one year or less. BZRBHOEE
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29 BORROWINGS BE
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—8H
2018 2017
—g-NF —TLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Current B &R
Bank borrowings held by a subsidiary in Korea BENBARRBNERITEER 8,244 14,367

As at 31 December 2018, the bank borrowings were repayable
within 1 year (2017: same) and bore average fixed interests of
5.69% annually (2017: 4.23%). The interest-bearing borrowings
are carried at amortised cost.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings as at 31
December 2018 were denominated in WON and approximate their
fair values (2017: same).

As at 31 December 2018, the borrowings of HK$8,244,000 (2017:
HK$10,716,000) were secured by land and buildings in Korea with
a net book value of HK$15,420,000 (2017: HK$16,314,000) (Note
14).

As at 31 December 2018, total undrawn facilities were
approximately HK$3,656,000 (2017: HK$3,664,000).

RZZE-NF+A=+—HB RTEE
ER—FRAEE(ZT—tF RAL) A
BEFHEEMNE569% (ZT—+5F:
4.23% )5 B oG BEERE AR o

KRB \E+-A=1+—B AEEEE
M EEASEE ERAATEEE (=2
—tF AL

R-ZE—N\E+=-A=+—H" 8,244,000
BT (ZZE—+%:10,716,000/ 7T) B &
EABRERE 415,420,000 70 (ZZ—+
F 116,314,000/ 70 ) B) 88 B £ #h R 12 P 1E
AR (H5E14) »

AZE—NF+_A=1+—H Kz
BB EB 4 53,656,000 0 (ZE— L
3,664,0005 7T °
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 EIEATE/H
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during BELEMENEEHABERNFRAZESHN
the year is as follows: Ik
Deferred income tax assets EEFfMBREE
2018 2017
—E-N\&§ “E—+F
Provisions Others Total Provisions Others Total
B Hitr &t BE Hit A&t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER FET FET THEL

At 1 January m—A—H 14,470 4,261 18,731 10,459 6,335 16,794
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—ERELE - - - 639 - 639
Credited/(debited) to the consolidated 5t A/ (B B ) xR

income statement 8,548 5,901 14,449 2,468 (2,353) 115
Exchange realignment R AR (1,040) (436) (1,476) 904 279 1,183
At 31 December W+=ZAR=+—8H 21,978 9,726 31,704 14,470 4,261 18,731
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFIEHAs

Revaluation of
intangible assets
BREEEM

2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

At 1 January R—H—H (10,123) (6,363)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W HE MR R ) - (8,443)
Credited to the consolidated income statement SFASR B W TR 1,074 5,273
Exchange realignment PE 7 A% 408 (590)
At 31 December ®R+=—A=+—H” (8,641) (10,123)
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At 31
December 2018, the Group has unrecognised tax losses to be
carried forward against future taxable income amounted to
HK$217,366,000 (2017: HK$177,436,000). Tax losses amounting
to HK$217,366,000 (2017: HK$177,248,000) will expire from
2023 to 2038 (2017: 2022 to 2037). The remaining tax losses
have no expiry date. The potential deferred income tax assets in
respect of these tax losses which have not been recognised will
be calculated based on the effective income tax rates according to
prevailing tax laws and regulations in which the Group operates.

Cai Shui 2008 Circular 1, which was jointly issued by the Ministry
of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation, took effect
on 22 February 2008. Under the circular, dividends declared by
foreign investment enterprises (“FIEs”) to foreign investors out of
their cumulative retained earnings as at 31 December 2007 shall
be exempt from withholding income tax. For dividends declared
out of profit earned after 1 January 2008, withholding income
tax will be levied on the foreign investor at a tax rate of 10%
unless the foreign investor’s jurisdiction of incorporation has a tax
treaty with the PRC that provides for a different withholding tax
arrangement.

As at 31 December 2018, deferred income tax liabilities
have not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the withholding tax that would be
payable on unremitted earnings of the PRC subsidiary of the
Company amounting to approximately HK$90,888,000 (2017:
HK$102,179,000), as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

30

EAEFTSHE (8)

BEMSHREENRERBHRENZS
AAEFE M A B ERT & A &R mtA
HEENBEBBEER R —N\F
+ZA=+—"HB AEEHRBRFEE
B 18 5217,366,0008 L (& — = F:
177,436,000/ 7T) - Al A LAKIE R & JE
R o T TE E5 18 A 80217,366,0005%
T (ZZ —+45:177,248,000%& 7T) R
—ECFEE=N\F(ZE—F:
R _FE B4+ F)ER-FHD
REBESEIHA - MAERNZEN
HEEMNBEELEMSHEEBRIEASE
ECEERNERMESREREREABD
AR BT E -

FHEEBRM LB T HNTH
2008F1RBAMR_EENF_A=-_+=
HEM - RIFZBH  IEITEDZE ([H
EhE])BE-ZEELF+-_A=+—H
HETRBAFMEINEEESTRORKE
B RHMBENFAEH a2 N\F—
B—B&MBRIMNEMFEROKE &
E10% M REBIMNEEEBIRTERNME
BoBRIEBINEEEFTMAR LA EERE
AT AR GLY  HETRMENH
2 HE o

R-ZE—N\FE+-A=+—H ARAE
EA i f B L BN A TR ER
AR T2 AR RARREE - MR AN SR
[ iz 7 P B R BT B R B AR FE 28 ) B FE 78
MBEREEYBRRELEEMBHRE
& 490,888,000 7T ( —Z & — 4 ¢
102,179,000/ 7T) °

EERRREERAT  —®-\EEH @7



g

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
%n

31

B B 5 ¥ R BfT 5

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash

generated from operations

31 ZEHER

¥R

BRME

(@) BRAEBANEFNREEMEREN

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+t—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Profit before income tax B P15 556 A s 71 632,742 424,540
Adjustments for: R
Interest income B U A (22,321) (20,847)
Finance costs WEER 4,768 3,801
Depreciation of property, M BERBREBITE
plant and equipment 11,178 22,826
Amortisation of land use rights o Hb {5 A 6 4,321 3,173
Amortisation of intangible assets mEE#H 4,840 5,008
Impairment of assets BERE - 136,192
Losses on disposals of property, HEME WEREENEE
plant and equipment 1,786 30
Share of result of an investment LEREANRNIEEEE
accounted for using the equity method 1,759 (318)
Employee benefit obligations EERAER 1,090 209
Net impairment losses on financial assets TREEREFER 43,290 43,220
Fair value gain on a financial liability BRAFEFABRZZERBEZ
at FVPL N ERE (4,689) -
Fair value gain on a financial asset BRAFEFABEZERMEEY
at FVPL N ERE (2,888) -
Provision/(reversal of provision) for PREFERE (BERED)
obsolete inventories 43,071 (1,824)
718,947 616,010
Operating profit before LELASEFHANLE R
working capital changes:
Increase in trade and bills receivables, JE WS BR R R FE U R AR
other financial assets at amortised cost RN 2 e R EE
and other assets RETEEEM (292,099)  (278,902)
Increase in inventories FE N (360,786)  (255,183)
Increase in restricted cash IR &R &80 (38,334) (11,728)
Increase in trade and bills payables, JERTBR R R BT 15 - B B
other payables and accruals AR R % JE 5T RRIB I N 294,732 207,332
Cash generated from operations KEmSRe 322,460 277,529
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31

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (continued)

(b) Proceeds from sales of property, plant and
equipment
In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds
of property, plant and equipment comprise:

31

from sale

RERSREBRMEE (2

(b) HEWXE BMERREHRERE

RiFARERERT HEME BFE
REENFERARRE:

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Net book amount REFE 1,786 30
Losses on disposals of property, HEME HE R

plant and equipment B (1,786) (30)
Proceeds from sales of property, HEME HWE R

plant and equipment BB FTISIA - -

(9]

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (0 REITBFELEEENYIER
activities
This section sets out the movement in liabilities arising from KEFE T FT 25 Rifg B E S B PT
financing activities for each of the years presented. EXaENE
Borrowing
due within
1 year
—FREH
WiEE
HK$'000
FHET
As at 1 January 2018 R=2-N\F—HA—H 14,367
Cash flows BeR=E (5,612)
Foreign exchange adjustments ME (511)
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\FE+=A=+—8H 8,244
As at 1 January 2017 R=-—ZE—tF—HA—H
Acquisition of a subsidiary Uy B8 — I B BB 2 A 30,463
Cash flows RenE& (16,906)
Foreign exchange adjustments M H S 810
As at 31 December 2017 R-B—tHF+=A=+—H 14,367
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32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32 HAEE
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had no material R N\FERZFE—tF+_A=1+—
contingent liabilities. H AEBUESEANAREE-
33 COMMITMENTS 33 A
(a) Capital commitment (@) EAREE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the balance REERAFTHNEABERABEBENE
sheet date but not recognised as liabilities is as follows: REARRZ AT :
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8H
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Property, plant and equipment TR BEOME - BFER&E
in the PRC 15,791 -
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) ZEHE&AE
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had future RZE-NFR_FE—+F+_H
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable =+ —H AEEREETHAE
operating leases in respect of certain office premises as FNTAHELEEERANAR
follows: RxERSMFAEAT
As at 31 December
R+=HA=+—H
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Not later than one year THB—F 19,115 22,489
Later than one year and HBiA—FETEBERF
not later than five years 16,871 14,862
35,986 37,351
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has, directly
or indirectly, the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions.

(a) Transactions with related parties
Except for those disclosed below and elsewhere on the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has no
significant transactions with related parties during the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: same).

3 BEBAIRS

W—RALAENDERIEREHNEMBA
THAEEMATERM B RELRREEH
HigMEAZE AZALTHRBREZS
Hith AL HIRARE T -

() EREABEL MRS
BRI EERGEMBHRROE
T AEERBE_T—N\F
TZA=t—HAFEHEEKLET
MEARS (ZFT—tF :FHLE)-

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLEE
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

Sales of electronic payment products to mEBEE (FE)BRAR

subsidiaries of Hi Sun Technology (China) (T=kE1) *#9 b B 7

Limited (“Hi Sun”)* (note (i)) HEEFMEM (MEG0) 194,221 135,774
Rental fees paid to a subsidiary of mEEn—HEARXNHES

Hi Sun (note (i) (B (i) ) 1,491 1,460
Purchase of raw materials from ERS1C ARl = PNET

a subsidiary of Hi Sun (note (i) RE B RAE (BT EEGI)) 67,587 59,966
Commission income from a subsidiary of M =k5 2 B8 A a SEUE & A

Hi Sun (note (iv)) (B =E(iv) ) - 139
* The Company is an associated company of Hi Sun whose * RARAREEHEE AR HR®H

shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Notes:

(i):  Sales of electronic payment products to subsidiaries of Hi Sun
were transacted pursuant to the terms and conditions set out
in the framework agreement entered into by the Company
and Hi Sun on 31 December 2015. The Company and Hi
Sun had on 5 December 2018 entered into new framework
agreements with revised terms and conditions governing
the sales of electronic payment products effective from 1
January 2019. These transactions were continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as
detailed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in
the Report of the Directors in respect of these transactions.

(ii):  Rental fees paid to a subsidiary of Hi Sun was charged at a
fixed monthly fee mutually agreed between the two parties.
These transactions were de minimis continuing connected
transactions exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

MBI ER BT -

Bt 5

() MEBEORBRRHEEEFN
EmRANRESENR _T—h

F+ZA=1+—HEZWIEZER
uﬁzﬁﬁ%@ %JX&%1¢LTTX% FiN/N

mER_E—N\F+=-AAAH
ETZZ%H[%T’%E% EFRIHEBEE
FENERBEE WLLERT 2GR
kg - B2 —NF—H—HE
M- ZERH A ETMHAEI4A
EMATNRERER S - AEHE
BENMEESRERHEIS] —
BTtz SR BT EMARAE
14AE M #TE ©

(i): MEEH—HHEEARSZHHHE
SHAKETERARER  ArIHE
FHEWME ZERXSHAETRA
FUAEE THERBEHEHER
5 BeBTREMLE FEEH
MATBEBENRE-
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iii):  Purchase of raw materials from a subsidiary of Hi Sun was
conducted pursuant to terms and conditions set out in the
framework agreement entered into by the Company and
Hi Sun on 30 December 2016. These transactions were
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules as detailed in the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in the Report of the Directors in
respect of these transactions.

(iv):  Commission received from a subsidiary of Hi Sun was
charged at a rate mutually agreed between two parties.
These transactions were de minimis continuing connected
transactions exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

(b) Balances with related parties
The balances with the subsidiaries of Hi Sun are unsecured,
interest free and with a credit period of 60 days.

3 BEEARS (&)
(a) EEFEEAMRS (&)

MiEE: ()

(iii)

o
5

5 i) — [ i BB A 7] U BN AR
HEAFEBENAS Z
X5 K/ EMBRAFEI14AEIE
KIRZEHFERER S #
ALK FEEM K
BHRIHE

(iv) :

)

bt
R N H
355 58 2 T

N

-

X

<

I A 4 )@ 3
o} ik 50

el

N

(b) EREAE T HIAEER
ZEESGHE QRN GERAEE
H 2SAMTS0REER-

As at 31 December
BR+=-—HA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-NE —ZT—+HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

Amount due from a subsidiary of Hi Sun FEW = s — KB A /508

(Note 21) (FF7E21) 90,389 32,453
Amount due to a subsidiary of Hi Sun et = iE—REM B A R8I RIE
(Note 28) (Fft5E28) 11,684 15,991

(c) Key management compensation
During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, key
management compensation is equivalent to the Directors’
emoluments as disclosed in Note 37.

35 EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 7 September 2018, the Group and CCV Group B.V., entered
into an agreement (the “Agreement”) to set up a jointly controlled
entity ("JV entity”) in Germany. Pursuant to the Agreement, the
Group agreed to invest with an investment cost of EUR762,500
(equivalent to approximately HK$6,833,000) in and grant a
shareholder loan of EUR462,500 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,143,000) to the JV entity. During the year ended 31
December 2018, a prepayment for a portion of the investment
cost amounted to EUR12,500 (equivalent to approximately
HK$114,000) was paid by the Group and the JV entity was
subsequently incorporated in January 2019.
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35 BEREXRARER

RZE—N\FhLAtLtH KEBHECCY
Group B.V.EF s ([1Ha])  FEEBRK
YEEBRE -BEZWE AEERER
BAELRNFIREFHT62,5008 7T (HENL
6,833,000/% 70 ) &M% F ¥ R & 58462,500
BT (8 A H4,143,00007T) - HE-Z
—N\FE+-_A=+—BIFEAEEDHE
P ER 1D 3% & 71 A 2012,5008 7T (IHE R L
114,000 7C) A2 RBHER T — N
F— AR
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36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF

THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

36 ARAEERERRFHRED

ERAREERER

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-NE —ZT—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HBRARMNEE 592,344 592,344
Total non-current assets kRBEELAE 592,344 592,344
Current assets REEE
Other current assets EMREEE 349 396
Amount due from a subsidiary FE Y — R BT B A R IR 868,278 583,694
Cash and cash equivalents BeNReEEY 57,608 336,263
Total current assets MBEEHLE 926,235 920,353
Total assets EERE 1,518,579 1,512,697
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to the owners EREFEAEGER
of the Company
Share capital fi% AR 110,019 110,019
Reserves f (a) 1,395,851 1,393,388
Total equity EREE 1,505,870 1,503,407
LIABILITIES =K |
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals E AT BR R R FE AT RUAR 12,709 9,290
Total current liabilities and FBEERERAEHAE
total liabilities 12,709 9,290
Total equity and liabilities kA ELEE 1,518,579 1,512,697
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36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

1))

36 ARAEERERRFEED (B

(a) Reserves movement of the Company (@) ARTEIREEE
Share
Share option Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
BHEE BRERE REEF &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FHET FET
Balance at 1 January 2018 R=ZT-N\F
—A—B0&& 1,274,530 81,173 37,685 1,393,388
Profit for the year FEa A - - 90,479 90,479
Transaction with owner HEFTAZRS
Dividends paid BRRE - - (88,016) (88,016)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZEB-N\&F
+=-B=1+—-BMH#&& 1,274,530 81,173 40,148 1,395,851
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZB—+t&
—A—BH&R 1,299,524 81,173 43,073 1,423,770
Profit for the year F a7 - - 83,667 83,667
Transactions with owner HEBAZRS
Repurchase of the Company's shares EE:wNSIEok ) (50,317) - - (50,317)
Share option scheme FERRIE AT 2
— share options exercised —BiTEkE 25,323 - - 25,323
Dividends paid ERERE - - (89,055) (89,055)
Total transactions with owners HEA AN 5B (24,994) - (89,055) (114,049)
Balance at 31 December 2017 R=Z—+tH
tTZA=Z+-BH&HR 1,274,530 81,173 37,685 1,393,388
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

The remuneration of every Director and the chief executive
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2018
and 2017 is set out below:

37 EEFEKkER (FB QKA (5
622% ) 553831 - N A (KEEER
BmER)RTE (56622GE) REE L
mARARENKE)

() EERTHAIMS
RBE-_Z-N\E_ZE—tF+=
A=T—RLFE ARAZEER

TTRARE O FE ST -

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZR-NETZAZT-HLEE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company o its subsidiary undertaking

REABEES (FRALLIARMEAARH RECHARANME

Emoluments
paid o
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
Remunerations with the
Employer's paidor  management
Estimated  contribution receivable  of the affairs
money value toa inrespect of of the
of other retirement accepting  Company or
Discretionary Housing benefits benefit office its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance (note (@) scheme asdirector  undertaking Total
HEZER
LGS
HELAEH
SAEN AEREE ZENEM
i EHEE BEHEK BHEHE BEEA
Ea #8 B4 EE2Y (i) ERGHEER EUEH LU &3t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Name #e ThR T Thn AR TER T T AR T
Executive Directors #1783
Nie Guoming (Chairman) BA8(2E) 1,300 L)) 3,000 - - 50 - 5212
Lu Jie (Chief Executive Officer) EA (770 47) 1,200 2,931 3,900 - - 8 - 8,115
Li Wenjin E3¢ 1,200 - 3,500 - - 18 - 4718
3,700 3,859 10,400 - - 146 - 18,105
Independent Non-Executive BUkunES
Directors
Yip Wai Ming &9 180 - 200 - - - - 380
Wu Min B 180 - 200 - - - - 380
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles XEE 180 - 200 - - - - 380
540 - 600 - - - - 1,140
Total &t 4,240 3859 11,000 - - 146 - 19,245

BERMMZARAR]
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 37 EENGEKREDR (FRBQAERD (5
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%) %3838 - A F) (HEEER
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. H=ERHRE (F622GE) REA L
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION mRARENRE) (8)
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EERITHERME (&)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F+FT-A=+-BLER
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company o its subsidiary undertaking
FEAREES (FRARLALENRAAER) RECHARLNME
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
Remunerations with the
Employer's paidor  management
Estimated contribution receivable  of the affairs
money value toa in respect of of the
of other retirement accepting Company or
Discretionary Housing benefits benefit office its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance (note (@) scheme as director undertaking Total
HESER
ARAGE
HEAREH
At Es HEx8% FEMAL
HHELEE BENEA BHBERY i e
ne e B EEZH (@) BHEER JEUEH el &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name #e T Fitn TEL TRL T Fin T T TEn
Executive Directors gz
Nie Guoming (Chaiman) REH(2E) 1300 903 2300 - - 4 - - 4550
Lu Jie (Chief Executive Officer) EA (775 47) 1,200 2,840 2,300 N - 46 - - 6,386
Li Wenjin 3XE 1,200 - 2,300 - - 18 - - 3518
3,700 3,743 6,900 - - m - - 14,454
Independent Non-Executive BUkunES
Directors
Yip Wai Ming EBH 180 - 150 - - - - - 30
Wu Min 24 180 - 150 - - - - - 30
Man Kok Kuen, Charles KBk 180 - 150 - - - - - 330
540 - 450 - - - - - 990
Total @it 4240 3743 7350 - - il - - 15,444
Note (a): Other benefits include leave pay, share options and MizE(a) - bR B iEEHE  ERER
insurance premium. REEBR -

(9
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits during the year (2017: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year (2017: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2017: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2018, there are no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour
of the directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2017: Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2017:
Nil).

37 EEFEREZ (FBATKH (F
622% ) 538351 - A F (HEEER
HEH)RTE ($£6226E)REBL
THRAARENEE) (@)

(b) EZRAKER
FA - BT E E UWEEGEUEE A
BREN (ZF—LF &) -

(0 EBKRLEEREAR
FA BEE S WA EUER
RIEEBREMN (ZF—LF &) -

(d) PEHEERBERE=FREHAR
&
HE_Z—\F#+-_A=+—8Lt
FE ARAABEREREERSER
FRE=ZFIZARE(ZE—CF:
/) o

() FRAUESR ZEHZAEBRZ
ZESNHEBEBRAZTANE
FEERRHMARZNEN

HE-T-N\F+-A=+—ALLF
BBEEMAEE R HAAR
BERSHESOWUMERAT S
MEF FERRAEMRZLH (=
T—LF8)-

() EZRNRZ REFSHPHNEKX
s
ARRIERERHILARAD
HAFINARARREFTERKH
BEREAEARamMRNFERALFAE
ABERDATENEARS RHHK
BH(ZT—LF:8)-

BREREEERAT —B-NEEH
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Five Years Financial Summary

hFFitk 2

A summary of the published consolidated results and of the FFERERYBEBEMIRERBRAEHDEN
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial ~AN&EEBEREMIKEED A5G E 26 MGA
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and reclassified EESBEHZMT

as appropriate, is set as below:

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-N\E —ZT—+F E-RF E—-HF —ET—@NmF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FET FET FBT FET

Results ES
Revenue WA 4,415,409 3,591,080 2,914,842 2,870,794 2,373,272
Gross profit EF 1,626,681 1,457,593 1,261,994 1,092,490 864,866
Operating profit R R 639,269 428,023 689,093 657,973 463,194
Profit for the year attributable to EAYNSIESESIN
the owners of the Company PG FEER 522,470 407,507 600,908 620,736 391,806
Financial position B AR OR
Assets and liabilities EENBE
Total assets EERE 5,775,554 5232216 4,433,063 4,080,199 3,334,313
Total liabilities BERE 1,562,946 1,335,150 931,780 989,600 786,133
Capital and reserves IR R R 4
Total equity Bames 4,212,608 3,897,066 3,501,283 3,090,599 2,548,180
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